Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
ABABHRESERR QA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Stock Code: 1929

ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
AND
THE UNAUDITED KEY OPERATIONAL DATA FROM 1 APRIL TO 31 MAY 2022

The board of directors of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is pleased to announce the
audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022. This
announcement, containing the full text of the Annual Report 2021/2022 of the Company,
complies with the relevant requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in relation to preliminary announcement of annual
results.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ExBGN

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Group”; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group's vision is to become the most trusted jewellery group in the world.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “CHOW TAI FOOK" is widely recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity,
and is renowned for its product design, quality and value. A long-standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has
contributed to the Group's success, along with that of its iconic retail brand, and has been embodied in its rich heritage.
Underpinning this success are our long-held core values of “Sincerity  Eternity”.

The Group's differentiation strategy continues to make inroads into diverse customer segments by catering to a bespoke
experience for different lifestyles and personalities, as well as customers’ different life stages. Offering a wide variety of
products, services and channels, the Group's brand portfolio comprises the CHOW TAI FOOK flagship brand with curated
retail experiences, and other individual brands including HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group’s commitment to sustainable growth is anchored in its customer-centric focus and strategies, which are in place
to promote long-term innovation in business, in people and in culture. Another asset underpinning sustainable growth is a
sophisticated and agile business model. This supports the Group by fostering excellence and extending opportunities along
the entire value chain to communities and industry partners across the world.

With an extensive retail network in China, Japan, Korea, Southeast Asia and the United States, and a fast-growing smart
retail business, the Group is implementing effective online-to-offline (“020") strategies to succeed in today's omni-channel
retail environment.
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We value feedback from our
stakeholders as it is important for us
to ensure continuous improvement
of our reporting quality. We invite
you to share your views by email to
ir@chowtaifook.com.
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HERUARFERZ - BHE BET
BEHEARENEERZRE R
Zir@chowtaifook.com °
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
FREFHEME

° Revenue increased by 41.0% to HK$98,938 million in FY2022, boosted by the resilient demand for gold jewellery and
products, as well as our retail network expansion in Mainland China (the “Mainland”)

° Gross profit increased by 11.3% to HK$22,340 million. In FY2022, adjusted gross profit margin nonetheless declined
by 480 basis points to 23.4% mainly attributable to a higher sales contribution from our wholesale business and gold
jewellery and products

o Core operating profit rose by 15.9% to HK$10,002 million. Core operating profit margin was 10.1%, thanks to
favourable operating leverage

° Retail network expanded to 5,902 POS as at 31 March 2022, with a net addition of 1,311 POS during the financial year.
With the rise of the rural economy in the Mainland, we consider that there is still a huge room for opening stores in
Tier Il and below cities and towns. Therefore, in the financial year, we mainly expanded our business territory through
regional distributors and franchisees

° Contribution of e-commerce and smart retail applications to the RSV in the Mainland reached 5.2% and 3.4%
respectively, representing a total contribution of 8.6% of the respective RSV, further expanded by 140 basis points
during FY2022

° In FY2022, we deepened the reach of our CTF ® HUA Collection by expanding our product offerings, exploring new

crossover collaborations, as well as opening exclusive zones. For gem-set jewellery, we continued to actively promote
T MARK and HEARTS ON FIRE, and optimised the brand image, product design and sales channels

. 2022 FEMERFRIENA1.0%E98,938AEET  ILTMBYINESEHRERFTR - URBFAEHERH(AML])
WERERBERATY

. EMIEIN11.3% £22,340 BEETT » Aifi 0 2022 RFE - KABRKNWEMNETKRAS0EH FE23.4%  T2HVHHE
EBURFEEREREMNFEEGLL LT

. FTEELHEN ETH15.9% 10,002 A8 - RENEENR - TELLRNER10.1%

. M202263A310 TEMRBEAES902ETEE - NAMRFZFEM, 31 EATER - BEAMMBLBRR - %
MRRB=ERATHETNLEREEREANEEEN  FAUARMREAYRFEETEEBERRMNBEBETEBRE

. BFEEREENBREANIERMTEEEDS 2% K3.4% @ A5t ERR8.6% @ 2022 T FEE—THEAR T 140 ER

. 2022 BEE - BHAMBBERARBEARY  SREEEMREE - %Tizé?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ?\A{’E%%@&i"“1§7¥K§7§\ ° RIRHE
FIEM T E - RMEERXNHEET MARKRHEARTS ON FIRE - Blb@EFR - EmRET RIFEERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

BZE2022F3831B8LFE

Revenue
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As at 31 March
MA3A31H

Dividend per share for the year ?

BRR2FRE®

Net gearing ratio

FEKAMELEE

HKS BT

0.50

2022 2021

28.9%  19.4%

Net assets per share As at 31 March Full year dividend payout ratio

BREEFHE W3A31H 2EREE
HK$ 77T
2022 2021

3.0 3.2 714.5%

(1) Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income,
less selling and distribution costs, general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss (gain)
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of
its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

Included the proposed final dividend of HK$0.28 per share which is subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting Fi1:3
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Special dividend excluded Hfi 5% : REIEHERIALE
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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As at 31 March 2022
72022%3H318

Retail network and performance

FTERERRERE
. FY2022
Mainland 5 7 5 7 Smart retail? RSV
China ) a 1312 wRTE TEE
o it
POS Net movement O
TEY FEEY 6 2 7 /
P ' (0]
YoY change
5'459 El=4-£(4
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS®
BAREHREZEHO
0
8'6 /0 5 20/0 E-commerce
of respective RSV BFHH
CLEE RS 3,49, Smar retail applications
& /0 3
FY2022 ZERKRER
'] '] '] 0/ 17.5%
- ' 8] _ _
of respective retail
SSSG sales volume
FEHERR 1hER SR
Hong Kong 9 4 Other markets 5 'I
& Macau wb Hithhi5 Ab
of China
. POS Net movement POS Net movement
FEEER Y BED Y B
thERF
FY2022
24.7%
a ' 8]
SSSG
FEHEER

(3) CTF WATCH POS excluded
(4) E-commerce and smart retail applications included. Smart retail applications refer to the use of
digital tools, such as CloudSales 365, Cloud Kiosk, Smart Tray, etc.

Chow Tai Fook employees
AX#EET

28,400+

Total number of employees
BTAY

Number of employees by reportable segment

RUE2RSBASHEIHE

Mainland China
R it

81.6%

Hong Kong & Macau of China and
other markets
FEIERE - FEIRPIRHA 5

18.4%

Annual Report 2022
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(@) TEEANEEZTER

(4) PREFAKRTENERERA TEMRERAREEHE

365 EMEAREAEETRST)

Chow Tai Fook membership programme
AXEEEE

~9,330,000

Total number of members
ZEAY

BTRA(MER

Members' repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

EERHEGEMTEEZES T

FY2022
32.0%

Mainland China
HE A it

Hong Kong & Macau of China
FREIE B K ERPY

92.3%

Annual Results at a Glance
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FINANCIAL AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEREERE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HBZE3A3MALEE BEART BHEER BEER BEER BEAR
Revenue BT 59,156 66,661 56,751 70,164 98,938
Gross profit EF 16,213 18,602 16,096 20,075 22,340
Core operating profit™ FELEERNM 5,606 6,972 5,687 8,630 10,002
Profit for the year FEHF 4,203 4,684 2,983 6,176 6,880
Profit attributable to shareholders 7K/ 3105 5 J& & 33 7 4,095 4,577 2,901 6,026 6,712
of the Company
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAEF (&) 0.41 0.46 0.29 0.60 0.67
Dividend per share (HK$) B E (BT)
Full year dividend (HK$) 2FRE(GET) 0.27 0.35 0.24 0.40 0.50
Special dividend (HK$) RIS (ET) 0.30 0.30 - - -
Gross profit margin EF = 27.4% 27.9% 28.4% 28.6% 22.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin® IR ER (G Y E R & @ 27.2% 27.9% 29.6% 28.2% 23.4%
Core operating profit margin® FELE RO 9.5% 10.5% 10.0% 12.3% 10.1%
Net profit margin Fom A = 71% 7.0% 5.3% 8.8% 7.0%
Full year dividend payout ratio® 2FREEO 66.0% 76.5% 82.7% 66.4% 74.5%

(1) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete

understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on

=

gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(3) Special dividend excluded

(1)

2)

(3)

TREEEF RABRENE GHRRBR M B RE LR E) - BERABRY

ENREMEKENEF

CRBEE R BRAAR R RITRAX C ARTF

BELSHBEEDEERT RARERAREBNERBED

ERBENENE GHZEBRMBREENFE)  HRTESEEORE
BRRKE)NTE ARFEGHBREDNEERTRAGSERRRE

BHERBS
TEREFHHES

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March MH3A31H BEAET BEET BEER BEER BEER
Non-current assets JEmBEE 8,258 8,459 10,038 9,065 9,612
Current assets RBEE 49,312 53,778 55,205 55,243 78,126
Current liabilities VrEIN=Y I 20,719 27,471 35,627 29,142 49,629
Net current assets BB EF 28,593 26,307 19,579 26,101 28,496
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 2,753 3,363 2,626 3,598 3,553
Net assets BEFH 34,098 31,403 26,991 31,568 34,555
Total assets BERT 57,570 62,237 65,243 64,308 87,737
Inventories FE 34,929 39,486 42,538 43,011 57,254
Cash and cash equivalents®” ReERBESEEDW 7,944 7,641 7,219 6,032 14,942
Bank borrowings FITERK 7,923 10,057 11,431 6,418 9,065
Gold loans #REE 5,335 8,012 11,280 5,725 15,721
Net debt® (B FEE0 5,314 10,428 15,492 6,111 9,844
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 3.4 3.1 2.7 3.2 35
Net gearing ratio® FEARBELERO 15.6% 33.2% 57.4% 19.4% 28.5%
Inventory turnover period (day)” FERSEH (X&) 296 299 381 312 272
Return on equity® A 7K [B] 2 & © 12.3% 14.9% 11.1% 19.6% 19.9%
(4) Bank balances and cash included (4) BRERTEHRRRES
(6) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents (5) RITERREREEZLAE(HBRREERASZEY)
(6) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents, divided by total equity 6) RITERRFCEBEZATHBRESRBESESEY) RUAESGE
(7) Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided (7) BMREBAGFELK(TREBREMEBRIAFANHEERA - BILA365

by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366
(8) Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year

Overview
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HBZE3A3MALEE BEART BHEER BEER BEER BEAR
Operating cash flows before LEEASEERILE 6,879 7,774 9,912 11,672 11,984
movements in working capital Bean=E
Net cash from (used in) KEEBME(FTR) 2,851 8,431 8,364 10,476 13,938
operating activities B FH
Net cash from (used in) BEESE (FTA) (1,577) (1,222) (1,025) (693) (1,458)
investing activities ReFHE
Net cash from (used in) REEBE (FTE) (1,753) (7,212) (7,653) (11,188) (3,793)
financing activities REFHE
Net increase (decrease) in RERIREEEY (479) (3) (314) (1,404) 8,688
cash and cash equivalents AN GRLA ) FEE
Capital expenditure BEAMAX (1,084) (1,392) (973) (839) (1,531)
Pro forma free cash flows® HEEHBES RO 3,019 4,100 5,208 6,646 10,901
(9) Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, (9) WEEHRE(FIARSIEACHEES HEUTRHE E4AHIRE
capital expenditure and net movements for gold loans SEEFE
For the year ended 31 March HZE3AZMBLEE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Mainland China ] (A it
SSSG FEHEEE 8.0% 3.4% (15.1)% 31.9% 11.1%
SSS volume growth RIEHEER 1.2% (3.3)% (24.0)% 8.2% 7.6%
Hong Kong & Macau of China B & B & BR Y
SSSG FEHEEE 10.2% 8.7% (38.7)% (41.3)% 24.7%
SSS volume growth REHESER 6.1% 1.3% (43.5)% (42.9)% 51.0%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE (4280
Mainland China B At 13,416,000 14,518,000 12,699,000 15,893,000 22,118,000
Hong Kong & Macau of Chinaand B %% - E®PIE 3,169,000 3,390,000 2,392,000 1,189,000 1,674,000
other markets Himis
As at 31 March ®3A31A 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
POS distribution!" ZEESHO
Mainland China AR A i 2,449 2,988 3,701 4,452 5,764
Hong Kong, China FREES 80 82 87 82 76
Macau, China AR P 19 19 18 18 19
Taiwan, China FEEE 22 22 18 18 20
Cambodia SR - 1 1 1 1
Japan B 2 3 3 1 1
Korea e 7 9 9 7 7
Malaysia BRAER 2 4 4 4 5
Philippines JEREF - - 1 1 1
Singapore s 1 2 4 4 5
Thailand EEs - - 1 1 1
United States EEs 3 2 1 1
Vietnam HE - 1 1 1 1
Total 1t 2,585 3,134 3,850 4,591 5,902
(10) SIS and CIS excluded (10)  BIEJE R 5 R N EAE

M B SRR A S ER

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
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MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

T2RENRES

GOVERNANCE

PTIN
&8

Institutional Investor 2021 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings —

Rest of Asia — Consumer/ Discretionary

Institutional Investor 2021 & All-Asia Executive Team
BT - M E M E (BRPBARE) - EXFEHERER
e Most Honoured Company — 1°t place

e Best CEO - Combined — Kent Wong — 1%t place

e Best CFO — Combined — Hamilton Cheng — 1%t place

e Best IR Professional — Combined — Danita On — 2" place
e Best IR Program — Combined — 2" place

e Best ESG - Combined — 2" place

o RRXEENA-F—%

EITHER - 8 -BRE-%8—%

o REERMBHE -HFE -URE-F—%F
TREEMEEE -6 -RRR-F=4
EREEMERTE -GFE -F=F

ERE HEREAR-HFA-F_-%

L L= I

LACP 2020 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
LACP 2020 R ERFHRAE

e Gold Award

e Top 50 Chinese Reports

e Top 80 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)

e Technical Achievement Award

o &%

o HELOARPIHE

o DAMIEZEBOARMRE

o TR ELEE

The International Annual Report Design Awards 2021

2021 BEIBR E3RER RT K8

e Silver Award (Retail — Integrated Presentation: Annual
Report)

e Bronze Award (Overall Presentation: Sustainability Report)

o RE(TEXEK -HFEET  FWM)

o ME(ARAET  AIIFBEERRE)

Annual Report 2022
2022 F$§

11" Asian Excellence Award 2021
FT—JEmMEMAE2021

Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations) — Kent Wong
Asia’'s Best CFO (Investor Relations) — Hamilton Cheng
Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On
Asia’s Best CSR

Best Investor Relations Company
TNFETRER(KREERER) - 58K
TNZEERUBEE(REEMER) - BN
REREEBEEE - ZRR

DNmEMEEEDRE

REREEBRRDLE

LACP 2020 Vision Awards Sustainability Report Competition
LACP 2020 RER A HEBERBEARE

Gold Award

Top 50 Chinese Reports

Top 80 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)
Technical Achievement Award

Gk

HKESOAR X HmE

DARMIE R EBOARE

BRI B Bt 82

ARC Awards 2021
ARC K #2021

Bronze Award (Traditional Annual Report: Jewelry)

Bronze Award (PDF Version of Annual Report: Sustainability
Report: Hong Kong)

R (ERFR : KE)

42 (PDFMRER : AIRFEHERS - &)

Major Awards and Recognitions

T RBANGEA
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GOVERNANCE

TN
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2021 Asia-Pacific Stevie® Awards
202153 - K FEFRCOK
e Award for Innovation in Annual Reports — Bronze

o FEMEEIHE - i

Hong Kong Sustainability Award 2020/ 21

B AFEBRR 2020/ 21

e Organization Award (Large Organizations Category) —
Certificate of Excellence

o ISR (CKEBMESR) - M

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2021
EH AR FMAE 2021

e Main Board (Large-Cap)

o FiR(KMIE)

2021 HKMA Best Annual Reports Awards

BEREEEERS 20N FREFRILE

e “General” Category — Honourable Mention

e Best Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Award (Retail)

o [IW¥]E-ERFR

o RERKE HEREREHBMER(TE)

Best Corporate Governance and ESG Awards 2021

BRECEEARRESG K 2021

e Corporate Governance Awards — Non-Hang Seng
Index (Large Market Capitalization) Category

o (EERE - FEHRKMKRAR (KME)AH

Overview

73

CORPORATE AND BRANDING
5 R

JWA Awards 2021
2021 FE JWA K
e Brand of the Year — Retail

o FEMBAR-TEX

2021 Effie Awards Greater China
2021 KA ERIIER
e Industrial Digitalization: Service & Marketing —
Pan-Internet — Bronze Effie
e Influencer Marketing: Private Traffic Marketing — Bronze Effie
o EXHT: RBEEH - ZEHE - R
o EREMIE TS - W

2021 New Growth — China New Growth e Digital
Pioneers of 2021
2021 HEIHTIE R o BF (b EiEsE

SERVICE
AR %5

HKRMA Service Talent Award 2021
AEBTEEEHI A LR 2021

e The Best Training Award (Team Award) — Gold Award
e The Best Team Award (Team Award) — Bronze Award

e Individual Award Winner — Junior Frontline Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Bronze Award

e [ndividual Award Winner — Junior Frontline Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Outstanding Performance Award

e Excellent Service Star

e My Favorite Outstanding Service Retail Brand (Top 10)

o HEHIIE(BEBKER) - 25

o HELEKMEE(EKEEE) - i

o AABRIBEESE - RERA (B RIKEEHR) - 0

o EARIBEESE - EER (E&RERKEEAR) — EHRIREE

o BERBZE

s KHREF+AGRERBZERE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



TECHNOLOGY
B

HKIE MIS Industry Award 2021

2021 FRBIRMESRE TERRFIBILER
e Smart Manufacturing Award — Gold

o DREBLEAME - $8%

Dingge Awards 2021 Digital Transformation
Pioneer List

2021 RER - RN ERTHE

e Operation Pioneer of the Year

o FEBLERIMELE

Retail Innovation Award 2021
2021 BEZERK A AR
e Best Retail Innovation — Digital Transformation Award

o I EATEA 4%

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
HEBEEREIE

GLOBAL INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
IRKEHEX

HKMA Award for Excellence in Training and

Development 2021

BEEEEEERE 2021 FREBEEIRBRER

e Excellence in Future Talent Development —
Special Award

o RRAFBERFHIE

Asia Recruitment Awards 2021

ao MR EE K 28 2021

e Best Graduate Recruitment Programme — Bronze
o HEEFELBEGE - R

More awards
on our Group website
BB S E® TR
FEZ2HEBRETN

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series
BEAFERROEERRT

e Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index

e Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
e Hang Seng ESG 50 Index

o BAUFEERLEEH

o BAMFEERLEEEREN

o B4 ESGH0EH

Hong Kong Green Awards 2021

BEBEELERE2021

e Environmental, Health and Safety Award
(Large Corporation) — Silver

o HMERRZEMEB(KNEMGE)- R

Annual Report 2022
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WWEF Hong Kong: Low Carbon
Manufacturing Programme
HREAESER RN T | KRREE
e Platinum Label

s HEERE

CDP Climate Change Questionnaire 2021 — Rating: B
CDP RIz#Z LR EFE 2021 - ¥4 ' B

CDP Water Security Questionnaire 2021 — Rating: B-
CDP kK% E 2021 - 34k © B-

Major Awards and Recognitions
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRESE

“As the market remains uncertain, Chow Tai Fook
continues to move forward against the tide.
We are poised to turn crises into opportunities,
growing our business without compromise
on quality while further expanding our
retail network and accelerating

the development of smart retail.”

[MiZKERESNEERZR - BRAIN
e R R R ROVB KB IMAI{T
BERPRENBIBEE - ARES
REBNFEFER  (KER# &5
IHREEEBRNREZZEMT - |

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry E3sR&t18+
Chairman £ /&

’| 2 Chairman’s Statement Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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In year 2021 we saw COVID-19 variants continuing to ravage the
world, with geopolitical risks added to the mix. These
developments have caused uncertainties in the global market.
Along with our goals to drive steady growth, business resilience,
and breakthroughs in innovation, we are committed to
implementing the Dual-Force Strategy and enlarge our market
share. In FY2022, we exceeded our annual retail network
expansion target. By opening new stores at emerging retail
hotspots and penetrating into lower tier cities in Mainland China
(the “Mainland”), we are able to deliver quality products and
services right to our customers’ doorsteps. In addition, our
accelerated digitalisation efforts are yielding remarkable results,
with our smart retail and manufacturing capabilities advancing at
full steam.

During FY2022, the Group’s revenue rose by 41.0% year-on-year
to HK$98,938 million and its core operating profit surged 15.9% to
HK$10,002 million year-on-year. Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company grew by 11.4% to HK$6,712 million, while
earnings per share was HK$0.67. The Board has proposed a final
dividend of HK$0.28 per share, bringing the full-year dividend to
HK$0.50. The full-year payout ratio in FY2022 approximated 74.5%.

Chow Tai Fook has always been leveraging on the support from
the motherland and its massive consumer market. This year, the
Central Government has continued to push forward with policies
such as rural revitalisation and common prosperity, which will
improve the livelihood of the lower-income population and further
expand the proportion of the middle-income groups, ultimately
achieving a moderately prosperous society, and unleashing a new
driving force to the economy. We endure to enhance our market
development strategies as well as drive innovation in our product
design and craftsmanship, in response to changes in consumer
needs and behaviour in the Mainland. We also put our strengths
into play to promote Chinese traditional culture and craftsmanship,
as well as to support young people to unleash their innovation and
entrepreneurial dreams. With the macro-trends such as bolstering
the rural economy and the “China-chic” concept gaining traction,
Chow Tai Fook sees enormous opportunities for retail growth and
expansion in the Mainland.
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Hong Kong retail sales is expected to remain subdued in the short-
term as the fifth wave of the epidemic continues to take hold of
the city. In Macau, the situation is more upbeat in light of the
gradual stabilisation of the pandemic in the city. Our Macau
business has essentially recovered to pre-pandemic level. Given
the strong retail foundation and comprehensive sales infrastructure
in Hong Kong and Macau, we expect business to rebound steadily
as the market recovers with the easing of social distancing
measures in the near future.

Chow Tai Fook is well-positioned to expand its omni-channel
retailing portfolio. We have been optimising our smart retail
applications to capture business opportunities arising from the
disruption of the pandemic. Meanwhile, we are constantly utilising
data analysis to discover actionable insights into the market and
operational changes, so as to make timely business decisions.
Beyond that, we continue to enhance our production capacity and
efficiency with automation. Such investment empowers us to
create a synergistic industry chain that provides steady supply and
enables swift responses to market needs.

At Chow Tai Fook, we believe Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") is essential in maintaining our competitive
edge as the Group grows and develops. It is imperative that we
fulfil our social responsibilities through our operations to give back
to communities and societies. In response to the Central
Government's carbon neutrality goals, we have set measurable
targets to reduce our carbon footprint. Through our design
incubation space, Loupe, we are dedicated to nurturing talent in

the industry and passing on the heritage of jewellery making.

Lastly, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, investors, business partners and customers for their
trust and unwavering support. | thank my fellow Board members
for their wise counsel as well as the management team and all
staff for their deep commitment. We will continue to uphold our
corporate philosophy of “Nurturing Bliss with Sincerity, Now and
Forever” to create more values for our shareholders and the
society at large, as we work towards becoming the most trusted

jewellery group in the world.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, China, 9 June 2022

Chairman’s Statement
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1 HEARTS ON FIRE Aerial Collection & Lorelei Collection
HEARTS ON FIRE Aerial 27| % Lorelei &7l

2 T MARK diamonds empowered by technology for
authenticity
T MARK S8R BHEAR 88 - FRRAA

3 Classic ® HUA Collection
BREER S5 o HFERT|

4 18K/ 750 white gold emerald diamond ring
18K/ 750 H B E A EABAAIE

5 Western wedding jewellery
AR EGEE

6 18K/ 750 gold diamond jewellery
18K/ 750 H & BERAEA H

7 18K/ 750 white gold ruby and diamond ring
18K/ 750 H B E& KA EABAMIE

Annual Report 2022
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18K/ 750 white gold sapphire and diamond bracelet
18K/ 750 B E & RAEEAE AT

18K/ 750 white gold diamond rings
18K/ 750 B & & & R AR B A IE
18K/ 750 white gold diamond bracelet

18K/ 750 A | & RN A F 32

Classic ® HUA Collection
FREER K o EART

T MARK Touch Collection
T MARKAEZR ZR 7

HEARTS ON FIRE Lorelei Collection & Hayley Paige Collection
HEARTS ON FIRE Lorelei %% & Hayley Paige %7/

Chinese wedding jewellery

B E

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report ’I 7
EEACIE SRS



MANAGING DIRECTORS' STRATEGIC REPORT
ESRKERBES

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
ERELE

Managing Director
ERAKE

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
PRitt B 5E4

Managing Director
EEAKIE

The global market remained uncertain during FY2022, yet we 0020 MEE » 2 TEKARFETHBEREEZ A
marched ahead steadfastly with our Dual-Force Strategy and B REEEH N R ERIT WS EBENS XA
achieved a significant revenue growth year-on-year. R K -

As we journey towards Chow Tai Fook's centennial milestone, we EENAFRENERD BRARHIE=EREER
are committed to bringing a sense of eternal bliss to our O KIBETE o B SFEERM YL I 3| 48 95
customers. It is this long-standing impetus that will usher in a new BTN —EEaENHRE -

chapter for the Group, as it looks ahead to the next century.

’| 8 Managing Directors’ Strategic Report Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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OUR DUAL-FORCE STRATEGY H IRy & 1 RER

EHEE FRIKERAER

Deploy “Dual Forces” to develop a jewellery ecosystem

RETAIL EXPANSION
STRATEGY

SMART RETAIL
STRATEGY

BERB BWABE
Expand the business

and get closer
to customers

W s 88 R T &
Digital empowerment
and experience
upgrade

G Y

~—
%

HEHNZE=RXIB

Nurturing Bliss with Sincerity, Now and Forever

In FY2022, we further implemented the Group's Dual-Force 2020 BEFE HMEBEELEH NKRBOMAR
Strategy. For retail expansion strategy, we continued to branch out toBBH — TEEREBRIE - RMHERES
further in Mainland China (the “Mainland”) while improving in-store A ([ A D) R EBIRE - B EEDER R &N
ambience and product differentiation. For smart retail strategy, our ER=Et -ZEFHH — FTETEXKITE  BRAHEE
focus has been on exploring new online channels, introducing RERZFLFRE HEEZBRLEREBERR
more hot-selling products and e-commerce exclusive product P URBIURENLEEEERE  RABTER -
collections, and cultivating a stronger private domain ecosystem to AR BRMBEGRSE2ENEY  #HHTILE
deliver a better customer experience. Meanwhile, the Group has B RESEEBRRER -

ramped up its capacity for smart manufacturing and promoted

digitalisation to facilitate our rapid business growth.

Annual Report 2022 Managing Directors’ Strategic Report ’I 9
2022 F#§ BEHERLBRBERE
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Through the Dual-Force Strategy, our aim is to deliver a more
complete, multi-faceted and hassle-free shopping experience for
customers and further expand our foothold while upholding our
corporate philosophy of “Nurturing Bliss with Sincerity, Now and
Forever”. Therefore, while we persist in our search for business
breakthroughs, the Group's sustainable development continues to
be underpinned by the four guiding principles of Our Centennial
Commitment. These are neatly summarised by the acronym CODE
— which stands for Craftsmanship, Obligation, Delight and the
Environment. As we journey towards Chow Tai Fook's centennial
milestone, we are committed to bringing a sense of eternal bliss to
our customers. It is this long-standing impetus that will usher in a
new chapter for the Group, as it looks ahead to the next century.

e |n FY2022, the world remained shrouded by the pandemic and
geopolitical uncertainties. The Central Government has
implemented effective public health measures to ensure the
safety of the people and the steady growth of the nation’s
economy. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, the country recorded a GDP growth of 8.1% in 2021. For
the long-term, we believe the Mainland will continue to fine-
tune its preventive and control measures for COVID-19 in order
to minimise the impact on its economy and the lives of its
people. Meanwhile, domestic demand is expected to benefit
from the “dual circulation” development pattern and the 14"
Five-Year Plan, which will stimulate the domestic consumer
market to achieve continuous and stable growth.

e The National Bureau of Statistics of China revealed that the total
retail sales of consumer goods in 2021 increased 12.5% year-
on-year while the retail sales of gold, silver, and jewellery rose
by 29.8%. In January to March of 2022, we saw further growth
in these two retail figures, albeit at a more modest rate due to
the resurgence of the pandemic.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Driven by comprehensive urbanisation plans, coupled with
favourable government policies and infrastructure improvement,
the lower tier cities and rural areas will see sustained growth as
consumption potential is unleashed, and broader market
opportunities emerge in Tier Il and IV cities. During the financial
year, various jewellery brands have ventured into the lower tier
markets with a view of capturing the massive untapped demand
of rural consumers for jewellery products.

For FY2023, we expect that retail market performance in the
Mainland may still be affected by the pandemic and other
macro-economic factors. Having said so, we believe that with
the support of national policies, the retail and jewellery sector
will be able to grow sustainably over the next few years.

Hong Kong & Macau of China and other
markets

In FY2022, Hong Kong was weighed by the closure of major
border crossings and the further spread of COVID-19. Despite
improved market sentiments and a gradual recovery of the
consumer market from April to December 2021, the fifth wave
of the pandemic in 2022 has dealt a heavy blow to the retail
industry. According to industry statistics, jewellery retail sales
for the period of April 2021 to March 2022 in Hong Kong
increased by 14.9% year-on-year, but recorded a drop since
February 2022.

As for Macau, the retail environment saw an improvement
during the period given its pandemic situation remained
relatively under control. Overall retail sales of watches and
jewellery in the region has largely returned to pre-pandemic

level.

On Hainan Island, retail performance for FY2022 remained
promising thanks to the favourable offshore duty-free shopping
quota introduced by the Central Government.

With the pandemic persisting and international travel yet to
return to normal, the travel retail market in Asia-Pacific
continued to be under considerable pressure during the financial
year. Nonetheless, as more countries start lifting their
restrictions, we believe that local retail operations in certain

regions are poised for a turnaround in the near future.
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Mainland China

Retail expansion strategy

In FY2022, we expanded our market share in the Mainland with
the net opening of 1,361 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS,
as we gained momentum and exceeded the Group's annual
POS expansion target.

As the rural economy grows, we anticipate abundant
opportunities in Tier |l and below cities and towns. In the
financial year, our expansion focused on collaborations with
more regional distributors and franchisees while introducing
various supporting policies to help franchisees reduce cost and
increase their revenue, as to achieve our market expansion
goals together.

By further penetrating into lower tier cities, we were able to
bring our quality products and services to other areas of the
country, in line with our guiding principle “Delight — People
Focused”. In doing so, we provided consumers with products
of guaranteed quality at a reasonable price, allowing them to
gain a sense of bliss and satisfaction in the pursuit of their
desired lifestyles through the love of jewellery.

Aside from market expansion, the Group also delivered optimal
shopping experiences to customers by curating new immersive
scenarios and reinventing our in-store ambience. For example,
we unveiled the diamond themed D-HOUSE, and opened
exclusive zones for the CTF ® HUA Collection, as well as unique
experience stores.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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Smart retail strategy

The Group's e-commerce displayed outstanding RSV growth of
63.0% in FY2022, which is largely attributed to the robust
performance of our public domains. Consumer sentiment
increased on both third-party marketplaces and our self-operated
e-commerce platform. In 2HFY2022, these e-commerce
platforms saw a marked increase in unique visitors and sales
conversion rate as compared to THFY2022. We also ventured
into new channels which helped injecting new growth
momentum into our smart retail business during the financial

year, such as Douyin and Pinduoduo.

In the meantime, we cultivated a stronger private domain
ecosystem where we utilised smart retail applications to
enhance customer experience.

In response to the volatile COVID-19 situation in the Mainland,
particularly during 4QFY2022, we onboarded various smart retail
tools to assist our frontline staff in contacting and providing
services to customers in the midst of the pandemic. Despite
the slowdown in offline sales in the fourth quarter, our
CloudSales 365, which has successfully connected with over 8
million customers as at 31 March 2022, recorded a double-digit
RSV growth during the quarter. Additionally, we also found that
the services provided by our frontline staff through CloudSales
365 resulted in about twice as many repeat purchase as those
usually made by Chow Tai Fook members. This gave us great

confidence in the development of our smart retail applications.

In the financial year, we continued to expand the use of K Dollar,
which now has country-wide coverage and can deepen our

connection with our customers.

As of 31 March 2022, there were 4.2 million Chow Tai Fook
members in the Mainland, with their repeat purchase accounting
for 32.0% of the RSV in FY2022.
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Hong Kong & Macau of China and other
markets

The Group is committed to maintaining its market-leading
position in the Hong Kong and Macau market. For FY2022,
Macau was the key driver to our overall sales in this market.
Due to the low base of comparison in the preceding financial
year, the Hong Kong market achieved notable sales growth in
FY2022 during the period where the pandemic situation was
relatively stable. However, full-year overall sales still fell back
due to restrictions on POS operations.

Amid a stabilised pandemic situation, we rolled out a number of
promotion campaigns and member exclusive events while
participating in promotional events at various shopping malls to
meet local demand.

In FY2022, our retail network consolidation was primarily
concentrated in Hong Kong's touristic areas. The future retalil
network development in Hong Kong will be dependent on the
performance and leasing terms of individual stores.

With regard to other markets, in FY2022, we focused on
strengthening our duty-free retail network in Hainan to enhance
our services to domestic visitors impacted by international travel
restrictions. In the long-term, we will keep abreast of the
development of duty-free shopping policies in the Mainland and
continue to work closely with various duty-free operators.

The Asia-Pacific region was still coping with the pandemic
situation which disrupted business operations in the region.
During the financial year, we partnered with third-party
e-commerce or membership platforms in multiple regions to
increase the consumer touchpoints of our brands. While
adapting to the policy changes for each market, our short-term
strategy is to focus on markets with stronger local retail growth
potential. As such, we chose to open new POS in Malaysia and
Singapore during FY2022.
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In Hong Kong and Macau, we have been leveraging smart retail
applications proactively in order to enhance omni-channel
retailing experience for our customers. With these tools, we
were able to offer a wider assortment of exclusive licensed
products that cater to the preferences of new retail customers,
thereby achieving unique product differentiation. Moreover, we
established closer coordination between our physical stores,
CloudSales 365, Cloud Kiosks, and e-commerce platforms to
seamlessly integrate the online and offline shopping experience.
This brings greater ease and convenience for customers when
dealing with constraints on physical shopping.

As of 31 March 2022, Chow Tai Fook had 1.2 million members
in Hong Kong and Macau, with their repeat purchases
accounting for 52.3% of the RSV in FY2022.

As the demands of jewellery market evolved in recent years,
we continue to execute differentiation strategy to make inroads

into diverse customer segments.

For gem-set jewellery, our primary focus has been on promoting
T MARK and HEARTS ON FIRE, while improving the brand
image, product designs, and sales channels. At the same time,
we also offer customers with more diverse product offerings.
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For example, the unique features of T MARK have always been
innovation and its patent technology, which ensure every
T MARK diamond is authentic and traceable. Given the rising
demand among customers for highly personalised jewellery
customisation service, we have in FY2022 added a private
customisation service, named “T MARK PRIVATE",
digital jewellery customisation platform D-ONE in the Mainland.

on our

This exclusive feature is offered with limited availability, allowing
customers to personalise the serial numbers on their T MARK
diamonds for a unique meaning. Apart from offering consumers
the ultimate reassurance in quality and authenticity, T MARK is
also driving the development of the jewellery industry through
innovation. In March this year, T MARK once again incorporated
blockchain technology and launched exclusive celestial-themed
NFT pieces. With the tagline “Happiness is unique like a starry
sky"”, customers are provided a unique NFT that bears a special
meaning for each individual, as part of the brand'’s initiatives to
lead the innovation and digitalisation in the industry. In FY2022,
T MARK contributed 20.7% and 33.2% to our RSV of diamond
products in the Mainland and the Hong Kong and Macau region

respectively.

For HEARTS ON FIRE, known for its exceptional and consistent
diamond cuts, we will continue to grow and build it as a global
luxury jewellery brand. In the financial year, we embarked on a
global brand renewal programme and focused on strengthening
our foundation and re-energising the brand through our
products. We refreshed and relaunched one of our most popular
collections, the ILLA Collection, as a pilot for our customers in
China. Marketing initiatives included both online and offline
strategies as well as collaborations with KOLs to increase brand
awareness, where we achieved remarkable customer response
and sales results. HEARTS ON FIRE is currently available in
regions including North America, Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan regions. All regions recorded exceptional
performance in FY2022, especially North America.
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During the financial year, on the D-ONE platform, we included a
number of highly customisable collections, such as Moments
Collection which features a modular concept that allows
customers to choose components from a portfolio of modules
and create a ring with their personalised design. Currently, the
RSV of D-ONE accounts for 3.8% of the Group’s overall
diamond sales in the Mainland.

For the wedding market in the Mainland, we launched
engagement and wedding bands that tell captivating stories
with exquisite packaging designs, and cater to various special
moments. For example, the Guardian of Life diamond ring
collection is specially designed with marriage proposals in mind.
On the gold jewellery and products front, we continued to
enhance our CTF ® HUA Collection in the Mainland by expanding
the product range, seeking new crossover collaborations, and
opening exclusive zones for the Collection. In FY2022, the
CTF * HUA Collection contributed 42.1% to the overall RSV of
our gold jewellery and products.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, the Group released a
selection of fixed price gold products that feature local
characteristics in a bid to create greater product differentiation
and more unigue offerings.

For our online channels, we launched hot-selling products and
exclusive, differentiated e-commerce product collections, so as
to cater the diverse needs of customers and create trending
topics to boost sales. After continuous product adjustment, in
FY2022, the RSV of online exclusive products in e-commerce
platforms in the Mainland already rose to approximately 55%
from 50% in the same period last year.

Another key strategy of the Group has been to partner with
iconic IPs, so as to bring a wider range of distinctive products to

consumers.
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The Group continued to push forward with its smart
manufacturing initiatives in support of its retail expansion
strategy and to meet increasing production demand. By
optimising production processes and intensifying our R&D
efforts, we managed to raise the automation rate of our
production lines from about 14% in FY2020 to 35% in the
financial year, which was a significant boost to production
efficiency.

Equipped with an advanced logistics and delivery system,
around 40% of the total product distribution volume of the
Group for FY2022 was handled by our automated logistics
centre, ensuring that customer orders and replenishment
requests from frontline operations can be fulfiled efficiently.

With the growing variety and complexity of customisable design
styles offered on the D-ONE platform, we not only deliver
simple designs through an express 24-hour customisation
service, but also more sophisticated personalisation that
provides greater design flexibility. Some of these products can
be completed in 10 days, which is half the production time from
before. This process involves technical breakthroughs of
modular production. Taking the Moments Collection on D-ONE
for example, we divide the design into various components and
then reassemble them based on the customer’s requirements
during production.

We attach great importance to R&D enhancement and
innovation in manufacturing. In FY2022, the production
capacity per craftsman was increased by approximately 40%
year-on-year.

As for our Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, the first
phase has gone into production while construction for the
second phase has commenced. More manufacturing and
logistics facilities will be built on the site to meet increased
sales demand in the future.

In order to complement our capacity in various processes and
boost production during peak seasons, we have put forward the
idea of the "Extended Ecosystem” where we invite our
suppliers to manufacture jewellery for us by using our
production facilities in Wuhan. This will further promote
productive engagement between our suppliers and ultimately
establish a jewellery ecosystem.
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Operations

Intellectual capital and corporate culture

Our employees
BAMET
81.6%

As at 31 March 2022
7A2022% 38318

Total number of employees HEIR

ETH%

EhEFELETIL

Number of employees by reportable segment

REU2RSEBEAFHETLHEY

18.4%

Mainland China

Hong Kong & Macau of China
and other markets

TEEE  PERMRAMT S

Number of employees by function

28,400+

58.5%

HEERS NS TR

18.1% 23.4%

Sales

Upskilling and preparing employees for the future

e \We are committed to building the company into a learning
organisation with innovative talent development initiatives that
encourage employees to actively share their knowledge and
experience, learn from one another, and drive each other to

excel.

e For example, we have set up a knowledge base “Intellectual
Elite”, which brings together the intellectual wisdom of our
intrapreneurs and where the management can share successful
business case studies and industry know-how through videos.
These contents are easily accessible by the staff anywhere and
anytime and will benefit them significantly in their personal and
professional development. The videos will also document the
development of the company’s management strategies over
the years. As a whole, the database is a treasure trove of
invaluable insights into the Group and the industry at large.

e Meanwhile, the Group has also launched the online
livestreaming platform “Intellectual Practice” where employees
from different areas of operations are invited to share their
experiences and insights from work each week for 30 minutes.
By encouraging sharing and learning, we hope our employees
will inspire and stimulate one another, as well as apply their
learnings in their work, so as to outperform themselves and
take their professional skills to the next level.
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To foster knowledge and cultural exchange, the Group has
organised the “Soaring Scheme" trans-regional work experience
programme, where employees from the Hong Kong and Macau
region embarked on a working and learning trip for 18 months in
the Mainland to widen their horizons. During the programme,
participants were assigned to various parts of the country,
including Northeast, North, and South China, where they were
being trained and mentored across diverse roles from the
frontlines to backend operations. They also had opportunities to
expand their financial and legal knowledge, as well as hone their
management, internal control and presentation skills, as part of
the Group’s ongoing initiative to develop well-rounded talents.

Embodying the corporate culture: vision, mission, and

values

The Group has put in place a block leave policy to strengthen
corporate governance and fraud prevention. This policy also
empowers designated managerial staff to set good examples to
uphold our risk management culture.

To cultivate a greater sense of identification with the corporate
culture, the Group has designed an employee experience
journey called “Best of Me! Best of Us!”, to encourage each
employee to channel passion into their work and life and be the
best versions of themselves.

From the moment an employee joined us, we emphasise on the
quality of their experience at every point of contact, and make
every effort to infuse the Group's values in every stage of their
journey with the Group.

To that end, the Group added staff benefits such as Family
Friendly Leave, My Development Leave and Global Experience
Leave to help employees achieve better work-life balance and a
blissful lifestyle, as well as to broaden their global horizons.

Additionally, we have improved the benefits for employees in
Hong Kong, such as their annual leave entitlement, maternity
and paternity leave pay, as well as monetary gifts for special
occasions, medical insurance coverage, and training allowances.

Besides sourcing for and providing protective supplies to
employees during the pandemic, the Group has given family
care leave to staff in Hong Kong to allow them to look after their

families in times of need.
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Data, IT system and infrastructure

e We continue to accelerate our technological and digital
transformation journey to support our Dual-Force Strategy. The
goals of our innovation investment are to solidify our position as

the market leader and to shape the future.

e \We are in the progress of upgrading the CTFMall, Smart Tray,
Cloud Kiosk and the Group’'s CRM systems to improve online
and offline customer experiences. The update covers not only
the relevant application interfaces, but also our IT infrastructure
and cybersecurity capability for better system connectivity and
availability as well as information security.

e We are also implementing an automated metadata repository at
the backend to enhance our capabilities for business intelligence
analysis, and for measuring and reporting on our sales and

marketing efforts.

In FY2022, the market conditions were more unpredictable than
the previous year as the world continued to be ravaged by the
pandemic and shrouded in global economic uncertainties.
However, the Group remained cautiously optimistic while
moving forward steadfastly in the implementation of its Dual-
Force Strategy.

Despite possible short-term disruptions to the Mainland economy,
we are confident about the mid- to long-term recovery of the
Mainland market. The policies of the Central Government in
promoting rural revitalisation and common prosperity, among
others, will further galvanise businesses in the Mainland. These
factors combined will benefit the Group's retail expansion
strategies in the Mainland as we strengthen our collaborations with
franchisees, and tap further into the lower tier markets. Meanwhile,
we will work towards greater product differentiation in order to
build a more diverse customer base. By leveraging technology, we
will curate and deliver extraordinary customer experience and
optimise our use of smart retail applications, while staying up to
date with consumer needs through data insights to provide the
most suitable products and services for each customer. We have
always believed that high quality service will bring the greatest
satisfaction to customers. As such, we have set FY2023 as the
“Year of Service with a Smile” to reflect our goal to provide
customers with even more thoughtful services.
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In Hong Kong, POS development will be dependent on the sales
performance and leasing status of each store, however, operation
in Hong Kong will take some time to normalise. We will continue
to organise various events to better engage and interact with our
customers and enhance our use of smart retail applications to
provide stellar customer service and experience. As for Macau,
overall retail sales of watches and jewellery largely returned to pre-
pandemic level as the local pandemic situation remained relatively
under control. Nonetheless, we will keep a close watch on future
developments as there are still uncertainties due to the epidemic

in short-term.

In the meantime, our short-term focus for the other markets will be
on regions with robust domestic demand. As for the long-term, we
will revive our expansion plans after international travel resumes.
The Group also sees massive opportunities in the mainland duty-
free market given the heightened restrictions on international travel
due to the pandemic, as well as favourable government policies.
Therefore, duty-free shopping is an area that we will be exploring
in great depth.

Despite the multiple uncertainties that lie ahead, including macro-
economic factors, the fluctuating prices of raw materials, and shifts
in consumer spending habits, we remain highly resilient and fully
committed to our corporate philosophy of “Nurturing Bliss with
Sincerity, Now and Forever” and the four guiding principles, aiming
to build a better future together.

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
Managing Director

Hong Kong, China, 9 June 2022
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW
RIR[OEE

The global market remained uncertain during FY2022 in the midst
of geopolitical risks and lingering pandemic. Yet, the Group's
businesses in Mainland China (the “Mainland”) and Hong Kong &
Macau of China enjoyed a decent recovery. In FY2022, the Group’s
revenue was supported by the resilient demand for gold jewellery
and products and our retail network expansion in the Mainland. We
opened a net of 1,361 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS there
in the financial year. Our smart retail business in the Mainland also
demonstrated promising growth. Hong Kong and Macau still
remained on a steadily recovering trajectory, thanks to the
stabilisation in the local consumption in Hong Kong and reviving
tourist spending in Macau.

The Group's adjusted gross profit margin declined by 480 basis
points during FY2022, mainly attributable to a higher sales
contribution from our wholesale business and gold jewellery and
products. Besides, approximately 45% to 50% gold products sold
during THFY2021 was not covered by gold loans. They enjoyed a
higher than normal margin amid the rise of the international gold
price during FY2021, resulted in a high base of comparison.
Nevertheless, thanks to our well contained SG&A, the Group's
core operating profit increased by 15.9% year-on-year. Its margin
stayed at 10.1%, the same as the first half despite the negative
impact brought by the new wave of epidemic in the last quarter of
the financial year.

An unrealised loss on gold loans was recorded in FY2022 versus a
gain in FY2021. Coupled with a lessened impact of assets and
goodwill impairments made this financial year and a lower effective
tax rate, profit attributable to shareholders increased by 11.4%

year-on-year.
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Revenue

Revenue by reportable segment ZTI2H A EBEISHEELE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLFE

(HK$ million B&E#ET)

YoY change
El4 414
98,938 a 41.0%
100,000
90,000
80,000 70,164
20,000 e 66,661
: 56,751
60,000 87.9% A 45.6%
50,000
63.7%
40,000 62.2% B 85.1%
8%
30,000 Mainland China FElAith
20,000 H- Kong & M f Chi
. % ong Kong acau o ina
10,000 37.8% 6.3 28.2% 14.9% 12.1% - 14.7% and other markets
o ) ) PEIEE - RERFIRE TS
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MERFE MBRFE
b T¥EFE
Revenue (HK$ million) EEE(FBERT) 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 B1:4:- 14 E1:4:- %14
Mainland China B A 3 21,216 38,482 38,550 48,382 a81.7% a257%
Hong Kong & Macau of FEES - PFEIEM R 3,457 7,009 5,636 6,370 4 63.0% v 9.1%
China and other markets Hihmi5
Overall ®ee 24,673 45,491 44,186 54,752 a791% a20.4%

e The Group's revenue soared 41.0% to HK$98,938 million in d

FY2022, which was largely led by the resilient demand for gold

jewellery and products and our wholesale business in the

Mainland. Revenue grew at a compound annual growth rate

("CAGR") of approximately 14% from FY2019.

e Revenue from the Mainland demonstrated a robust increase of .

45.6% in the financial year. Its contribution to the Group's

revenue amounted to 87.9%.

¢ |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue escalated by °

63.0% year-on-year in THFY2022. Growth retracted in FY2022

as the resurgent pandemic undermined the customer traffic and
sales in Hong Kong in the fourth quarter of the financial year.

Full year revenue was up by 14.7% for the segment.
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Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees)

RERESHNELE(TOEREE SRR ENEFHHRBFEN)
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

(HK$ million B&iBT)

YoY change
Bl4:14
97,799 a 41.1%
100,000
90,000 20.4% a 19.1%
80,000 69,289
70,000 65,966 '
60,000 57,892 I 2550, 56,250 I 24.1%
o, 5 —
50,000 I 30.0% I 27.4% . . Gem-set, Platinum and
40,000 73.7% a 525% K-gold jewellery
KREER  HERKESE
30,000 68.2%
5 66.1% . —
20,000 64.1% 66.5% Gold jewellery and products
ELHMRER
10,000
0 Watches $E&k
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% of Revenue B 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 1HFY2022 2HFY2022
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery TREER A RKEEH 30.1% 20.9% 22.6% 18.6%
Gold jewellery and products ELEHNE SR 60.9% 72.2% 70.7% 76.1%
Watches fik 9.0% 6.9% 6.8% 5.3%
e All product categories registered a positive revenue growth in o 2022 HEIE - FRAE MBS & EFIIERG FIE
FY2022. Ko

e Gold jewellery and products saw a robust demand throughout .

FY2022, its revenue leaped by 52.5% in the financial year.
Continual success of CTF e HUA Collection and our retail
expansion strategy in lower tier cities also helped boost sales of
the gold products category. Its contribution to the Group's
revenue increased 550 basis points to 73.7% in the financial
year. Within the product category, the contribution of fixed price
gold products was 7.9% (FY2021: 9.1%).

Revenue of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery increased by
19.1% in the financial year, while watches delivered a growth of
9.7%, driven by domestic demand as a result of international
travel restrictions. Growth moderated in 2HFY2022 amid a
temporary supply shortage and a tougher comparison base.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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SSSG

SSSG by major market REETHHESHAEHEER

141.2%

\><°\57 .

110.4%

FEHERR

31.2%/ ° L4 )
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SSS volume SSS volume
SSSG growth SSSG growth
FEEHEERE REHERE FAEHEER FEHEER
Mainland China A B A b A 31.9% A82% ~11.1% A 7.6%
Hong Kong & Macau of China o B I BR P wv413% w429% a247% a51.0%
e A positive growth momentum sustained in the Mainland and o 2022MEFEE=ZFE - WMEEE KRPIRE

Hong Kong and Macau during the first three quarters of the
financial year, while the growth of both markets faced the
challenges posed by the pandemic and a high base in the fourth
quarter.

In the Mainland, SSS was down by 11.3% in 4QFY2022. Full
year SSS registered a decent growth of 11.1%. Separately, the
growth of franchised POS calculated on same store basis was

approximately 23% in the financial year.

In Hong Kong and Macau, SSS leaped by 24.7% in FY2022. SSS
in Hong Kong was up by 7.0% in the financial year despite the
epidemic situation has worsened since February 2022. In
Macau, SSSG was strong at 96.9% during FY2022, driven by a
recovering tourist spending and a stable local consumption.

Sales in Macau also returned to pre-pandemic level.

Annual Report 2022
2022 F 5

ERREHE  EMETSNERNENZEYER
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o NMEFEJEHEN20220 FEEMEE T K
11.3% - 2FRAEHEHEB 1 1%NATBER -
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BIEENR23% -

s ERENEFMMAIEHE

BREFE  NETERERTERFEZNH
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24.7% - #82022F 2 ALREIBEE - FENRA
JEHEE 2022 IRFENLEFT7.0% < BPIIE -
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Profitability

Group %M
For the year ended 31 March Z3A31HLLFE

29.6%
° 28.2%
——
\;.4%
20.4% hd

°
Ne%
QNJ%
°

/.\
) 12.3% [ J

10.0% 10.1%

2020 2021 2022

=mFIEEN

——

Adjusted gross profit margin'" & FR %W EFIRO
——

Selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses ("SG&A”) as a % to revenue
HERDHHRAUR —BRRTBEX ((HERTHER )
it BEa L

——

Core operating profit margin®@ FZE&& A =@

Core operating profit? by reportable segment %9 2R FEBEIFEIEBEEHH @
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A318 LFE
(HK$ million BE&#ET)

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

(1) Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of
unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(2) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in
gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of

9,584
8,226
5,302
4,176
5,096
2,253
4,050 4.282
2,843
591 14: 685 404 2H: 376 418 2H: 228
2H: (94) 1H: 28 1H: 190
2020 2021 2022

its businesses

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Mainland China (2HFY) Bkt (BIBEE THE)
—
Mainland China (1HFY) REIR (BfBEE L3 F)

I

Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets (2HFY)
PEES - FERPIREMTS (MBREETHEF)

—

Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets (1HFY)
REEE - FEIRMREMTS (MBFE E¥EF)

(1) ERABROENRBEEFN X GHRERMBREFAGE)  HBRTES
BEENRERBE (RS NWYE  FARAREHBEEHEEMRT BHE

BRAREBORRED

(2) FEEERENRAAMEF X GHRERMEREFRH) - BEHEERD
EFMREMBENET  RHERTEAY - ARARELSFREBEENE

BEHTRACERBEREBNRRED

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
HHEE BHEE
E¥E FEE
(HKS$ million) (EEBT) 1HFY2021 2HFY2021  1HFY2022  2HFY2022 G329 G143 24
Revenue =3 24,673 45,491 44,186 54,752 A 79.1% a 20.4%
Adjusted gross profit RABENER 8,660 11,127 10,394 12,779 a 20.0% A 14.8%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR 1B B E TR 35.1% 24.5% 23.5% 23.3% w11.6%pts v 1.2% pts
185 7 & BE7E
Other income He g A 347 345 270 523 v 22.1% 4 51.6%
SG&A HERITHFAX (4,928) (6,921) (6,192) (7,772) a 257% A 123%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERTTH G S AT 20.0% 15.2% 14.0% 14.2% w 6.0%pts w 1.0% pts
ERBES 185 7 & BED%
Core operating profit TEE 4,078 4,562 4,472 5,530 A 9.6% a 215%
Core operating profit margin EX 16.5% 10.0% 10.1% 10.1% w 6.4%pts a 0.1% pts
188 2 % 188 7%

Adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 480 basis points in o BB ENER2022 8 BLFE T B 480 1E 24

FY2022, mainly due to a higher sales contribution from
wholesale business and gold jewellery and products as
compared with FY2021.

Core operating profit margin was 10.1%, thanks to our well
In FY2022, core
operating profit increased by 15.9% year-on-year.

contained SG&A and operating leverage.

Between the two segments, the Mainland continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for over 95% of the
Group's core operating profit in FY2022. Its core operating profit
recorded a growth of 16.5% during the financial year.

Core operating profit of Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
also registered a 3.7% increase in FY2022.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 11.4% in FY2022
as an unrealised loss on gold loans was recorded in the financial
year versus a gain last year, coupled with a lessened impact
from assets and goodwill impairments made this year and a
lower effective tax rate. It increased at a CAGR of about 14%
from FY2019.

Annual Report 2022
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T ET2HRMBRS - ARES E N E MO H
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=
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e T gl
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B RS MEBIBI5% °
16.5% B & -

M HFEEARE
FE - HIBR

o 2022BIHEE

o 2022 BEE  REREMEEAIEMI1.4%

VHRFEHSE
e ARSF

BEEERERLY

FER10.1% °

1 BEEBMLTT -

BE FF115.9% °

& F 815
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S R85 3.7 % By FHIE -

SEERERER
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Adjusted gross profit margin EREENERNE

B AL AR EF E (GHIRBEBR 5w S ER)
HEIESN  HERBEBAGNERNENGRE
SEENRERER(WE)NTE  BAEELH

e \We use adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, for .
analysis. It represents gross profit margin generated from the
business after eliminating the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on

gold loans. We believe that this measure better reflects the
operational performance of the Group and is useful for the

BERRREMNEERRRAED TREGHER
e

understanding of the underlying trend of its businesses.

Unrealised loss (gain) FEREE (KE)

For the year ended 31 March HZ3A31HLLEE 2020 2021 2022
Gross profit margin E A& 28.4% 28.6% 22.6%
Unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans B EEREHEE () 1.2% (0.4)% 0.8%
Adjusted gross profit margin KRB ENERN X 29.6% 28.2% 23.4%

We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). The long-term
effect of long and short positions in gold is expected to net out
each other through the sales of gold inventories. However,
when we take a snapshot position, a short-term timing
difference may arise. The unsettled gold loan contracts are

BPMAESEE (FE2AR) REBRBREDN - A
RERSFE(BE2HR)BREDNEBTE - &
SHARNERZEEASeALERESFERE
I EHBERRNFTARRME  AEEL
REMERE RBEHR REENESEES
WERTIBERETERS  MEFLRBAEDSR -
AT AT ENES TN T eETE R -

revalued at market price at the end of the reporting period,
while the gold inventories are not revalued as it is measured at
weighted average cost, unless an impairment indicator exists.

e As at 31 March 2022, there was an unrealised loss of HK$833 °
million arising from such timing difference.

M202243 8310 BEMENEBRHEZELNRE
HBHERBIBEBET -

Movements in adjusted gross profit margin #EFHEENENREE
For the year ended 31 March i Z3A31H L FE
Changes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong & Macau of China and
32.0% other markets mix
HEA - REEE - PEDRF
REMTSHEAEEE
30.0%
28.2% 0-1% Impact from wholesale business
28.0% R EBHTE
I
Impact from jewellery trading
26.0% —— GKEES MR
0.6% . .
24.0% ' 23.4% Changes in product mix
EREeEs
1.3% —
22.0% Changes in gross profit margin
by product in retail business
20.0% ZEEBRERIDNEFNZEE
2021 2022

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e At group level, adjusted gross profit margin declined by 480
basis points during FY2022, mainly attributable to a higher sales
contribution from our wholesale business and gold jewellery
and products. These had an aggregated impact of 300 basis
points on adjusted gross profit margin during the financial year.
Besides, approximately 45% to 50% gold products sold during
THFY2021 was not covered by gold loans. They enjoyed a
higher than normal margin amid the rise of the international gold
price during FY2021, resulted in a high base of comparison.

London gold price ¥ &(E
(US$ per ounce £t &#%a)

2,100
1,900
1,700
1,500
1,300

1,100

REBEEE - 2022 M RFELRHBEELOEMNE T
ABOMEIEE ¥ TEMMMBEXEBURESURERE
mEHERMET - EREARZEREHBEERNE
= N B B S T K 2300 18 25 F o gbsh - B
02N BFEL¥YFHENESERNILNE
50% WIFRBEEERREE - 2021 FRFEREREE
SEBLENBEAT  ZFERNENETENER
Y BHEBRERES °

London gold price

RAEE

Average of T-150/ T-180 days!"
T-150/ T-180 K FHIEM

1.4.2020 1.4.2021

(1) Average of T-150/ T-180 refers to the average gold price of previous 150/180 days on rolling basis,
being a proxy of the average price of our hedged inventories. Average of T-150 days was used for
FY2022 and T-180 days was used for FY2021.

FY2022 Closing price YoY change
W ER 2L

London gold price (0)

AHER a 14.8%

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

31.3.2022

(1) T-150/ T-180 K FH{E 5B EAT 1650/180 KM E L IE + BIERKRRME

YhESFENTYER - 2022 8 BUFZ &% 2021 B BUF Z 9 B 68 5 T-150
AR T-180 X F#E

Average price YoY change

FHERLEE

v 0.2%
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SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment ZTT2RFBEIFIHERITHRHAZ
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

13,964

11,657 11,849
6599, 80.1%
e 75.2%
34.1%
24.8% 19.9%

2020 2021 2022

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITBFAXIGEEELE
For the year ended 31 March 238310 L FE
(HK$ million B&87t)

20.4%
0\16.9%
0\14.1%
°
16,000
14,000 13,964
11,849
12,000 11,557
5.4%
10,000 S, 6.6%
8,000
2.4%
6,000 2.8% 2.8%
= 1.3%
4000 [ 2.7% o s
' 1.6% ag% 0.8%
0, .89 0/
2,000 13% 88 3%
2.9% 25% 2.0%
0
2020 2021 2022

YoY change
Eil=4-314

A 17.9%

A 25.6%

v 5.6%

YoY change
B34 314

a 17.9%

a 14.3%

A 19.3%

v 5.6%

a 6.8%
A 33.4%
a 115.3%

A 12.0%

(1) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty
fees for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

e SG&A expenses increased by 17.9% to HK$13,964 million.
SG&A ratio further improved by 280 basis points to 14.1% due

to favourable operating leverage. Fixed in nature expenses

contributed approximately 45% to SG&A expenses in FY2022
(FY2021: approximately 50%).

e Spending on packaging materials increased by 115.3% as sales
recovered in FY2022.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERITTHRAX

I

Mainland China F Bl

——

Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets

HEER - PEDRPREMETS

—0—

As a % of revenue FTE&£EEA DL

|

Staff costs and related expenses 8 T AR AR

|

Concessionaire fees EHES B

I

Rental expenses A& %

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")
MEREE (EREEE)

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
EREE (W - BEREE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% Kk SER %

|

Packaging materials ®ZE¥1%}

L |

Other SGRA" HAth$H&E R TEEZM

() HHERTEMAXIEREHERIREEENRITTAR HERE
ERNENER FEELKTER

o HERITHMAZ EA17.9% £13,964B5&EB T o
HERTHAX L RIAREER G ME—F T &
280 A2 F5£14.1% < 20220 BFE - BEEMHE
B S S & AT X K9 45% (2021 BIERFE « 49
50%) °

o BRYMBXE2022MBFEHECIEM LI
115.3% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs
and related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related
expenses are provided on p.46-47 and p.56-57 of this report.

MAINLAND CHINA

Revenue

Revenue by operation model RZEERE|DHIBLEEE
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

ch

=

FRHEMTRAXTE2EKNER (BFBEEIKA

KiEREFRX - HiED

PR E RS DT E

RAREFEA6E4TERB6ELT A ©

[Ed Pa b
3

YoY change
El>%-214
86,932 a 45.6%
90,000
80,000
70,000 59,698 50.4% A 22.6%
60,000
50,000 42432
s 40,763
40,000 36,804 o087
30,000 — 65.7%
20,000 76.3% 49.6% a 79.9%
40.2%
10,000 )
23.7% 28.3% 34.3%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

e |n Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue mainly represents sales to franchisees and

provision of services to franchisees.

e Revenue in the Mainland surged 45.6% to HK$86,932 million in
FY2022. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue was up by
37.0% in the financial year.

e \Wholesale revenue jumped 79.9% in the financial year, back by
the new openings of franchised POS and a steady ramp up of
store productivity in general. Its revenue contribution expanded
940 basis points to 49.6% in the financial year.

e As at 31 March 2022, we had 4,014 franchised
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS. For the majority of these
POS, we retain inventory ownership until sales transactions are
completed with the retail consumers, upon which wholesale
revenue is recognised. These POS contributed approximately
60% of the wholesale revenue in the Mainland.

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

I
Retail T&

|
Wholesale it 3

REBEA RMNTELXTFRRBEELETE
BOETEBREMERRENHER MLeg
FHEANETERAMAHBEEE @ LA MNEFHRER

TEEVUA

20220 S - REIAMA) S EESTH45.6% 2
86,932 BBETT - MARERGH - AYHFED

EERIERI37.0% °

EHEMBATEMREIELEENRL LB
BBEEEBREAPERFEMTT79.9% - RAF K
FE HEXBOEXRIGLIEMML0ER FE

49.6% -

202243 A31H

C R E 4,014 EFKRBRE

MEBZTEH - RABDARBAREMBEZTES
HMEZEHEESKHEERINREFERES

% BFRPTME
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SSSG FEEHERR
SSSG of major products FEERFEEHEER
Same Store ASP
FIEFHER
159.8% FY2022
)
Gem-set HK$
jewellery
R 7 8 O O
=10 )
79.6% >
. \ 65.5% (FY2021%: HK$7,500)
[ 48.9%
\ 3, Gold HKS
23.3% jewellery
6.7% 12.7% \2 7% \‘ ane 5 5 O D
. 7 o 7% -0.4% products )
o0% O * ~ SO (FY2021: HKS5,4
° ) p— (FY20 $5,400)
2.5% ) o——o ° RER
® 5.2% -8.0% -8.9% 13.3%
-19.8% .
Y
Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
HREER - HERKESEH
Y
1Q 20 3Q 4Q 1Q 20 3Q 4Q Gold jewellery and products
FY2021 FY2022 HEEHRER

FY2022
SSS volume
SSSG growth
EEHERRE REHEEER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery REER - HE MKEEE v 3.3% v 13.0%
Gold jewellery and products o EfiRER a 19.3% A 16.8%
Watches R v 0.4% v 12.2%
Overall 2= A 11.1% A 7.6%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2022 Same Store basis

e |n Mainland China, retail demand for gold jewellery and products

was resilient and it boosted SSSG to 19.3% during the financial

year. SSS of the product category was flat in 2HFY2022 due to

a very high base of comparison. ASP of gold jewellery and
products was steady at about HK$5,500 in FY2022.

e SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery was down by

3.3% during the financial year. Yet, SSS of the product category

turned flat in 4QFY2022, thanks to the success of our products

and our effective marketing campaigns launched during this

traditional festive period. Gem-set jewellery ASP increased to
approximately HK$7,800 in FY2022 (FY2021: HK$7,500).

e \Watches SSSG momentum was tapered off in 2HFY2022 amid
temporary supply shortage, resulting in a slight SSS decline of

0.4% in the financial year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

(1)

[RE ¥ B 1A 2022 8 B A E H0 [R5 {E B %

APREE  PEAMNESEHRERTERK
wE) - HHEEHEERE19.3% - thEMEH
FEHEERN2022MBEFETYFREHES
MEBFR - B NER T HEER20228
B EHRFNA5,50087T

REER - e MK EMHORIEHER RN BE
JETB3.3% ° T > MR EGRREKN KK ME
EREERERNA T ARNEHED  ERER
BREHELE2022HRFEEONFTEREERF
KEEREMHNFHEER 2022 BFEREEY
7,800#7T (2021 A4 E : 7,600%7T) °

HREREHESR BERAEHEERP NN
2022 MR THFBARST  SEATREEDN
5 S5 & % 0.4 % -
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Profitability

Mainland China $ERAit
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

30.5%

.\28.0%

[ J
\23_1%
[ J
18.7%

.
\14.9%
’\12.9%
°

=
EFIGEN
—_——
Adjusted gross profit margin &R ENER =
—.—

SG&A as a % to revenue SHERTEE XML EXER DL

Core operating profit margin & ZAE&HF R

2020 2021 2022
THFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MREE BHEE
ExE T
(HK$ million) (BEBR) 1HFY2021 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 5:4- 24 B &1t
Revenue = 21,216 38,550 48,382 a 81.7% a 25.7%
Adjusted gross profit KARBILHNER] 7,343 8,957 11,133 a 22.0% A 18.8%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR R TR 34.6% 23.2% 23.0% w 11.4%pts w 1.3% pts
168 7 & 188 7%
Other income HA 197 214 469 a 85% a 105.3%
SGRA HERITHHX (3,491) (5,420) (4,889) (6,300) 4 40.1% a 16.3%
SG&A as a % to revenue THERITIH S BT 16.5% 12.7% 13.0% w 3.8%pts w 1.1% pts
EREEHSI 168 7 % 188 7%
Core operating profit F 2T 4,050 4,282 5,302 A57% A 26.9%
Core operating profit margin FEEE R FR 19.1% 11.1% 11.0% v 8.0% pts a 0.1% pts
181 B 5 % 18 5 2 %

e Adjusted gross profit margin contracted by 490 basis points in
FY2022 amid a tough comparison base resulting from the surge
in international gold price in THFY2021, coupled with a higher
sales contribution from wholesale business and gold jewellery
and products. The wholesale business in general earns a lower
gross profit margin than the retail business. SG&A ratio
improved by 200 basis points due to operating leverage. Fixed
in nature expenses contributed less than 40% to SG&A
expenses in FY2022 (FY2021: approximately 40%).

e As aresult, core operating profit margin contracted by 280 basis

points to 11.0% in FY2022.

Annual Report 2022
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e ARERESBERE2021 M BEE ¥ FHRS
HERLBRES  MEREXBRELKRBERER
R E BB BT BBUSHBREER RN 2022
MFEEURFEAQ AR F - HEAEXBWEN XK
BREEER - ARNEENR  HERTHRAXL
ETER200E2EF - 2022 T UF E - EEMERS
IEHHE RITHA X 21R40% (2021 TR FE - 4
40%) °

o [k - EBAEH N KK 2022 B B F E W E 280

EZFE11.0% °
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITERIGEEELE
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

18.7%
o— Mo 12.9%
.\.
12,000 11,190
11,000
10,000
8,910
9,000 4.7%
8,000 7,616
7,000 5.8%
6,000 7.4% 2.7%
5,000
3.3% 0.7%
4,000 3.9% N 1.0%
3,000 2 1.0% j— ?'?02 0.7%
1.5% 0.8% 1.4%
2,000 15; 0.8% 4%
1,000 2% 2.1% 1.6%
0
2020 2021 2022

Staff costs and related expenses EIRAREHAHR
For the year ended 31 March §Z3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

7.4%
5.8%

° .
4.7%
—_— .\.

4,500 4113

4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

2020 2021 2022

(1) Employees in production function excluded

YoY change
[Eil:4-4(4

A 25.6%

A 19.1%

A 18.8%
A 19.5%

A 30.1%
A 35.0%

a 117.7%

a 11.4%

YoY change
Eil=#-314

A 19.1%

a 12.2%

A 25.8%

A 14.6%

(2) Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

e Staff costs and related expenses expanded by 19.1% in FY2022.

e Fixed component increased by 25.8% year-on-year mainly

attributable to the revision of staff remuneration package during

the year in order to attract and retain talents.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERITTHRAX

—_—
As a % of respective revenue FTEEBEEEEE L

I

Staff costs and related expenses & T AR AHRRI X

|

Concessionaire fees EHES B

I

Rental expenses &R

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")
MEREE (FRAEEE)

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
EREE (WX - BERRKE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% & SER %

|

Packaging materials &2 ¥1%

L |
Other SGRA HE A ERITHR X

FY2022

19,710 <29%

Average number of YoY change
employees(" Gil24 f[4
FHETHE
—.—
As a % of respective revenue FiEBRIE 25 B S LL
I
Variable staff costs 2 &) 8 T A4
|
Fixed staff costs [EE & LA
|

Other staff related expenses®? Hfth & TR @

(1) TEREEEHSFINET
(2) HETHMAMALEIZEEE TR BRENASEES

2022 RFEEE THRARMEEA EF19.1% o

o BEFEMAKRIBERF LTT25.8%  TE2HRFARRK
SIMBE AT MERT B THMFBAE -
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Concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses'"
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

HiES R R A SR

¥ 0y
s.i/o 8.0% oo
—
.\.
.\
4.8% — o
e 4.0% YoY change
o0 A2t
3,003  18.8%
3,000
2,528
2,500
2,031
2000 78.8% A 18.8%
1,500 78.7%
78.0%
1,000
500
9 0
22.0% 21.3% 21.2% a 18.6%
0
2020 2021 2022

e Concessionaire fees rose by 18.8% as retail revenue increased.

The concessionaire fees ratio nonetheless edged down to 7.9%.

e | ease-related expenses ratio also edged down to 4.0%.

Under IFRS 16 — leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases

replace the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these elements for the analysis

of lease-related expenses

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

—.—

Concessionaire fees as a % of respective revenue
Sl BMEHEERER L

——

Lease-related expenses as a % of respective revenue
HEHEREMX LR EER DL

I

Concessionaire fees EHE A A

I

Lease-related expenses" HE R

o EMHKKETELEEENT LFH18.8% « Aff
EEORLERANTRETI% °

o HEMBRMXLETTEESL0% -

REBERPBRESENF 165 — HE FTEREH(EAREE) REE
BMARARRAHSBEMAX - RAMULEERIEE A6 ETHEMR
Rz
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POS network

TEHAS

POS movement by store brand™ — Mainland China Z/E&# SIS HTEEESH ) — hE R

During FY2022

31.3.2020 31.3.2021 2022 E 31.3.2022
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at n HEt ot 0 > FBRE st
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY? RFEAi@HE @ 3,429 4,098 1,509 (148) 1,361 5,459
CTF WATCH AXEiES 116 128 14 (6) 8 136
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 1 - - - 1
ENZO ENZO 59 75 14 (35) (21) 54
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 43 66 5 (32) (27) 39
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 51 77 19 (28) (9) 68
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TBIFEEFERENEE
(2) CTF WATCH POS excluded (2) TREAAEEETEY
RSV analysis FTEERR
RSV by product REREISHTEE
4.9%
- RSV YoY change
FY2021 FY2022 ZEEBLE
| [ | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery a 11.8%
HREER  AeRkKEEH
[ | [ | Gold jewellery and products & 4 & i & & @ A 49.4%
[ | Watches & a 3.5%
Overall &2 A 37.0%
RSV by channel ZSEREISHETEE
5.2%
RSV YoY change
FY2021 FY2022 ZEERLZE
[ | [ | CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY EXKEHE A 38.2%
] ] Other store brands H {th /& 48 @ p2 a 3.2%
[ | E-commerce? &-FE©? A 67.3%
Overall #8& A 37.0%

(1) CTF WATCH, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included

(2)  Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop; Smart retail applications

such as CloudSales 365, Cloud Kiosk, Smart Tray, etc. excluded

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

(1)

BIFEE KR8k - HEARTS ON FIRE + ENZO + SOINLOVE & MONOLOGUE

365 EEAMEHEFRRETENREM

(2) FBEFAREAXNEREEEE X XX HRE BTEENENH

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS which contributed close to 90% of the RSV in Mainland China:

AREBRETEHETEANMZTEESLI0% » AT
1 SR R ETSEDAT -

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS BAXEHREFTE
RSV and POS by tier of cities!" T RFNETHTEERTEL
17.4% 16.4%
FY2022
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEIEE ZTEEGHR ZEERBLLEL TELFRE
[ | [ | Tier | cities —#R ¥ a 33.5% a 159
[ | [ | Tier |l cities —#R3H A 34.4% a 482
[ | Tier Il cities =& a 45.3% a 327
19.4% [ ] ] Tier IV cities and others A 46.4% a 393
PO AR T R E A

(1) As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in
Mainland China, we adopt the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first-tier cities were
grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 27 May 2021

e |n FY2022, we opened a net of 1,367 CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland. More than half of these
openings were located in Tier I, IV and other cities.

e POS located in Tier IIl, IV and other cities continued to
demonstrate a higher RSV growth than Tier | and Il cities in the
financial year.

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

(1) AEAEMRRFEAMETOLERRMNBEEE - HARBE-IE)
BENBHERYEEL - H—BAT RPN TR ER ZBHD - B
20202145827 BAGHEES

° 2022 RFE - AR AHFFR 1,361 EE KR
KETEH - FEBLEUN= - MR REMET -

o AMBFERN G = HRREMETEEHNEE
BEREREER SR _SETRY -
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RSV and POS by operation model

60.4%

REERAISTHMTEERTEN

39.6% FY2022
i % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEMGELE ZEHEMH SEERBLEL ZEMNFEY
[ | [ | Self-operated B & A 13.0% Ab
| | Franchised /il 4 62.1% a 1,355

By operation model, net openings were substantially franchised
POS in the financial year. A net of 6 self-operated POS was
opened, mainly in the shopping malls located in top tier cities.
As at 31 March 2022, approximately 74% of our POS in the
Mainland were in franchised format.

Franchised POS in the Mainland delivered a RSV growth of
62.1% during the financial year. Growth was faster than that of
self-operated POS, bolstered by the new openings and a steady
ramp up of stores’ productivity.

As the franchised POS have a higher portion of new stores, the
average sales per store of franchised POS was generally lower
than that of the self-operated POS in the same city tier during
the financial year.

RSV and POS by store format #ZEFHEREINTEERTEY

BEBEEAE D APBFEERID D FFERME
TEH - HMFRARTOEEZTERN  TE2UR
— ZRERHMTHEY L - R202243A31H -
MHHIE 74% EEHAMBHEALE -

ABBRERE AHNBETEHNTEARER
62.1%  ZHFERFIEEENRIIRIAFIES
MEZEHNERRERNELTER -

MR MBETERHOHELARE - MATEHRAK
BHREEANEEFHHERERRARMTHE
o £ BEAE

== e

FY2022
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
ZENGE TEHEMGH ZEERLEEL ZEHRTEY
[ ] [ ] Shopping mall & #79 L» A 45.2% A 610
[ | [ | Department store B &2 7 a 20.1% a 171
[ | Others E Aty A 78.1% a 580

During FY2022, majority of new stores were opened at street
level and shopping malls. Stores in these two formats delivered
a stronger RSV growth than those in department stores.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

2022 BRFE - KRB D A G RN EEME Y+
Do EMBEANMNMEZZEEEESUAEER
RIMFEERS -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Self-operated CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS
RSV per store by store age ZEHEITHBETERE

AXEHEEETER

140.0%
120.0% 116.7%
95.0%
100.0% A
o FY2022 RSV per same store:
i i 78.6% HK$27.6 million?
80.0% 72 20228 BEERIEE S BE(E:
27.6BBETA
60.0% 50.7%
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Lessthan 2 years!" 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8years or more Total
DRA2FD 2245 4Z65F 6Z8F 8FHULE M
3/2014
POS opening date B/5 B 4/2020-3/2022 4/2018-3/2020 4/2016-3/2018 4/2014-3/2016 or before
3/20145% LAY
POS ZEE 131 212 216 690 1,445
% of POS ZERLELL 9.1% 14.7% 14.9% 13.6% 47.7% 100.0%

Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store

BEFETEEEREFGTEEZLA

(1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis

ERTRIFNTEH 2 TEARFCEERE

(2)  Value-added tax ("VAT") included

BIEEER
Average quarterly sales F¥FEHELE
(HK$ million BE&#ET)
38.0%
°
30.1%
°
. 24.4%
22.3% 23'.2 f/—g
A—
° %x.o%
/0
95
° 20.3% 85
17.7% oo
6.3 6.5 6.0 o
5.1
il II “
10 20 30 40

(1) SSS on FY2022 Same Store basis

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

(

—

FY2021 average quarterly SSS
2021 F EFHEERIEHED
—

FY2022 average quarterly SSS
20228 B FE TP FEREHE
—_——

FY2021 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS™
2021 N A SHEE AR
FEREHEENERD

——

FY2022 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20228 N F EEE R R SHEMRE
FEREHEHENER

[F) 5 #8465 IA 20228 B4R [E W0 ) 5 {E EE %
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e Average SSS contribution in 2HFY2022 amounted to

approximately 55% of full year SSS, similar to our seasonality
under the normal course of business.

The fourth quarter, our peak season as driven by festive
occasions such as Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day and
usually accounts for the highest quarterly SSS contribution in the
year. The SSS contribution for 4QFY2022 was 30.1%, a drop
from 4QFY2021 due to the impact from COVID-19 pandemic.

Smart retail business'”

o 202 BEFE TEFNTHREIEHERTRESR
2FREHEENAI55%  BRMEFEEE THE
ERIEK SRR -

s FNFEEERBHNFRBASHSHERT  HER
FMNESRREST  FEREHEEMBEAZFRS
AW REBETE 20228 BEREENEENRE
HEBRA30.1% - 82021 W HFEEMFEE
Tk

EETEERD

RSV by product ¥REZESHFEE

0.3%

‘ 15.2%
RSV YoY change
FY2021 FY2022 SEERLZ(L
0.4% . .
19.3% [ | [ | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery a 28.1%
KESEHR e RkKEEH
[ | [ | Gold jewellery and products = & & £ & & f A 71.4%
[ | Watches & & v 0.6%
Overall #82 A 62.7%
(1) E-commerce and smart retail applications included. Major e-commerce platforms included (1) DEBFEGLTERRER - T 2T THKT A REAKXEREEEERE -

Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop. Smart retail applications refer to the use of digital

tools, such as CloudSales 365, Cloud Kiosk, Smart Tray, etc.

Smart retail business performance EHETEEHEIHRIR

K- RR - ERE TEMRERARKEDHESTANER365 A

RERERRE

FY2022
RSV
TEE E-commerce (0]
8.6% e 5,2%
62.7%
o ' o of respective RSV 2 -
®= mart retai
YoY change EHEMT EE applications 3 40/
Bl (FY2021: 7.2%) TERER ' o

17.5%
= e =~ =l
of respective retail sales

i 2,400 SILE
(202l (FY2021: HK$2,500) SENERER 5 : 4 0 U
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e RSV of our smart retail business rose 62.7% in FY2022, driven °
by both e-commerce and smart retail applications businesses.

e As a result, the contribution of the smart retail business to the e
RSV in Mainland China further expanded to 8.6% from 7.2% a
year ago. In terms of retail sales volume, the share of smart
retail business to the Mainland China's operations leaped to
17.5% and its ASP was approximately HK$2,400 in the financial
year.

HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND &h
OTHER MARKETS

Revenue =

Revenue by operation model RZEEREFHIELEEE
For the year ended 31 March 8238318 LFE
(HK$ million B&%&7t)

FUAETRBLEENRERAEBHED  B2F
EXBNTEER 20220 BEE L7162.7% -

Hit B2 TEXBETEARMNTEEE/MEE
FRT2%E—FEKREB6% - REEMSF - B
TEEBLPRAMEBNLERTZ175% @ &
FHEBEAMBEELNS2,40087T -

EEE - PEIAMIREM TS

YoY change
24,22
25,000 29 350 o [ b 4t
20,000
15,988
15,000
12,006 a 14.7%
92.3% 95.2% 10,466
10,000
93.0%
84.2% a 10.9%
87.2%
5,000 ° ——
Retail &
——
0 7.7% 4.8% 7.0% 12.8% 15.8% A 40.9% Wholesale #t2¢
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

e |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue °
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and
other direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales
to franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery
trading.

e Retail revenue rose by 10.9% in FY2022, driven by a steady d
local demand in Hong Kong and tourist spending in Macau.
Wholesale revenue grew strongly by 40.9% thanks to the
robust performance of our duty-free POS in Hainan.

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

BPREE RFARHEMTENTELEERES
TEH ETEBLREMCEERRENHEERE  Mmit
HEEBAEANERHEEER ATEHHES
mEKEUREESWIHESR -

EBRBAMFRRBE MRFIETEEMHES - 2022
PRFETELEFILR10.9% - MEMEERED
PREEHRERY SHBLEFABRER
40.9% -
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SSSG

SSSG of major products FEERFEEHEER

FEHERR

Same Store ASP

FEFHER
163.7% FY2022
®
\ Gem-set HK$
o jewellery
106.2% st 15 300
° Bt ]
62.8% 65.1% (FY2021: HK$15,700)
° —0 46.9%
/ \ () Gold HK$
14.0% . 15.4% jewellery
iy 2N =™ 4900
/ _e \\ - products /
® EHEHM o :
37.0!/ ° 8.0% EEE.': (FY2021": HK$5,500)
° -19.4N N
-65.7%
'/'/-50.7% -43.4% —.—
0/454.5% ' Gem-set, Platinum and
82.9% K-gold jewellery
o KER - MERKSEH
—_— =
a 20 30 4a e 20 3Q 4Q Gold jewellery and products
FY2021 FY2022 BHEHBRER
FY2022
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHKERE REHEREER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HREER - 2 RKEEH v 6.0% 2 6.9%
Gold jewellery and products S HEMRER Aa539% a723%
Watches ek A64% a143%
Overall ®e A 24.7% A 51.0%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2022 Same Store basis

e |n Hong Kong and Macau, SSS of gold jewellery and products .
outperformed that of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery
during FY2022, amid a robust demand in gold products and a
tougher comparison base of gem-set, platinum and k-gold

(1) FEFEEIA2022 M B E R EFEE

jewellery resulted from promotional campaigns in the last

financial year.

e SSS of gold jewellery and products increased 53.9% in FY2022. °
ASP of the product category was reduced to HK$4,900 from
HK$5,500 a year ago, largely attributable to a sales mix shift

towards lower-ASP products.

e SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery was down by .
6.0% in the financial year. Yet, Same Store Sales volume rose
6.9%. ASP of gem-set jewellery decreased slightly by 2.5%

during the financial year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

ERENEmM -

2022 FE

AESEMBRKEINE E—EFBFERERR
HERKSENHNRHIDEHRRLRER &
BRBEFINESEHREMN2022HBFENE
IEHERRBIREER A RKEHHIEN -

EeEMNERNREHEER
53.9% ° %E mBERIHFIHEBU EFH5,6008
TEEA900ET  T2HNHEMAABERTHE

KEER e RKSEHNEEHEERTRF
ETF6.0% - A - FEHE LT16.9% < IREH
REMNTOEEEAMBFEEMTH%2.5% -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Profitability

Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets FEE# -
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A318 1Lt FE

29.4%

27.4%

=mFIEEN
PERFIR b

° 28.1\0
24.7% °
23.1%
—.—
Adjusted gross profit margin &R ENEF =R
——
SG&A as a % to revenue
HERTHBEXMEEEETIL
Core operating profit margin £ B4 &EFIE
2020 2021 2022
THFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MEEE MEEE
b¥E T¥E
(HK$ million) (ABET) 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 El:4:-2(4 El>%-2
Revenue = 3,457 7,009 5,636 6,370 a 63.0% v 9.1%
Adjusted gross profit KABIBNER] 1,316 1,760 1,437 1,646 a92% w 6.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin Pt - OESY B 38.1% 25.1% 25.5% 25.8% w 12.6% pts a 0.7% pts
1855 % B85 %
Other income H b U A 149 117 56 54 v 62.4% v 53.6%
SG&A SHE RITHAX (1,437) (1,501) (1,303) (1,472) v 9.3% v 2.0%
SG&A as a % to revenue WERTRELZAM  41.6% 21.4% 23.1% 23.1% ¥ 18.5% pts a 1.7% pts
ERBHSL 1B a5 % B8 7%
Core operating profit FEL LT 28 190 228 A 570.7% v 39.1%
Core operating profit margin FELERFR 0.8% 3.4% 3.6% a26%pts w 1.8%pts
=R B85 %

In FY2022, adjusted gross profit margin contracted significantly
by 370 basis points to 25.7%, mainly due to the intra-group
profits released as a result of good performance in the Mainland
last year.

SG&A ratio decreased by 500 basis points to 23.1% due to
favourable operating leverage in FY2022. Fixed in nature
expenses contributed approximately 65% to SG&A expenses in
FY2022 (FY2021: approximately 75%).

A core operating profit of approximately HK$420 million was
recorded in FY2022. Its corresponding margin was down by 40
basis points to 3.5%, as less government subsidies were
received when comparing to FY2021.

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

* 2022 HFE - KFBEHEMNEAEWRESI701E
BFE257% TE2HREFAMEBRERL
fEmER R E R & AR FE -

e HN2022MBFENEENE - CHE RITHEA
XL E T B B00 AR F223.1% © 2022/ FE -
[ 5E 1 A S A 3 AT IR P S 49 65 % (2021 87 IR
FE:H75%) °

o 2022 MFEHSIERLELEMNNA20BEBT -
F 7 P UCER £ AT 46 G 802021 AR EORL A - K
HERNETKA0ERFEI3.5% -
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITEBZIGEEHEILE
For the year ended 31 March §Z3A318LLFE
(HK$ million B&i8T)

28.1%
24.7% )
.% Nq.'l%
) YoY change
4,000 3,941 B &1t
3,000 9.6% 2,938 2,775 v 5.6%
0.0%
1 11.3% 9.9% A 0.6%
2,000 1 7.1%
0.0% 0.1% A 3,400.0%
: ) [7.6% 5.2% v 21.8%
1.9% 1 1
1,000 1.4% 3.09 1.7% v 38.4%
0.4% - 1.2% A 27.0%
1.1% 0.5% a 77.8%
4.2% 0.5% '
4.5% 4.4% a 13.6%
0
2020 2021 2022

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Staff costs and related expenses ETIRAREMR
For the year ended 31 March B#Z3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&EBT)

11.8%
° 10.9%
\
9.2%/ )
° YoY change
1,500 [ bt B4t
1,328
1,050 a 0.2%
34.8% 1,048
1,000
31.8% 38.3% A 20.7%
500 58.2%
61.3% 54.7% v 10.6%
0 B 7.0% B 6.9% 7.1% - 23%
2020 2021 2022

(1) Employees in production function excluded
(2)  Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

e Staff costs and related expenses was slightly up by 0.2%. The
variable staff costs rose 20.7% year-on-year in FY2022, largely
in line with our business growth.

e Fixed staff costs declined by 10.6% due to attrition.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERITTHRAX

—.—

As a % of respective revenue FiEBEIE 2B S LL
I

Staff costs and related expenses 8 T f 4<% #8RRI
|

Concessionaire fees EHED MK

I

Rental expenses A&

|

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA)

ERBE (ERAEEE)

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
EREE (W - BERRE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% & SER X

|

Packaging materials ‘2 ¥1%t

—
Other SG&A HAHERITHBIX

P E & & R ERF
FY2022

2,/90 +85%

Average number of YoY change
employees(" G244
FHETIHH

—_——

As a % of respective revenue Fi{L AR £ F Lt
I

Variable staff costs ZE) 8 T {74

|

Fixed staff costs EE & T4

I

Other staff related expenses®? Hfth & TiHRARI @

(1) TRELESFNET
(2) RETHBMXTIEZRREETREREMN BREENASKES

o BETRARMBMZMIT02% < ¥88 THRAR
20220 U E £ 7120.7 % - BEEHB B R KRBAEF -

o AMNBTRK

i

EETRARA10.6% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Lease-related expenses'"

THEHERARZ"

For the year ended 31 March HZ3A318 Lt FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

8.3%
TS —e
[ ] NB%
° YoY change
1,600 Eil=4:214
1,126
8.5%
1,000
774
16.:6% 597 v 22.9%

500 . 32.6%

(1

2.6%
2022

 3:9% 3.3%
2020 2021

Under IFRS 16 — leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases
replace the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the
analysis of lease-related expenses

Lease-related expenses fell by 22.9% mainly representing the
sharp reduction in ROUA depreciation as the respective assets
were written down in FY2021. Lease-related expenses ratio
shrank by 250 basis points to 5.8%. The average reduction on
lease renewal during FY2022 relative to the last leases was
about 15%.

During FY2022, rent concession of HK$61 million was
recognised in other gains.

POS network

POS movement by store brand” — Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets

BEHREESNTEREH" — PEEE  PEIAFREMLTHS

As a % of respective revenue FiEBBIE 2R LL

Rental expenses &R %

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) &R ##s (EAEEE)

Finance costs on leases A& RIE KA

(1) REERMBERESENE 165 — HE  MERBH(EAREE) MEE
AMERAMRABAREFAZ - RMBUE=EEE & 0f  LOETREME

Rz

e 2021 MFEEMBRHEEMR  SEREEENE
RIETEE - HERBRAXEMRNL22.9% - HEH
98 B S2 bL R R R 260 (B 35 7 =5.8% » 8 —{E7H
WAL 2022 BREFEREHRESR 2 FTHRENS

15% -

e 20220 BFE - HeBERCIBEREL %W

EHERRE MY -

TEHAS

During FY2022

31.3.2020 31.3.2021 2022 B BEE 31.3.2022

Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total

As at )iy ey ey # oA B -y
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY  FEAXEHKE 138 134 5 (6) (1) 133
Hong Kong, China FEEE 83 79 1 (6) (5) 74
Macau, China AR PY 18 18 - - - 18
Other markets HibmH 37 37 4 - 4 41
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 10 8 3 (1) 2 10
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 1 1 - - - 1
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 2 3 - (2) (2) 1

(4]

SIS and CIS excluded

Annual Report 2022
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RSV analysis TEEST
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets hEEE - PEIRFIRHE B HIS
RSV by product REZESHEEHR

9.4%

‘ . RSV YoY change
FY2021 FY2022 ZEERL2{L
| | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery v 2.5%

KREEZR  HERKESEH
61.5% [ | | Gold jewellery and products & & & #i X & f a 15.0%
[ | Watches 8% A 6.0%
Overall #8& 491%

RSV and POS by geography #HEZFHTEERTELY

11 7%

62 8% FY2022
©7% 9% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
ZEIEE ZTEEGHR ZEERLE{L TELFERE
[ | [ | Hong Kong, China F# B& % v 11.5% v 6
| [ | Macau, China B89 4 100.8% -
o [ | Other markets E 1 A 46.7% a5

e RSV rose by 9.1% in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets in o ZERMMPIEREGM AT TEIMNRDFRIEME

FY2022, driven by vigorous performance of our stores in Macau ) 20220 BFE - B RFREMTENTE
and duty-free POS in Hainan. As a result, RSV contribution from BIEERI1% - MRERPFIREMTSEHNTEER
Macau and other markets expanded to 37.2% from 22.5% a BAMEEFH22.5% F2FRI37.2% ©

year ago.

e Customer traffic at POS in Hong Kong and Macau increased by o BRTEUNERENATRFEERF LFHI.6% -

9.6% year-on-year during the financial year. The percentage of ERMFAMSERNTET - BRTS A B RE
RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay, WeChat Pay or RMB to TRE MEINIAREGEE 2 TEENILEES
the total RSV of Hong Kong and Macau market was lifted to FM18.2% LAZEZ2.4% °

32.4% from 18.2% last year, driven by the reviving Macau
market.

¢ In Hong Kong, we closed a net of 6 POS in the financial year, o NUKFE BEAFHFACEATER  TBMUNK
mainly in touristic areas such as Tsim Sha Tsui and Mong Kok. DEEEABERERR o

58 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Hong Kong & Macau of China

Average quarterly sales F¥HFEHER
(HKS$ million B&#&t)

35.4%

PEEERPEIRM

°
N.s%
29.4% PY

[ J
\,9%

—

FY2021 average quarterly SSS
2021 B FETFHIFEREHED
—

FY2022 average quarterly SSS
2022 R EEFHEEREHE
——

FY2021 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2021 F EEE R R HERE
FEREHEEOERD

——

FY2022 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
202281 N E R [E) 5 SHEFR
FEREHEFENER

1Q

(1) SSSon FY2022 Same Store basis

e The third quarter, being the peak season for the industry as driven
by Christmas and usually accounted for the highest quarterly SSS
contribution in the year for the Hong Kong and Macau market.

e Nevertheless, seasonality in both FY2022 and FY2021 deviated
from the normal course of business. The new wave of pandemic
negatively impacted our business in 4QFY2022 which resulting a
lower quarterly SSS contribution, SSS contribution of 2HFY2022
was 51.3% of full year SSS.

e While the lingering pandemic severely affected our business in
THFY2021 whereas our promotional efforts helped boost sales in
2HFY2021, lifting the SSS contribution of 2HFY2021.

Annual Report 2022
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374
32.7 323
I 24.3
3Q 40

(1)

7] 415 LA 20228 B 4F [ 1 R 5 {E L 24

FE=FEEEERL  BEANERES
EERRPITSNFEREHEEMBEREFR

o

it

AT - 2022 M EF B 2021 A F E R E B R
REE T R EREBOTHERS - H—WRBEYH
HPR 2022 BEREFHFEMNER S REES
2 SYFEREHETMEE 120220 HBF
ETHFNREEHEERAEFRAEHEN
51.3% °

FENZRBREZERME2021 W HFE EFF
BVZETS o BAPI IR 3508 B RITE ) 2021 M B E
THEFENHEE 2021 BFEETEFNEEH
EEBB MRS
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Other income, other gains and losses

HbWA - Rl RBEUREEMR

and other expenses B
2020 2021 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A3MBLEE BEER BEABT BEAT E1:4- 14
Other income E A 437 692 793 a 14.7%
Other gains and losses Hip U 25 K 518 (147) 431 171 v 60.4%
Other expenses HiF (146) (664) (95) v 85.8%

e Other income mainly arose from the government grants
received in Mainland China and Hong Kong, commission
income, other income received from franchisees and other
interest income. The increase in other income was mainly due
to government subsidies the Group received in FY2021, which
were one-off in nature, offsetted by the increase in commission

income and other income from franchisees.

e Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign
exchange gain of HK$138 million (FY2021: HK$336 million) due
to the appreciation of RMB and COVID-19-related rent
concession of HK$61 million (FY2021: HK$128 million).

e Other expenses mainly represented donation of HK$55 million
(FY2021: HK$11 million) and the amortisation of other intangible
assets of HK$40 million (FY2021: HK$40 million). During
FY2021, goodwill of HK$232 million was impaired as we
repositioned HEARTS ON FIRE so as to maintain the identity
and heritage of the brand while better serve our need to
penetrate into the high-end segment and the assets impairment
(including property, plant and equipment and ROUA) of HK$382

million was recognised.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HiRATZHERTPERN LB EESHOBTHE
B AN - 2R B 00 BE 7 Y E A M A R E A
WA o AR A BTt E ZE iR A& B 572021 8 K
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Hipam MEBETRERARBAEMELNER
FU 138 A BB T (2021 MEREE : 336 A &8
T R2019BRESHEENHSESTCI AR
TT(2021 B EE - 128 E@EETT) °

Hx T2 RIBHR0BEET (2021 WHFE ¢
MEEBT) REMELEE#RHIOEEET(2021
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Interest income, finance costs and taxation FIBUKN « BUERAEBIE

2020 2021 2022

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BE3A3MALEE BEER BEERT BEER El:4::314
Interest income from banks ERITH B U A 78 82 70 v 14.4%
Finance costs on bank borrowings IRITERBE KA (284) (132) (68) v 48.6%
Finance costs on gold loans BHEEEREKAK (207) (197) (234) a 18.9%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEaBEmERN (69) (48) (36) v 24.1%
Taxation 18 (1,221) (2,219) (2,103) v 5.2%

e Finance costs on bank borrowings decreased by 48.6%, mainly o 2022 BFE - FEHRNHEHBENTHRITER
due to a relatively lower average bank borrowing interest rate FE - BIRTTERBVE R AR D 48.6% ©
during FY2022.

e [Effective tax rate decreased from 26.4% in FY2021 to 23.4% in o HREHREMENEL  BFIREMTISEN 2022

FY2022 as the profitability of Hong Kong, Macau and other B F R BRI EE e E - 2022 B B F E Y
markets segment, which is subject to relatively lower tax rates, ERBEH2021 MBFERN26.4% HE23.4% °

improved in FY2022.

Return on equity R A E R 3
e We use return on equity (“ROE") to measure the efficiency of o HBMEABRARRENZETRBRRESEIVEF
generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity. B o

e Net profit margin decreased to 7.0%. ROE was up by 30 basis o FHRAEEIEET.0% o RARHE A 30 @ T
points to 19.9% while the equity multiplier increased. £19.9% © MmiEz=EEA| LA -

ROE = Net profit F¥iz¥| 1 9 9 0/ 40.3% pts HED &
BRAE %R Total equity HZs@%E n (0] (FY2021: 19.6%)

1.0% 1o 2.0 imes

Net profit margin B H/ = Assets turnover & & [E#E Equity multiplier #2528
(FY2021: 8.8%) (FY2021: 1.1 times 1) (FY2021: 2.0 times %)

T T T

Net profit % F Revenue Z## Total assets @& &E
Revenue Z#35 Total assets A& E Total equity #4838
Annual Report 2022 Other Financial Review ‘ 6’]
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Inventory balances and turnover period

Inventory balances by product” ZESEISHFEELRD
As at 31 March W3A31H

(HK$ million B&# )
YoY change
Bl 54
60,000 57,073 a 33.4%

50,000

40,000

20,000

(1)

42,343 42,792
52.2% A 26.0%
30,000 55.8% 55.2%
44.9% a 47.3%
10,000 40.3% 40.6%
0 3.9% 4.1% 2.9% v 5.9%

2020 2021 2022

Packaging materials excluded

Inventory turnover period by category® IRERIEIFHIEE BiEH

For

the year ended 31 March §#Z3A31HLLFE

(Day X&)

450

400

350

300

200

150

100

50

2)

YoY change
El:4 34

381

312
272 w 40 days X

297

213 w 21 days X

84 78 59 v 19 days &

2020 2021 2022

Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided
by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by
33.4% and reached HK$57,073 million as at 31 March 2022.

Inventory turnover period shortened by 40 days when compared
to that of FY2021.

As at 31 March 2022, approximately HK$13,310 million or
23.3% of our total inventory balances were held by franchised
POS (31 March 2021: approximately HK$7,280 million or 16.9%
were held by franchised POS).

62 Management Discussion and Analysis
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EERREASH

I

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
REEH - HERKEEHE

——

Gold jewellery and products E£ B &R ER

|
Watches £k

(1) TEREBEMH

I
Finished goods &L F

|
Raw materials B4 %}

(2) BNREHIARTEEH (T RIEREWE) BRIAFAHEKA - FBEIA3655366

o M2022F3A3NH  FEEK(TEEBEDH)
EF33.4% £57,073BEE T °

o FHEAEHI2021WMFEMHERIORK -
o M2022F3A31TE MBZTEHFARMEFTE

HEER%13,310 8 & 80 5023.3% (2021 3 A 31
H:MBEZEHFELNT7,28088ET16.9%) °
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e |f the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded,

inventory turnover period in FY2022 shall reduce to 209 days
(FY2021: 259 days).

Capital structure

WEMBAEIFAENTERES 20228 RFENTE
FEEEE THE 209K (2021 FIIHEE  259K) °

BEXRRE

Increase

% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2021 total equity 31.3.2022 total equity N (EZ*) Denominated Interest rate
HKS$ million {5/ &% HKS$ million {5#ZX#&%E  HKS million currency" structure”
As at ” BEER AL EEER AL  EESRT  HEKEY  REEMO
Non-current assets  JERENE E 9,065 28.7% 9,612 27.8% 547 N/ATER  NATEB
Inventories rE 43,011 136.3% 57,254 165.7% 14,243 N/ATEAB  NATEA
Cash and cash BekRE 6,032 19.1% 14,942 43.2% 8,910 Mainly Mainly
equivalents®? ZEYy HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
FER rate
AIT FEA
AR R TEE)F =

e

Total borrowings®  #EZ© 12,143 38.5% 24,786 71.7% 12,643
Bank borrowings RITER 6,418 20.3% 9,065 26.2% 2,647  HKD #T Variable
interest
rate
FE)FE
Gold loans "HEEE 5,725 18.2% 15,721 45.5% 9,996 RMB and Fixed
usD interest
ARBR rate
E Eifraklpe
Net debt® BEEFEREW 6,111 19.4% 9,844 28.5% 3,733 N/AT#EM NATEA
Working capital® LEEw® 26,101 82.7% 28,496 82.5% 2,395 N/ATEA NATEA
Total equity B 31,568 100.0% 34,555 100.0% 2,987 NAT@EA NATEA

(1) Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at

31 March 2022

(2) Bank balances and cash included
(3) As at 31 March 2022, bank borrowings amounted to HK$7,276 million and all the gold loans would
be matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$1,789 million would be
matured in more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years

G

Annual Report 2022
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Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents
Being net current assets

BRFEES AR EENERR2022F3 A31 HNBER

BRERITHESBRR

RE

2022F3A318 7276 BEBITHIRITEREAAESMEE BN 121
AREIHE - 1,789 B EBTHRITEZFERBB1 FEFTZR2FNEE

RITER &S

MEBEEFH

BEZ#E(CHARRSIRLEEY)
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e \We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity

requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating
cash flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital
for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has
not experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

e The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated

in HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts
and payments for our Mainland operations are both made in
RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to

our business.

It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to
the requirement of operating cash flows; and to upkeep financial
prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or speculative
derivative products.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BMEEEERELLHERE ROTEFEES
EEMNEARRENEZEESREMRDESTH
Ko B EETBELERRBNWIVREREEE
SHEEBRNINTBTE
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Effect of RMB fluctuation

As part of our business operation is in Mainland China, the
fluctuation in RMB would post some impact on our performance.

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but
denominated in RMB, including the inter-group transactions
with the Mainland China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD,
the functional currency of the Group, initially using the spot rate
at the date of transaction and the unsettled transactions are
retranslated at closing exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Such translation differences between the spot rate and closing
exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss, negatively
affecting our profit for the year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses
of the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rate, while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated
at closing exchange rate and ii) the change in closing exchange
rates at the current financial year of the net assets of the
Mainland China segment from the closing rates at the previous
financial year. Such differences are recognised in the translation

reserve in equity.

The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the
impact on our financial performance:

FY2022 Closing exchange rate YoY change
Wi EERF LML

RMB to HKD (8]

AR# a 4.2%

ARH

REBE
MRBPE B LBETEAEE - ARBHK
PHAMNRBERETHE -

FERERBAAREHENR S (B1EHE P E R K
BLARETNEERRS) @R FERNREE
EHMRET  IAKBENNEER  MAEER
ZHAENRTERREEAENHE - REEX
mHEETNREZRNBREDRER  MARE
SHRMNFERENBREATE -

UbSh - BB X ZEIRR )qﬂlﬂqiﬂz/‘*ﬂﬂ’]ﬂ&zi?ﬁz?i’]
ExMERET BAKEZIEE  MABENHE
ERaERETEERHRE ; Rii) PEAMS HHNE
EEF AR 2N B R AR 2 A U T T SR 8 - B B R Y
WHEXRBEREE - EREENERPNRERE
NIERAMR

TR BIFIRARKRE AR R P EEL
pE

Average exchange rate YoY change

FHERFLLEE

a b6.3%

2021 2022
Constant Constant
exchange exchange
As reported rate basis  As reported rate basis
AR AR
For the year ended 31 March HBZE3A3MALEE 28 ERGE 28 ERFE
Revenue YoY change EEHRLE( A236% a222% a41.0% a337%
Core operating profit YoY change FEL S FIR ML ab517% a498% & 15.9% a 9.3%
Changes in inventory balances FEESEL al11% w36% a331% a30.0%
Changes in cash and cash equivalents e RREEEWMEL wv164% 9w201% a147.7% a 143.7%

Annual Report 2022
2022 F 5

Other Financial Review

H A B 7 2 BR



Cash flows and others IRERENREM

Cash flows HaRE
2020 2021 2022
HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3AZMALEE BEBT BEBT BEBT
Operating cash flows before movements BEESEHFIZEEEERE 9,912 11,572 11,984
in working capital
Leases paid™ [=ENEiE- (1,263) (1,182) (1,017)
Net cash used in inventories? FERRERESFE (3,427) (4,669) (4,163)
Net cash from other operating HiE 2 ZHMBEE FHE 959 1,764 5,628
activities
Capital expenditure BARMAX (973) (839) (1,531)
Pro forma free cash flows FEZEHRERE 5,208 6,646 10,901
Net change in bank borrowings RITEFFE 1,362 (5,016) 2,641
Dividends paid BERRE (6,243) (2,853) (4,689)
Other movements H b (749) 36 57
Net increase (decrease) in cash and REeRREEZEWEMORD) B8 (422) (1,187) 8,910
cash equivalents
Major cash flows items for FY2022 20228iBEEEEREFEIER
(HK$ million B&&T)
Pro forma free cash flows {EZHHRBLRE Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
A 10,901 LEESHPRICKERERE
|
2,641 Leases paid" EfJFHEM
20,000 11,984 re— o )
. Net cash used in inventories?
FEFARSFEHEY
16,000 1,017 1,531 57 14,942
l 4,689 Net ca_sh fronr_1 <_)t_her
operating activities
12,000 4,163 HitiS & ZH SR ST
I
Capital expenditure EZAFH %
8,000
6,032 Net increase in bank borrowings
RITERUFIZM
4,000 Dividends paid B &
—
Other movements Hfth# &
As at R As at A
31.3.2021 31.3.2022
M With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities 0 RMBEBRT SRS LA 165H%  CHNEEFAREED
@ Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories and repayment of gold loans o EFERARSIEREFESEHREEESESE
66 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Capital expenditure

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2022
amounted to HK$1,531 million (FY2021: HK$839 million).

Capital expenditure by nature RMHEEINHIEREX
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A31HILFE
(HK$ million B&i&7t)

1,800
1,531
1,500
1,200
973
839
900
89.5%
600 .
88.0% 45.0%
300
8.6% 7.2% 6.7%
o 3.4% 28% 3.8%
2020 2021 2022

Capital expenditure by function ZIIEEEID B RS
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&%&t)

1,800
1,531
1,500 539
1,200
973
.
900 6.7% 839 69.5%
8.1%
600 76.3%
73.9%
300 2.9%
9.2% 2.3% 19.3%
0 e 7.9% B 5.5%
2020 2021 2022

Contingent liabilities

e The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Capital commitments
e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Annual Report 2022
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I

Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
B - RERRBENEEMERE

——

Land and buildings and construction in progress

THEREFMERTRE

|
Plant and machinery and motor vehicles

B R AR AN

L ____|

Projects IJHE
|

POS &%

|

Productions £ &
I

Offices PAZE

BAREE
o REER202243 4318 %202143 431 BB
MERIABE -

EXRiE

o AREMEM2022F3A31H K202143A31HHEAR
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENASREEBASEBAN

Executive Directors $i{TE$

Responsibilities B

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry*, GBM, GBS (Chairman)
HR46E 1 (GBM, GBS)(EF)

2 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* (Vice-chairman)
B IE St AR E )

3 Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia* (Vice-chairman)
BEZZTHEIER)

4 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director,
Corporate and HK, Macau & Overseas)
HAR ST E(EFELE(EBREEINET)

5 Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
(Managing Director, Mainland China)
Bt & % A (BB AR IE (P B Ai))

6 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian®, JP
EERITE L (UP)

7 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson*

ERERIT ST A

8 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BT ER % A

9  Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
BREREE

10 Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
REBNEIK T REBERIR

Strategic direction and corporate transformation of the Group;
and management of diamond and gemstone raw materials

AEEREETHRERERE  RNERBOMELRE

Strategic direction and corporate transformation of the Group;
branding and high jewellery and HEARTS ON FIRE businesses
AEBRBIHREENE  RmBER - SHAEMHEARTS
ON FIRE #7%

Overall corporate management of the Group and
development in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas
AEBEEBLETERSREHEGINER

Strategic planning and overall management of
Mainland business
R TS SRS R B R B RE B I

Strategic investment and smart retail
FHREENSEBTE

Bank and landlord relationship management
RITMETRERE

Finance and information

s R A

Hong Kong Macau, Taiwan and overseas business

HB - BEMEINER

Retail technology applications and production management
TEMBERAMEEEE

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES

Responsibilities B S

*

11 Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE
B E L (GBM, GBS, CBE)

12 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP
/& E1E 1+ (SBS, JP)

13 Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
BRI

14 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP
iR %4 (GBS, JP)

15 Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED”, or “INEDs”
in the plural) serve a significant role in the Board to bring
independent judgment on the performance, development
and risk management of the Group. As chairmen or members
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and/ or Sustainability Committee, they also
undertake detailed governance work under the respective
terms of reference of the committees.

BIUFFRTEENEEETNELEETEREE ?fﬁgﬁﬁﬁi\%fﬁ Y
FEBRERGTEILEA - FRREAZES HHEEE BXRZ
Egk/ AHEERZEGNIFAKE - {@WWHE%F%?AE

TR FRE B T AL R THE -

16 Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily
BEELt

NC = Nomination Committee member ~ RC = Remuneration Committee member ~ AC = Audit Committee member ~ SC = Sustainability Committee member ~ * Committee Chairman
REZEEKER FHEEEKER BEREEEKER AREEREZEEKE e

# Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.

RAREEREARATEZRREBNTKERE Bk 25 - AABMEHMESR 2 HLEES

Governance
E /Cl

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER QA



Aged 75, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman
and an executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is responsible for the strategic
direction and overall performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
also a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, and also chairman and a non-executive director of FSE
Lifestyle Services Limited and i-CABLE Communications Limited,
all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

He was a non-executive director of SUM Holdings Limited until his
retirement on 11 June 2019; a non-executive director of DTXS Silk
Road Investment Holdings Company Limited until his resignation
on 19 March 2021; and chairman and a non-executive director of
New World Department Store China Limited until his resignation
with effect from 13 May 2021, all of the foregoing companies are
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

WETERR - MI197T1FMARER - 2011 F7 AEE
FTAEERHTES  TARKARREZEG R
ZEEKE - BRI T BT RN EBA KR H RE
BERI o

HETRAEEETHBARES - tMthERARARAZH
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Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Y& =

o BE LA RERERAFLFAZER
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REBAREE LT RRAF

b EEERMIBEERBERAFFATES B
201956 411 HERME  ABAMABIREERARRD
FIERTTES - EX2 2021 F3 A 19 HEHE ARt
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Aged 44, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011 and became Vice-chariman and executive
Director in June 2022. Mr. Conroy Cheng has been in the jewellery
industry for about 15 years, and is responsible for strategic
direction and corporate transformation of the Group as well as
managing the diamond and gemstone raw materials of the Group.
Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng has extensive knowledge in the global diamond market
and he is currently a member of the executive committee of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China and a board member of
the World Diamond Council.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at a
Hong Kong-based investment management company as a
corporate finance executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, and a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.
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Aged 41, joined the Group in April 2019 as a non-executive
Director, re-designated as an executive Director in April 2021, and
became Vice-chariman and executive Director in June 2022. Ms.
Cheng has extensive experience in brand building through
delivering exceptional customer experience, and is responsible for
strategic direction and corporate transformation of the Group as
well as its branding and high jewellery and HEARTS ON FIRE
businesses.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group and an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong. She is
also an independent non-executive director of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and an independent director
of Primavera Capital Acquisition Corporation, a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng serves as a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board,
chairman of the advisory committee of the School of Hotel and
Tourism Management at The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and a member of the International Advisory Board of EHL
Education Group. She is a member of the Y. Elites Association, the
Young Presidents’ Organization and the Hong Kong United Youth
Association. Ms. Cheng is also a member of the Fourteenth
Guangzhou Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited,
Ms. Cheng worked in a major international investment bank and a
global US private equity firm specialising in real estate investments.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied Mathematics with
a concentration in Economics from Harvard University.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the sister of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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Aged 66, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011 and re-designated as
Managing Director, Corporate and HK, Macau & Overseas, of the
Company in April 2021, being responsible for the Group's overall
corporate management and its development in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and overseas. He is co-chairman of the Sustainability
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in business development as
well as in operations and management. His far-reaching insight
has been proven by the solid foundation built through the
strategic framework he led to deliver exceptional customer
experiences underpinned by commitments to innovation,
technology and sustainability.

Mr. Wong is a member of the 2022 Fair Organising Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its Hong Kong
International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International Diamond,
Gem and Pearl Show. He is a council member of The Hong Kong
Management Association, chairman of the Jewellers' and
Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong, chairman of executive
committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths" Association,
chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Jewellers’” & Goldsmiths' Employees’ Association, a
permanent honorary president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel
Merchants' Staff Association, a board member of Diamonds Do
Good, and a board member of CIBJO, the World Jewellery
Confederation. He is a member of the Anhui Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference and
president of the executive committee 2020/2022 of Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong was ranked the 1t place in the “Best CEO" category in
Institutional Investor's 2021 All-Asia Executive Team rankings, the
Rest of Asia, Consumer/ Discretionary sector, combined vote type.
He has also been feted with the highest accolade of the JNA
Awards 2020, the "Lifetime Achievement Award"”, for his
outstanding lifetime achievements and contributions to the global
jewellery community. Mr. Wong was named as “Asia’s Best CEO
(Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian
Excellence Awards for five consecutive years from 2017 to 2021
and was awarded Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors in December 2015.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Crystal
International Group Limited, which is a listed public company in
Hong Kong.
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Aged 59, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011 and re-designated as Managing Director,
Mainland China, of the Company in April 2021, being in charge of
the strategic planning and overall management of Mainland
business. He is co-chairman of the Sustainability Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan has extensive knowledge and experience of the market
in Mainland China and has been in the jewellery industry for over
40 years. He is a senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade
Association of China, a member of National Technical Committee
256 on Jewelry and National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry
and Jade of Standardization Administration of China, a member of
the standing council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-
chairman of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of
Commerce, a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery
Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold Association of
Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden
Jewellery and Jade Industry’'s Association, and a director and
visiting professor of the China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).
He is also a member of the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
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Aged 42, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the
strategic investment and smart retail of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer
of New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the
strategic direction for its property development and investment
activities. He is also an executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited, chairman and a non-executive
director of Arta TechFin Corporation Limited, and a non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited and New Century
Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was a non-executive director of
i-CABLE Communications Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong, until his resignation on 2 July 2019.

Dr. Cheng is the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, the chairman
of the China Young Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of
K11 Art Foundation, and the vice chairman and group chief
executive officer of CTF Education Group. He was the vice-
chairman of the 11" and 12" committee of the All-China Youth
Federation. He was acknowledged by Fortune as one of “40 Under
40" global business stars and a “Young Global Leader” by the
World Economic Forum in 2012. Dr. Cheng is a Justice of Peace
appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region since 2016 and was made an Officier in the Ordre des Arts
et des Lettres by the French Government in 2017.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. He
worked in a major international bank from September 2003 to April
2006 prior to joining the Group, and has substantial experience in
corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the brother
of Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 63, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive
Director in April 2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible for the
Group's bank and landlord relationship management. Mr. Cheng is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society. He has over 40 years' experience in administration
and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii, Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, and
an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is responsible for the
finance and information functions of the Group. He also serves as
a joint company secretary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The
Prince of Wales's Business & Sustainability Programme designed
by the University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability
Leadership and obtained Executive Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of
the Financial Reporting Council in Hong Kong, and a Panelist of the
HK Tech 300 Seed Fund of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was ranked the 1%t place in the “Best CFO" category in
Institutional Investor's 2021 All-Asia Executive Team rankings, the
Rest of Asia, Consumer/ Discretionary sector, combined vote type.
He has also been named as “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”
by Corporate Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on
corporate governance, at its Asian Excellence Awards for five
consecutive years from 2017 to 2021.
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Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 57, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas business. He is also a
member of the Sustainability Committee. Mr. Suen is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 37 years. He is a
member of the executive committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association, the executive committee of the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association, Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee and
the executive committee of Youth Outreach. Mr. Suen holds an
Executive Master's degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 48, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for retail
technology applications and production management of the Group.
He is also a member of the Sustainability Committee. Mr. Liu is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in retail business and
operational management. He has been responsible for developing
the Group’s smart retail experience since 2010. He has also been
in charge of the Group's watch business and production

management in Mainland China from 2016 onwards.

Mr. Liu is a member of the Yantian District Committee of The
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference in Shenzhen,
vice chairman of the Federation of Industry and Commerce of
Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipal, a board member of YEAction,
vice chairman of the council of Shenzhen Performance Excellence
Management Foundation, and a member's representative of SEE
Foundation.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Western University (formerly known as The University of
Western Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer

Mathematics from Carleton University.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 76, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Victor Fung is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong
based multinational which comprises major operating groups
engaging in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing including
privately held Li & Fung Limited and publicly listed Convenience
Retail Asia Limited.

Dr. Fung is Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia Global
Institute at the University of Hong Kong, a multi-disciplinary think-
tank co-established with the Fung Global Institute to assume and
carry forward the Fung Global Institute’s mission to generate and
disseminate research and ideas on global issues from Asian
perspectives. He is also chairman of the 2022 Foundation, a non-profit
entity focused on research into Hong Kong's long-term competitiveness.

In public service, Dr. Fung is a non-official member of Chief
Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic
Development, an adviser of the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation
Office and a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee of
The Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member of the Council of the
Hong Kong Laureate Forum, a non-official member of the Governance
Committee of Hong Kong Growth Portfolio and chairman of the
Assessment Panel of the Global STEM Professorship Scheme
launched by the Hong Kong Government.
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Formerly, he was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (2003-2018), a member of the Economic
Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government (2013-
2018), chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (1991—
2000), the Hong Kong representative on the APEC Business Advisory
Council (1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong Airport Authority
(1999-2008), chairman of the Council of The University of Hong Kong
(2001-2009), chairman of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business
Council (2004-2013), a member of the Commission on Strategic
Development of the Hong Kong Government (2005-2012), chairman
of the International Chamber of Commerce (2008-2010), a member
of WTO Panel on Defining the Future of Trade (2012-2013), a vice
chairman of China Centre for International Economic Exchanges
(2009-2014) and chairman of the Steering Committee on the
Scholarship for Excellence Scheme (2014-2018). The Government of
Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the
Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the
community in Hong Kong. He was conferred a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Finance in June 2019. He was also honoured with
the Lifetime Achievement Award in the 2019 DHL/ SCMP Hong Kong
Business Awards in December 2019.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor's and Master's Degrees in Electrical
Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
Doctorate in Business Economics from Harvard University.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
China Strategic Holdings Limited, and an independent non-
executive director of Regina Miracle International (Holdings)
Limited and Playmates Holdings Limited, all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited.

Dr. Or was an independent non-executive director of Television
Broadcasts Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2020; and
non-executive chairman and a non-executive director of Esprit
Holdings Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2021, both of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded
Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in
2009. Dr. Or was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Social Science
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014 and was conferred
Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as Hang Seng Management College) in May 2017.

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

HEiEE L (SBS, JP)
WET2H W20 611 AREEABTHRITES -
BARRFFHEECEERREEERNEREE

BKE -

EEELtHREIPREBARARIFELIIFNTE
= RMHEPDEEREB)ERARDMZELEEFRA
AV IFMITES ZERRHREE LM ARAR -
2R B TERIT (RN BRAFEIIFNTES -

MELTEREREEARATDBLIFNTES 1
202051 A1 HEHE  URBERRERER AR
RITEEMIERTEE  N2021F1 A1 BEE - Z
FRAH /BB LT ARAR -

MELHAEEABLGNBEL (KHRELER)
27 - RR2009FEFBERNZRBELER L - MEL
R2014FEFBRTASRRELENBLEBHF L2
7~ RR2017F5 ARFRBERB(FIBELEER
B ) BIR KB T 54T -

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EZREREEASEN

81



82

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
Aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a

member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner
of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to
1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, FSE
Lifestyle Services Limited and COSCO Shipping International (Hong
Kong) Company Limited, all of which are listed public companies in
Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Piraeus Port Authority SA (a company listed on the Athens Stock
Exchange) and Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited. Mr. Kwong
was an independent non-executive director of OP Financial Limited,
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited and China Power
International Development Limited, until his retirement on 27 August
2019, 22 May 2020 and 3 June 2021, respectively.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an executive director of Hong Kong Aerospace
Technology Group Limited (appointed with effect from 16 July
2021), and an independent non-executive director of C C Land
Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited,
Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties Limited, Analogue
Holdings Limited, and China Strategic Holdings Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number
of other public and community service positions including being a
non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, a director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and the board of Heifer Hong Kong.
He was the former chairman of the Assessment Committee of
Mega Events Fund and ICAC Complaints Committee, and was a
member of Fight Crime Committee.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing
director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged
in toy manufacturing.
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Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2021 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Chia is a Venture Partner of Sequoia Capital China. He has over
ten years of practical experience in big data strategy and application
with unique insights into the future trends of e-commerce. He
joined Alibaba in August 2010 and served as the Vice President of
Alibaba (China) Co., Ltd. and the President of Data Committee.
During his tenure with Alibaba, the data team of Alibaba was
awarded “China Excellent IT Team” in the “Excellent Chinese
ClO" selection in 2014. Mr. Herbert Chia was rated as “China Top
10 Most Influential Big Data Entrepreneurs” by the State
Information Center of China in 2017 and also garnered Outstanding
Achievement Award in 2021 Al Golden Goose Awards of China.

Mr. Chia has been making significant contributions in helping to
bring China’s big data industry to a new level. He is a member of
Big Data Advisory Group of Beijing Government, Committee on
Innovation, Technology and Re-industrialisation and Co-opted
Member of the Information Services Committee, Hospital Authority
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Board of Director of
Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation and a non-
official member of the Governance Committee of Hong Kong
Growth Portfolio. He has also actively promoted Hong Kong to
become the big data pilot city in The China Great Bay Area and The
Belt and Road.

Mr. Chia is the Adjunct Professor of the School of Management of
Zhejiang University and the Alibaba Business School. He is also the
author of various best-selling books including The Big Data and The
Nature of Big Data. He holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University and an
EMBA degree from the Institut Européen d' Administration des
Affaires (INSEAD).
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Aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry
for over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate
executive. She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel
Labs Limited, a software lab developing Al-powered edtech games
and applications. She served as the President of TripAdvisor, APAC
from 2014 to 2016 and held various management roles at
TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia, Inc. from 2008 to 2016. She was a
management consultant with The Boston Consulting Group from
2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Engineering and a
Master of Engineering degree from the University of Cambridge and a
Graduate Certificate in Artificial Intelligence from Stanford University.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Swire
Properties Limited and Sunevision Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Octopus Cards Limited, a
board observer and advisor to HotelBeds Group and a non-
executive member of the Global Council of Herbert Smith Freehills,
LLC..
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Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on p.77 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 61, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and
Joint Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the general counsel of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of
experience in corporate, commercial and related regulatory
practice. He was a long standing partner and later on, consultant,
of a leading law firm before joining the Group and has extensive
experience on corporate finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served
on a number of public appointments.

Ms. Leung Man-Yan, lvy

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2019, is the Global Chief Intellectual
Capital Officer of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 25 years of
experience in human resources, training, total quality management
and customer service spanning across Fintech, Media, Hospitality
and Petrochemical industries.

To promote excellence in her areas of expertise, Ms. Leung is
actively engaged in public service. She is a member of the
Organising Committee of the Awards for Excellence in Training and
Development of Hong Kong Management Association (HKMA), and
has been on the Board of Examiners of the Quality Award of HKMA
since 2008. She is also a member of the Cross-Industry Training
Advisory Committee and the Specification of Competency Standards
Drafting Subcommittee for the Human Resources Management
sector of Qualifications Framework of the HKSAR Government.
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Ms. Danita On

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2012, is the senior director of Investor
Relations and Corporate Commmunications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and
media. Ms. On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing,
management consulting, equity research, asset management and
investor relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Lee Tin-Hei, Jade

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2016, is the general manager
responsible for business strategy and analytics as well as technology
applications of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience
in advanced analytics carrying out consulting and business
management roles with leading business analytics corporations.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 51, joined the Group in 1993, is the managing principal
responsible for managing and developing the information
infrastructures and technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has
approximately 30 years of experience in information technology.
He is currently vice president of the Internet of Things Industry
Advisory Council of GS1 HK.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 60, joined the Group in 1986, is the assistant director
responsible for the operation of Diamond Department and diamond
manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 35
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi
Aged 50, joined the Group in 1994, is the assistant director
responsible for managing and purchasing gemstones such as
jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over
25 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lau King-Ming

Aged 55, joined the Group in 2013, is the general manager
responsible for managing production and logistics capacities as
well as the related infrastructures of the Group. Mr. Lau has over
30 years of management and consultancy experience.
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Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 50, joined the Group in 2010, is the general manager responsible
for the branding and marketing management of the Group. Mr. Chan

has over 25 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 39, joined the Group in 2011,
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery

is the general manager

products. Mr. Lam holds an MA in Design, Innovation & Brand
Management from University for the Creative Arts, United
Kingdom. He has almost 20 years of experience in the jewellery
industry, specializing in jewellery design and strategic product
innovation. Mr. Lam was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding
Designer Award and was conferred Fellowship and Chartered
Manager by the Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration. He has been a committee member of the

International Jewellery Designer Association since 2017.

Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex

Aged 63, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager
responsible for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management
Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He holds an Executive Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America
and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the Gemmological
Association of Hong Kong.

Ms. Yuan Jie
Aged 45, joined the Group in 2002, is the executive general

manager responsible for managing the Mainland China
Management Center of the Group, orchestrating the overall
enterprise management in the Mainland China. Ms. Yuan has over
20 years of experience in change management, process efficiency
optimisation, risk control, corporate culture building and talent
development.

Ms. Yang Xiao-Lin

Aged 42, joined the Group in 2004, is the general manager responsible
for the Group's financial management and strategic finance. Ms. Yang
has over 20 years of experiences in auditing, accounting, financial
management and risk management. Ms. Yang is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FPREBWS

OUR “4T” FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance provides a framework within which the Board
forms their decisions and builds the Group's businesses. Our “4T"
principles for corporate governance guide the development of our
corporate governance practices, supporting the Group in better

HAIEEES 4TI RA

TEEAREFGHERRMARANEEEBNER -

BPMERER M4T] RABECEE AERNER
STRHAREEZEENRBERER KR HELER
MER -

achieving our strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and

development.

Transparent
S BER BEal R

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine
mutual understanding with stakeholders

ZEREANMANBEMEREYEF  HERELSHENEE T #

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business

/\HEJ]EI.H_\ ,Egﬁia_”%

Thoughtful acumen who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and
5 i f common values with stakeholders
'&,\E = E &) NG a:ttalnmel:]t (¢) ' ! )
SHRE KA R ERABVRE HEZENSEANBNBXBEMNEHR  FERMARBERTFEN
XBRERENERSFHENHEEESR
Truthful Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental

interests of stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them
BERABRVHHEL REFHENEANERRUEZIEEBERE

Traceable
HEBSE ERo=

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive
better utilisation of resources and fulfilment of stakeholders’ interests
BAHELCHEBNBRMNEESE  UEERERERNERSFHENFR

OUR BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK EEEETARE
Board Structure e Board of directors e Responsibilities and main tasks
EEENE - BMEMIETH
P.90-96 & e Board committees

EELEY
Board Composition e Board diversity e Continuing professional development
EEEAR Bxgsnlt HEEERE
P.97-103 & e Board refreshment e Remuneration

BEEEEH B

e Director roles and functions
BENACTNBEE

Board Operations
EEEER
P.104-111 8

Leadership and enablement
BE R AE
Communication and information support

BBMA R

Compliance and accountability
AHRMBE
Evaluation

i

Shareholder Communications
HIERAEE
P.112-116 B

Interactive engagement

LmEBEE

Shareholder rights and other information

I8 ZRU4RE M) R LAt R
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BOARD STRUCTURE EEEREB

The Board

4

Nomination Remuneration Audit Sustainability Executive
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
REEEE FMESE BRZEEE HEEREESE BITEEE
\ \ \ \ \
Intellectual .
Heform and Capital Strategy " Gover_nance Hisk Group Branding
Development . Committee Management .
. Committee 300 AT B ke e 2 . Committee
Committee P EREERES Committee SEENESE
HERERESE B £EY EREEEEY e -
\ \ \ \
Hong Kor]g & Macau Raw Materials .
. . of China and Finance and
Mainland China and .
chE A Other Markets Production Informeftlon
hEZE# « PERM BB AE R &N
REAMTIS ;
- 2= =
Board of Directors EFE
e Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group s AREERBERRIN  RBRAXEIS|IENES
by overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and ARBENEY  EARBEHBERDY

directing and supervising its affairs.
e Sets the Group’s core values and adopts proper standards to  BUAKEMZOEENRAZZORE  BREAX

ensure that the Company operates with integrity and being DRAABIELE  UYHASEORRERRMEAM

responsible to our shareholders and other stakeholders for the FHEAER -

Group's performance.
e More details on main tasks, p.91. o FRTEMNELFIE  F2HEIE -
Nomination Committee, Remuneration RELEESE  HFNEEE  BEEEE
Committee, Audit Committee and foHEEREEE

Sustainability Committee
e Undertake governance duties as specified in their respective s WMITHEBMBEHEMIIANERERT -
terms of reference.

e More details on main tasks, p.92-96. o FTRTENELFIG  F2MEIN2E6H
- - 9p= = ﬁ-

Executive Committee BITEEE

e Supports the Managing Directors to implement strategy and ~~ ® WBIEFMERRITRIEMEREERIR -

oversee operational performance.
e Being delegated with all the powers to act concerning the ~ ® EEFTARERMEERHTE -

ordinary course of business.
o Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the ~ © HESRBERIIMNIFEHEESELRE

Board for decision.

e More details on main tasks, p.104-106. o ITTHRMELFHE  EHLHE104E106H
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Iy AXEHREEEER QA



Main tasks of the Board of Directors BEETMEETE

Area of focus FY2022
-] (Number of meetings: 4) (%R : 4) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Strategy planning and e Discuss on the medium to long-term goals and strategies v
execution FwmT I E R B R
RESIRBIFIFNAT e Comment on the current strategic plan and financial budget v v
P B AR N BER
e Receive the strategic reports from the Managing Directors v v
ENERALENRERE
e Receive the management reports from the Executive Committee v v v v
ENHITZEGNERRE
e FEvaluate strategic investment projects v

AR ARIAR

Business and financial e Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend v
performance HEFEEEMREAREHRARBRE
MY BRI e Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend v
AP EZEEMBE ARPHRE
e Review quarterly performance and recent business development v v
B FEERRITAEBER
e Review on industry trends and market outlook v v
BRITEBEFTISA R
* Receive the investor feedback report v v
ERREENRERS
Corporate governance ® Receive the reports from the Nomination Committee, 4 v 4
TEED Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
ERREEZES  FWEEENERZEGNRSE
e Approve re-structuring of board committee and the appointment v

of committee members
HEEEZEGNEEARZEGNENED

e Approve the changes in INEDs' remuneration v
HEBILFFATEEHMES

e Consider/ approve connected/ continuing connected transactions v v
ER/ AERE/ FHERERZS

e Review sustainability performance and approve the report v
B S E SR AR NERERE

e Approve the proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual v
general meeting and the publication of related circular
BOEIR 2 FRRBF RS K &3 R M T 38R0 &

e Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs v
EESETREBUFNTEFNHAMGE

During the year, the Board has increased attention on: FRN - EFLFRWEIUTEHIE
e Market expansion and business model in Mainland China. o EAMATHISHEKEEER -
e Technology applied in accelerating production and operational o EARIREEEREERE -
efficiency.
e Execution of Dual-Force Strategy and sustainable development. s WMITEHNKMIAIFELE -
Annual Report 2022 Corporate Governance Report 9']
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Main tasks of the Nomination Committee

REEEEMEETE

Area of focus FY2022
DEHE (Number of meetings: 3) (€& X & : 3) Q1 Q3 Q4
Board performance e Evaluate on the structure, composition and size of the Board of Directors v
assessment MR E R YRR - ARTIRE
FEERATME e FEvaluate on the structure, roles and delegation of Board committees v
MEEEZEENAEE  AETRES T
e Propose the new composition of Sustainability Committee and the v
change in the composition of Remuneration Committee
REUFEERZEENVNEECNTNEEGNNER
e Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment v
of INEDs
ST AR IE L FEBNTTE B AV IE LRI AR
e Review and monitor the training and continuing professional development v
of directors and senior management
BANEREENEREEABNEIRBESEERE
e Understand the recent updates of Corporate Governance Code v v
TREEERTRIN AT
Board composition e Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives v
review required by future strategic needs
EEgmEKERR HAERREREENHRETEMRTNERNESNZ (LB
e Analyse on the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress v
ATERIMEESEK - 2B EMEE
Board refreshment or e Consider the planning for board refreshment with respect to INEDs v v v
succession B ERITEEEREFTSENE
ERGEANEMR e Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors 4 v
AREEZNREMEHEE
Directors’ nomination e Nomination and selection of new directors and recommendation on the v v

and appointment
BEENRBREMR

relevant appointment

REMBBHEER  REFEERE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has increased

attention on:

e Assessing the recent updates of the Corporate Governance °
Code in relation to the nomination of directors and the future

board mix.

e Building the pool of potential candidates for the INEDs o
refreshment plan.

e Re-positioning the Sustainability Committee to enhance the °
Board's leadership and oversight on the sustainability strategies

BEEglAHAR -

REFRTESENEDEE

FR - REZEGERBWIUTEER

A EEERTANCHE T BERESFIRAIARE

AIE o

RAUFBBERZEGEN M  UWINREFTGH A
FEZRRBNRANREREE -

and performance.
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Main tasks of the Remuneration Committee

HNEEEMEETE

Area of focus FY2022
BEEE (Number of meetings: 3) (2 X% : 3)
Performance and e Assess on the linkage between Company's performance and

rewards for executive
directors and

senior management ~ ®
HITEERSMEEA

B HR M EEE

remuneration level for executive directors and senior management
FHMEAR AR EERNTESNSREIEA S FHOKT 2 a0 B

Consider the benchmarking report that compares the remuneration
packages for executive directors and senior management with the
market level
2EARPTEENSREEASNTHEFBEATSHFMH L BNH T RE
Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for
executive directors and senior management with reference to the Group’s
performance, remuneration strategy and market competitiveness
SEREEEE  FTWNRBEERMERFIUEERTESREREEAEN
FEBNFERE

Review the rewards under long-term incentive plan

mE R A THRE

Remuneration policy e
and strategy
A B TR A

Supervise on the remuneration policy and structure for directors and
employees

EEEENEENFTHENEE

Consider the market benchmarking report on the welfare and benefits for
directors and employees

2EBAREZTES RN LA BNTISHIERS

Examine the proposals for share award scheme

R BT BB R R

Propose change in the remuneration structure for INEDs to exclude
elements linked to share price performance
RABAENBLERITESTNFTMEE  UHEREREBERRHBANEE
Endorse the annual pay rise budget for frontline and back office staff with
reference to market salary survey, the Company’s performance and
incentive strategy

2EMSHFMNRAE ARARRBIHERE - BREAIKIEHE TNFEIN
HRE

Strategic intellectual e
capital development

RESIEE NEARER

Understand the recent updates of Corporate Governance Code in relation
to corporate culture and workforce diversity
THREEEATARPERFABCEMEME I ZTEHAR

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased

attention on:

e Enhancements in the Group’s remuneration and welfare policy ~ ® EFAARSERFMEENBE  NEGAEENEE

in line with the Group's employers’ branding strategy. an RS o
e Cultivation of desirable corporate culture and workforce diversity ~ ® RAEFTMEREATAIEZ - HERENERX
as promoted in the revised Corporate Governance Code. {EMBETZ Tk -

e Exploring share award scheme proposals to reward and retain ~ ® WD SREIRT BIM ANE TS & - ARE AR B (0 %

corporate leaders for the promotion of the Group's long-term B (REARBIERURENKY)

success.
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Main tasks of the Audit Committee BEZZEEENFEETE

Area of focus FY2022
BEEE (Number of meetings: 3) (& X & : 3) Q1 Q3 Q4
Strategic alignment e Qversee IT governance and the digital transformation of finance function v v
KR E EBAMBHE A MM IS BE e 5
e Comment on the top risks analysis for the next financial year in the v

context of Dual-Force Strategy
ELHNRBONESET st T —EHBRFENEZRRSITELFE

e Comment on the three-year internal audit plan and adequacy of resources v
supporting the internal audit function
BERRR=ZFORNSEZAEN AL EABENERES TR

e Review the financial reporting system and adequacy of resources v
supporting the financial reporting function

R M BRE RN R ERERENERTERR

Risk management and e Receive reports from Risk Management Committee v v v
controls ENRREEZEENMmE
[2\Fgx B 2B RO e Receive internal audit reports 4 v/ v
A S E RS
e Receive anti-fraud reports v v v
TR SRS

Corporate governance ¢ Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal v
TEER control systems, and external and internal audit
FEER R E IR A EIE RGN AT - ARINE R A B EZ
e Annual review on the continuing connected transactions v
BBRFEANFEBEZS
e Review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code v
R EERTRINEITIER
e Review the disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual v v

reports (including Corporate Governance Report therein) and sustainability report
BEEERNE  PHRERFR(BEAPNLEE AWME) MAFESE
IR E B R R
e Review and adopt the amendments to the anti-fraud policy and v v
whistleblowing policy pursuant to the revised Corporate Governance
Code

RIBEERTR BT T AR R R SR BRI R BB AT

um—
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FY2022
(Number of meetings: 3) (2 X & : 3)

Area of focus

BEHE

Q1 Qa3 Q4

Financial statements °

PR E RNEREHEBMY BN ST

Receive the management’s analysis on the business and financial review v v

e Review significant accounting policies, finance controls and subsidiary v v

governance on accounting and auditing issues

EREANGTEE  BGEGINNBAR S MBFEENER

e Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for v v

the Group's interim and annual results

B SR B b RS R MM TS R A 2 MANKE

External auditor °

S Bz ZREm

Comment on the annual audit plan
HEEEZTHREHER

e Receive auditor’s audit report, or interim review report v v

EEZ MO E R E P HEMRE
e Private meeting with auditor

B ETTEHM g R

e Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of v

auditor, and recommend on their re-appointment

ERZBEABEENETERN RANER  URERENZE

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on:

e Adequacy of accounting controls, financial analysis and audit
works in view of the significant expansion of the Group's
franchise business.

e Cloud transformation, cybersecurity, system integration and
data governance, which are fundamental to operational
efficiency and business risk mitigation in the digital age.

e Application of technology and data analytics in risk management
and internal audit, to ensure emerging risks could be identified
and timely dealt with.
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Main tasks of the Sustainability Committee OGEERESENEETE

Area of focus FY2022
BEEE (Number of meeting: 1) (&2 X & : 1) Q4

Performance review e

KRBT

Review on the current status of the Group’s sustainability development in “Craftsmanship, v
Innovation & Technology”, “Responsible Sourcing”, “People Focused” and “Resource

Efficiency & Carbon Reduction”

BIEEAREEE [EARF]  [EERE] [AARK] R [RENGE ] W HEERIA

Consider the findings of benchmarking assessments and stakeholders’ engagements over the v
past years

SEBEBFHBEAMNBERMFTFHE N2 E

Strategy and goals °
g 22 B 15

Discuss on the purpose and approach to integrate sustainability strategies with business v

strategies
AR REERRBENERBAEENE NG E
Agree on the goal-setting ambition for the roadmap driving to the sustainable future and v
re-visit the milestones for the 10-year sustainability strategy laid down in the “Centennial
Commitment”

PR RN AT FRAE R R BR AR B IR - WEER [ A FAGE] Fra] PO TF A58

BERBEHEER

Reporting e Propose the theme and key messages to be presented in the current year's sustainability v
HE report

BRSEAFEAHEERRESPRANEBMARAS

e Review on the compliance with various sustainability reporting frameworks and future plan for v

disclosures enhancement

B ESEABEERRSERNETERMARRMBEENTE
Accountability for e Agree on the position and responsibilities of this committee v
execution WAL B EHEL M E
BITEE e Configure an appropriate management structure with adequate resources and incentives to v

facilitate the effective execution of sustainability strategy

BIEEMERRRE  REFZERMMBEE - BB AHEERRBEEXNT

The Sustainability Committee underwent a re-structuring to AIFEREZESCETEMR  ABEEZESALA
upgrade from a management committee to a board committee for EFZEZEg UNARESSYUASENREERSE
the sake of strengthening the board’s leadership and oversight X RIDABEMEE -

over the Group's sustainability strategy and performance.

During the year, the Sustainability Committee has increased FN - ARERREZEEEREINTEIE

attention on:

e Defining a statement for our social purpose that brings enduring e AFHMIHEER FRMBIAEBERALS

benefits to the society by conducting the Group's business. HRIF AR -
e Building an integrated framework for business practices to e REXEBEBRERUGAER EEEHIIEETE
pursue Dual Force Strategy and sustainability strategy altogether B AR HELR R o

along our value chain.

e (Crafting a compelling sustainability storyboard to showcase our o BHEEHMITMALMUBEREER  ErRFAE

sustainability efforts and to motivate our colleagues to work TEHEHETEAMEENE N WHERE LR
together towards our social purpose. NERBEMOELEEZ -
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board consists of 16 directors.

Independence
B

Board tenure

EEaa8

Our Board diversity policy

perspectives in order to achieve the Company’s long-term goal

and strategy.

19%

EETAEM
FEGH 16K EEEA -

Age
Fik

INED
BYFPITES

—
INED B3 4T ES

—
ED H{TES

24%

Gender
L]

13%

Average years of service .

P BRI FH

L1
0-3 years &

4-6 years F

I
10 years or more 8L

EEEZTLBUR
e Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of o NABEMENEENZITRE  NEBEARFTNE
B IZ A SRR o

5 Average age
FHFR

—

35-50

51-65

over 65

818655k

Female directors

ZHES

L1
Female Z

I
Male &

e Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on ~ ® EFEESE E IS S MR B £ RKEEH

broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better

understanding on customers and stakeholders.
e A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes: e RETA—EZBEMBESHEAE

— Personal skills and professional knowledge
— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders
— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Annual Report 2022
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Our current board mix of knowledge and experience

Broad business exposures

Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
Emerging sectors serving for customers’ lifestyle and enjoyments:
— Lifestyle products and fashion

— Leisure and entertainment

— Travel and hospitality

— Technology and innovation

— Healthcare, finance and insurance

Connections with commercial leaders, public bodies and
community groups.

Worldwide market experience

China market
European and the United States markets

Diverse professional knowledge

Expertise in retail and jewellery
Technology and data analytics

Corporate strategies and risk management
Listed company governance

Capital market and finance

Our diversity objectives for the future Board

Proven experience in young generation market and
business innovations.

A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across
multiple commercial fields.

Idea crossovers and collaborative innovations along the
consumers’ value chain in a wider market.

Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders' interests.

The joining of two female and young directors in April 2019 has
contributed to a desirable Board mix in view of gender and age diversity.
Together with another new INED appointed in April 2021, the
diversity of age mix and board tenure are further enhanced.

Governance
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Board refreshment EETEHN

Board nomination EEERE

Nomination policy and process

Status update

REBKRNER 18R E
Stage 1 e | ook into future challenges, opportunities, business model and Reviewed in FY2021
Preparation strategic goals 2021 BT B FEE R
E—EER RETARRAPREL - B - EBRAMKH BT ¢ Retail and China
TEE e |dentify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires experience
BRRPEFETENRTNLER TEMPELR
e Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition e Technology and data
IR EE S S AEKREESIE application
e Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s) BHE A8k e B
FlIEMEEEREANERMEZ e Governance and risk
e Propose the timeline for Board refreshment management
BRREFSENNRMBER ERMEREE
e Gender and age diversity
MRIFF RS T
Stage 2 * Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional Nomination in FY2022
Nomination consultants 2022 U EIR &
F R BREEFFNEXFTXEMBERREA e Building a multi-year
T4 e Consider a broad range of candidates who are in or outside of the pipeline of INED
Board's circle candidates
BZEREZGE T RIMNIEEA MeEBILIFRTEEENR
e Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability [P
HABRREASELTEESREE e Approached some
e Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and candidates and received
function, and committee membership their feedbacks
MESCRIZMEES  BEACHNEE  URZESKESH BRI NREB I ERE
B
Stage 3 e The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment FY2022 appointed Mr. Chia
Appointment EEEERERNAEEZE Pun-Kok, Herbert
E=MER e Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as 2022 FEEEEME T
=T induction activities 4
EEEBEMBELHE  ARBEEH e Appointment letters
e Publish an announcement, fulfil statutory filing requirements and issue EEHK
letter of appointment e Onboard and re-election
FlBgRE - TROATE R HEER FERER
e Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general e |nduction activities
meeting and make adequate disclosure on the respective nomination process B EE)
ET—EAREAGERTENZTES  UHABIRREFIEERSHE
Management succession planning EREEESTE
e Enrich the roles played by young management by allocating e ZRAKBUENTIBEFEEEAS  URERKAEASE
challenging assignments for the achievement of the Group's EarEERPEEAMEE -
sustainable development.
e Create strategic task force and career advancement o AMMEl R EERNEMEAME -
opportunities for them.
e Provide comprehensive training and development programmes. o IREEMIBIIFEREE -
e Design attractive incentive schemes to reward outstanding performance. o RETAWS| W ERENFTEILUSEN A RE -
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Director roles and functions

Our Board is collectively responsible and accountable to our
shareholders for the Group's performance.

EENAETREEE
EEERAEEHRAKARRTAERME -

Number of directors INED Executive directors

EEHYA BAFHTES HITES

Board of Directors # & 16 38% 62 %
Nomination Committee 22 Z 8 & 7 71% 29%
Remuneration Committee HiEfZ E& 7 57% 43%
Audit Committee EZZE € 4 100% 0%
Sustainability Committee AIFEHREZE S 6 33% 67%
Executive Committee $117ZE& 10 0% 100%

The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship
with each other and the membership of the board committees are
set out on p.70-85.

Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

e Provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively.

e QOversees strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

e Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long-term value.

e Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance
and risks of the Group.

e Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.

e [NEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees
and undertake detailed governance work under the respective
terms of reference.

e Being appointed for a term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Managing Directors, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent and

Mpr. Chan Sai-Cheong

e Formulate and recommend the strategy of the Group to
the Board.

e | ead the management team to execute the strategy agreed by
the Board and is responsible for the overall business and
operations of the Group.

Other executive directors

e FEach has one’s own strategic and/ or management responsibilities.

e Support the Managing Directors to oversee the execution of
corporate strategies and supervise on the business and operations.

Directors’ time commitment

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors:

e Directors’ confirmation

* Meeting attendance rate

e Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings

e Participation in continuing professional development to keep
abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors’ duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors,
including INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company's affairs.

Governance
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Executive Directors BiTEE

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRHET n 4/4¢ 33 33 - - v
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy gEELE n 4/4 - - - - v
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia gEELL i 4/4 - - - - v
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRELAE n 4/4 3/3 3/3 - e v
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong [Fud=pt: i 4/4 - n - 11 v
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian HEREL n 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson gt by 11 4/4 - - _ _ /
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ELRER A 11 4/4 - - - _ /
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEarE i 4/4 - - - 1 v
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRA%E i 4/4 - - - 11 v
Independent Non-executive BIAERTES
Directors

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BREEL 1 4/4 33 3/3 - - v
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEEt n 44 33 33 33 - v/
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BEarE i 4/4 - 3/3 3/3¢ - v
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey Mgt n 414 33 - 33 - v
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert HRERE n 4/4 33 - 33 n v
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily LY S n 4/4 33 33 - n v/
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul® ERRR )|t i 2/2 N - mn - -

Note: B EE -

C  Chairman of Board or the relevant Board committees C BEEGNAMESZEGNER

v/ All directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of them has v PREZCRIAFENEIRE  ERBERSALBEAQARERE

fulfiled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p.102 organised by the Company. 102 EFTEMES) BEITHIIEK -
#  Retired from the Board during the year # FRNEEFERT
Conflict of Interest and Independence Flx ERFIBILM

Nomination Committee’s annual review on INEDs’

independence

Based on the review of a number of factors:

Potential conflict of interest

Nature and amount of business relationship and transactions
with the Group during the year

Nature of offices held in other companies, organisations and
other significant commitments

Cross-directorships or significant links with other directors

Each INED’s annual confirmation of independence received by
the Company

Years of service as INED

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from

any business or other relationship which could materially interfere

with the exercise of their judgement. Detailed elaboration on the

Board’s assessment are made in the circular to shareholders in

respect of the INEDs to be re-elected in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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Continuing professional development

Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to
driving performance towards our strategic goals and exercising
critical oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the
era of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops
on themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where
our leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.
Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of
other advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board’s hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors’
training records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

Assist incoming directors to have proper understanding on the
business and operations, strategies and competitive
environment of the Group, and directors’ duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board
roles, their expertise and experience, enabling them to make
contributions as early as possible to the Board, particularly on
providing advice on the strategies.

Induction activities guide

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on selected topic relating to potential contribution
expected from the new director.

Meet with our management teams and visit our facilities to
understand the Group's existing plans and needs.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

— Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Invite the new director to share on selected topic relating to his/ her
expertise topic in a Board and management seminar.

Governance

E/D

FEERER
B AR IR KT TR RN
HUEEIE - A RARGEEREBRRARA o

o RARKIEBBEMENURRAMEENFR -

s HPEFRERKEZBEMHZMAML

B FEEE AN

J E*Hiibééﬁiﬁﬁﬁyitft$ﬁEﬁﬁ@jzEE%B@&Eéégé%E%P‘~
EREWBNIIEY  BFEEREERMHOE
ABEBIRIE B4 -

o THEMERFAMN  URZREMEEDLENZFES -

o HIEE FEMEBA
mzﬁﬂﬁﬁo

o RIRXEEE
FE WEB
BB RIRT o

REFgHFAMFERY
THERE WTREEENER
1 Higdlrcsk 2B EEg28)E

IN: - 1:¢ ]
s MPMITEETHALBEELEE
BOAREEREREENER -

RGN IR

s MBHEETHESTSMAEXL -

s RFEEMAR FEEMERMEGMAEN A

BT FHMEARRAEERELES A
HEERHHEREER

B A IES|

. ?ﬁﬂﬁ}o

e HEMEFENAMENTHES URMEEER
IRERRYA L BRI /F 1 ER -

e HEBEBRKEE WHREHRMHOR
BB ATENEFE -

e EEFAKRLAEERTD
— EBRAMER
— ITEBBNWmISAR
— ERMPERR
—EENEERENEL
— EERBUR

s BANEENEZGNEHEREDZTEHAEE
FERH BN o

S e AR R AR &

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER QA



Remuneration

Put in place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate
and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group
as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.

Offer fair and competitive reward levels to ensure comparability
with companies listed in Hong Kong competing for talents with
similar leadership qualities.

Executive directors

27

ﬂunmﬂﬁﬁﬁb%ﬂ CDAIRE] - BB E AT &
MEEERGAS M FHARBEEREHNEH
REEER LA&Z%Hx%E’W’FUﬁT&T&@JE%%‘J% o

RHLQ
MRAALL - ARSI B A EEE RS

NSRS H AR ﬁE%Téﬁiﬁi\@Eﬁéi
BEITRAT o

BITES

Fixed portion e Salaries, benefits and pension
EIE &R EXFH &  BRFEKRE
e Director's fee
ik
Variable portion e Discretionary bonus linked with the Company’s performance as follows:
FENER (R — the current year's profitability

— the increase in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

BN FRBEABHWEIELLT

— ZFEENETRE
— R—BEHEA

RABBEEIE R B IR

Incentive-based, with a significant portion of the variable portion
correlated with the short term profitability and long-term value
of the Company.

Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the
Company and interests of its shareholders.

Determined by the Remuneration Committee.

Independent non-executive directors

BV GHEE LAY F B ALy B R R 80 R
AR N FREEERS -

St P ) B BH B A % B SR 3R MR RN s 8

HFMEZEERE -

BIAERITES

Fixed portion e Director's fee

BB 45 Exme

Variable portion e Discretionary bonus linked with:

FENER (R — the increase in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

BYIBIEAL - BLIA T4 -
— R—BHER 2

AR EEIERREN LR

(Remark: Starting from FY2023, the remuneration of INEDs will comprise fixed portion only in order to strengthen the independent roles of INEDs.)

(it : B2023RFER  RIRBIULFATEFTNELAC  BUFATESNHIHBRILZET DD

Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and
independence in thinking so that their views carry weight in the Board.
Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board
committees they serve.

Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles,
responsibilities and time commitment.

Determined by the Board, after discussions in the Remuneration
Committee.

More details on directors’ remuneration for FY2022, p.189.
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Leadership and enablement {55 BIf g

Area of focus

Main tasks of the Executive Committee

BEER HITEEEMNETEIE
Strategy e Competition and market development strategy Investment and acquisition strategy
R AT 5 B R AR R 128 0B R R
e Customer strategy and business model Intellectual capital and IT strategy
FEE R A EBER BN ERTIE B R
Execution e Business targets and progress tracking Investment budget and appraisal
BT X5 B EREE BN RERE MG
e Goals and reward system for the management Organisation and management
EIRAB M B EMEEGIE structure
HEAE IR
Monitoring e Business alignment with strategies and Compliance with laws and regulations
B risk appetite BERTER

EBBREAREMERAZE
e Efficiency in operations and use of resources
EEME R AR

Corporate culture and ethics
EXEMERE

Accountability

e Governance policy and practices

Social and environmental objectives

il BB TG A HEFIRRBAE
* Investors' perspectives
REENAR
Strategy planning REG R E
e Formulate market driven and customer focused strategies to o EMISZHBMBEREAROLHERE  NERESFE
achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by RAHEREEMEE MR -

the Board.

e Organise broad-based engagement activities from top-down to o MABALMTHMEZESES  UHRKXBERE
align strategic vision and encourage collaborations across functions: ek EhReE 2 R A 1E -

- Large group: strategy forum, annual retreat and inspirational expert — KE RRRERE  FEEERSMEZOERIN
briefing on topics such as industry and market assessment, Eﬁ( BEEH WAﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁifﬂm Sal il R
competitive review, customer profile and segmentation CHEBERUEMESEEE

- Small group: interview, focus group and innovation panel on — /J\’J‘é DRI - FREL/NBAAIET J\ZH W”ﬁf%’\
topics such as analysing market signals, analysing on DMTHEE - MRS EEROEBNNE
opportunities and threats of our own value chain EELE]

e Connect bottom-up proposals to the medium to long-term e HHTMENEZMAPNERBAMNKEKER !

strategic map:

- Review strategies, annual plans, business targets and
financial budgets submitted by business segments

- Validate the consistency and effectiveness of these annual
plans on their assumptions such as competition landscape,
customers proposition, business model and required level of
return to shareholders etc.

Governance
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Strategy execution REREAT

Hong Kong & Macau

. . of China and Raw Materials and Finance and
Mainland China . .
o i Py Other Markets Production Information
hEEE « PEIRFR R REE A5 R &
Hibmhis

e Hold monthly Executive Committee meetings to review the e BARITHITZESSH  NERRRRE &E
performance reports, monitor the progress of strategy REEHITHER - BBEE - U HSEBIEK
implementation, financial budget and analyse the effectiveness of B A R AR RS RO EE o
business drivers in order to review and make timely adaptations.

e Supervise on critical aspects of the major business segments o BEFDEBHIWMBREAE  fINKENELE

E
such as strategic prioritisation, resources allocation and w BRSBEMENGTE - REIMEL B S H A
performance measurement, the planning and building of profit BE EEERVETEAS -

drivers and budgets, managing the portfolios of products and
customers and so on.

e Connect the dots in a flat organisation structure under a s ERTHAMEBAMBA  UBEERFLZITE
customer-centric approach to promote synergies among the EERAER  NRERRNE - RGEAT - HE -
Group, as well as aligning various strategies on talent, reward, b BERAREMEEIEEPEREEERLS o
culture, risk appetite and controls.

e Set up and supervise on the management committees, which o I AE %E‘ﬁi%@ L B %0 0 17 B 4R B 5K mE

assist in the strategic planning for relevant areas and supervise MEEREEZIEEIRHEK °
the attainment of the Group's objectives.
e Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group. e MEZGERAEEHNKRNR -
Annual Report 2022 Corporate Governance Report ’I 05
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Scope of work of the major management committees
TEEEZEENIEER

Reform and Development
Committee

HERBRESE

Drive business innovation and transformation to achieve sustainable growth of the
Group's business

HEEBEMANER  NERNASEEKNAHEER

Supervise on the reforms along the value chain and the business model

EHEERREHER G

Intellectual Capital Strategy
Committee

ENEXRBESE

Formulate major intellectual capital strategies and policies to support the Group's
business transformation and sustainability

FIEFEENERKBABER  AXR/FAEENEBELMAFERE

Monitor the progress of major intellectual capital enhancement projects
ERFEHNEREAEBENEE

IT Governance Committee

HMERELSESE

Formulate major IT strategies and governance policies to enable the Group's business
transformation and operational efficiencies

FIEFEMERRHURBAERBE - FAKE I EREKEN S ERX

Monitor the progress of major projects on IT infrastructure, system development, data
governance and information security

EREANMBER  AHRE  BERELNENXE2ESTIZHANER

Risk Management Committee

EREEESE

Build an enterprise risk management framework and policies

B (PR B IR AR SR MR

Review on the Group’s major risks and supervise on the mitigation measures
BRI AREN T ERRMNEEREEE

Group Branding Committee

Direct the brand vision, mission and values and corporate image

SEREBESE BERMER  CoaNEEARMELR
e Supervise on the differentiation strategy, including brand positioning, image and
marketing strategy
BEYERKRE  BEMETERL - RIS HRE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Communication and information support

Board communication

e Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of
strategy, risk and performance.

e Enable meeting efficiency with high quality information.

e Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from
meetings are followed up.

e Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.

e Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting schedule and agenda planning

e Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

e Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.

e Reallocate the Board's time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according
to the Board priorities changing over time.

e |nclude outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board

to chart the course ahead, encourage interactions and insights.

Board paper preparation

e Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that need to be taken
by the Board.

e Being concise and focused on priorities, objective and the
analytics based on facts.

e Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

e Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.

e Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider
the matters thoroughly before the meetings.

e Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and
minutes record via Board meeting apps.

Annual Report 2022
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Information updates between Board meetings
e Monthly updates include:
- Consolidated financial summary against budget
- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.
- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements
- A brief of matters arising from the monthly Executive
Committee meeting
e Quarterly updates on the operational performance with
management analysis.
e Knowledge about the future of our business and market,
emerging strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on
p.102 about the “continuing professional development”.

Compliance and accountability

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in
this “Corporate Governance Report”. During the year ended
31 March 2022, the Company was in full compliance with all
applicable principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are
likely to come across inside information because of their duties.
Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct during FY2022.

Governance
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Inside information disclosure
The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and

monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

e Material matters concerning the business, finance and
operations are escalated to the Executive Committee in a timely
manner for them to judge whether inside information exists and
an announcement is required.

e |nvestor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors’
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports,
etc. to see whether a material gap exists between the market
expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the

communication channels

e |nformation used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.

e Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnels are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.

e Code of practices for investor communications:

- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement

- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information
released to the public

- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials

- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs
for future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Please see the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on p.151-158.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that
could impact the Company’s ability, favourably or unfavourably, to
meet its strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk
management and internal control framework to proactively manage
risks, in line with the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control systems.
Further details are included under the section headed “Risk
Management Report” on p.117-135 in this annual report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-
audit services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services
shall be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

During FY2022, the total fee paid/ payable in relation to audit and
related services provided to the Group amounted to HK$11.5
million, of which a sum of HK$6.6 million was paid/ payable to our
principal auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the remaining was
mainly paid/ payable to other auditors performing audit work for the
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject to
local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for services
rendered is listed as follows:

[ B E IR 0 A R B 4

R EERAREARFBERERBEERNEIESE
BTN ZENEETE  EHABER - AREK
AE2NEARERMALEZER  UWEREERER

B RAI BB ENAG - %V%E\@E*ﬁaﬁﬂé
TP EREZMAGEERRORR - E—F&F
ERNAFHRE117E1368 fﬁkﬁﬁﬁ.i@*&%J — & e

9 BB #2 25 b B 35 31 1%

EVZESCERAGHIIN BB N ZEIEF L1
B BEIERA RN - SMEDE A AT ) A R 2
HETHEZRS  RESZEFRB L RAKER
RERAEBNEAERIOREKREE : TETEMNBE K
FfE G BT HASEEFEENAE  AEILE
MIFBRZRGEEHEXZREGHE -

BB 12 2 BT BY BN &
AEER2022RFEREERZLBERBCA/ &
NERRERNEAEEL HPEMN/ BENEER
BMESRKBE AN EBI6.6 BEBIL - A

ERARA P RAMIE QR IRB T ERAETHE
RIEEN/ BN A ERED - stERERBENEL

BACER R EBAM L EBB A RN HIIMT

FY2021 FY2022
Types of services HK$°000 HK$’000
RAA FH FH
Audit and related services™ EzLEEREO 6,287 6,573
Non-audit services®? FEEZRG @ 2,078 3,777
8,365 10,350

(1) Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected (1) BREERGREYRBHES  SERRLH RIS AE 2 EHRBE AR

transactions and preliminary announcement and tax compliance service.

(2) Non-audit services comprise primarily IT related services and advisory provided to the Group. None
of these services provided compromises the independence as auditor, in terms of the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and were
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Governance
E /Cl

B HIRE -

E

FEBERBEEQFEAAEMIB A AP BABERS REH - RBEERE
FHEDIEERER B RGN [FERAMBETR - LR a0 RE I &
FEZEMNELY  BREERZ R eHMMALE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER QA



Area of focus

Purpose and approach

Information source

BREEHE BB =R ERRR
Board process e Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time e Survey
EELRT AREEGWEABEAN  TEAERR BESHIES

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation
ARRAWERENREER  URSEAMIE  2R#EXELAKESE
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in
strategy and risk landscape, or Board composition

ERBEERMKT HEFSEMEIRRAEHRETEER

Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
ER R EHNBRENREERFERS

Board structure
EEQLE

Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board e
committees to oversee all critical areas of governance

EEFENEEELZEQ HRENODRER  UEBMBBERNE S8R
Well-defined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
PARATEFTHERE RORERBRERT

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

mitRZ e gFma

Benchmarking
HIEE

Board composition
ExglX

Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to e
achieve the Company's long-term goal and strategy
EXSAEMENTMZERANK  UERAEE R R B EFMER .
Annual review by the Nomination Committee

mitRZ B 8F My

Survey
SEEIE=
Benchmarking
HIZTH R

Director performance

BERR

Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, o
performance targets and financial returns

WITEREEMERRB T  BREEMMEERIKE

INEDs' time commitment, contribution and independence

B IEMITESHNRERA - ERAE I

Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

mEFMEZEeNERZ 8 egF Ry

Benchmarking
$IZ

Director development
BEEER

Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that e
they stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market
FHETHEENHMEMRE  BRETHEBEZNRBENTSUBT T TRE

Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
R ERMARTZNREEEEE

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HRREZESTFRE

Survey
SESHES

Board leadership and
strategies
EECMBEBRENM
R

Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of o
the Board

BURITESHEEE TR IFHLBIT—AHMIEE

Open agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group
HAREEBETEEETIHERBZEREN R

May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group’s strategies, leadership

of the Board, performance of the management, etc.

REEZOEE  GINASENKRE ZEFSNEEE)  ERENKESE

INEDs' feedback
BN IERITE R RE
ER
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Interactive engagement

We adhere to the principle of providing timely, transparent and
effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market
regularly informed of the Group’s performance and prospects.
Investors often give us constructive ideas that inspire us to
improve and create more values for shareholders. While we try
to understand investors’ perspective, we also share with them a
full picture of our business through the eyes of the management,
including our thoughts in making decisions, our views on market
outlook and our development strategies, etc. Our Investor
Relations team is committed to maintaining an open and
constructive dialogue with them.

To promote the Group's reputation and branding, our Corporate
Communications team helps convey corporate messages
efficiently to a wide range of stakeholders including investors
and media.

In the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, we embrace flexibility in
the way of engaging our stakeholders by unremittingly shifting
most meetings to a virtual environment, and while the pandemic
situation eases, maintaining face-to-face meetings in hygienic
manner with investors to add personal touch.

In FY2022 the Group received various accolades in recognition
of our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor
relations. Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on
p.8-11.

Governance
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Meetings by investor event in FY2022
2022 BUEEEH (RREETHNHE)

12%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2022 are set

out below:

June 2021
2021%6 A

Citi China Consumer
Corporate Day 2021
EEREERNE

August 2021
202158A

Nomura China
Investor Forum 2021
FRBREEHRS

September 2021
2021494

Jefferies Asia Forum
EnEE e

28" CITIC CLSA
Flagship Investors' Forum

hEERREETE

Annual Report 2022
2022 #§

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2022

2022 (B EREEFARESHME

238

75%

One-on-one and group meetings

—H-REEEE

C-level participation rate"
BeEEESHEEN

Meeting and conference call
AHAREHEEH

1 3
Investor conference

REEWIE

12

Non-deal roadshows

FERZ R

I
Non-deal roadshow
IRGHE

Investor conferences

REEWTE

(1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
RREEFH G RIRHERTNSE

November 2021
202151148

Haitong Investor
Conference
HRIREEM g

December 2021
2021%124

Macquarie Consumer
Conference — Cosmetic,
Luxury & Lifestyle
EREBREETIE

24" Nomura
Investment Forum 2021

PR EEH e

R2022 M RFELEMREBEEGHE

January 2022
2022418

BofA Securities 2022
New York Asia Day
ERIEEEHE

Jefferies China Consumer
Corporate Days
Nt A S el

BofA China Luxury &
Consumer Investor Fieldtrip

ESici - ey

February 2022
2022%2A

Huatai Securities Conference
EFREETIE

March 2022
202253A

Morgan Stanley Virtual
Hong Kong Summit
BERLAFREET R

Corporate Governance Report
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Multiple channels of communication and engagement

Press and analyst results conferences

EERDTEEGE

Held press and analyst
conferences for interim and annual
results. Under the pandemic,
events were conducted through
live webcasts instead of physical
meetings during the year

Hosted conference calls on
announcements of quarterly key
operational data

Announcements, presentations
and webcasts are available on the

Group website

BITPHEEFEENDERINESR
g ERIEFET FRBTHRME
g FEERRER e R T

RITEFETIBLEHBEASHAN

e
Eau H AR

tEAE BHRMEREFBRES
B 48 uh

Annual general meeting (“AGM"”)
BRBAEXE

Maintained face-to-face
communication with shareholders
in 2021 AGM, under COVID-19
precautionary measures

The Board and external auditors
presented to answer the
questions raised by shareholders
Detailed explanation for each
proposed resolution in the circular,
with high approval rate on
resolutions passed
EERFEBMRESHEAGERT -
HREIRRE 2021 FREBEREH
BRI
EFgRINEREMEFE SR NG RE
AR
BRERBHFHTERBREAD A
RESERH

114
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Active engagement
with analysts and media

BT RIREEEEE

Held the first-ever Investor and
Media Day in September 2021,
covering our Dual-Force Strategy

and interviews with franchisees

Media representatives attended a
Christmas gathering with top
management in December 2021

Handled over 120 investors’

enquires, around 50 media
interviews and enquiries

Over 20 research analysts cover
our Company in their report on a
regular basis

202149 AR P EEIRE H MFe
B - Bt R E ) R RETTINE

[EEE
BEAKXESHERE—R282021F
12 ABITHERR S
BRILHEMI20MEIREEEH - #6501
AR R BN

B20BMEDMEBRAR A THZE
S

SREN

Corporate reporting

EE®/E

Announcements, annual and
interim reports, results
presentations and press releases
Quarterly voluntary announcements
of key operational data

R R FRFBRE  FEBEN
¥Ef
BREAGEENEELLEIR

BEEEE

Stayed connected with investors
around the world through virtual
events in FY2022

Executive directors responsible
for different business areas
attended meetings to address

investors' concerns

R 2022 B EERAR LGB B R
BB EERFHE
BETRAXBRENNTERTHES
BN EENRTER

Updated on results, quarterly
announcements and corporate
activities

Enriched content to demonstrate
the Group's business initiatives
EFHREELINER ZFEAEREXE
TEEEF
CENBERNDTART RSB EBRE

Email alert service

Email to Investor Relations and
Corporate Communications team:
Ir@chowtaifook.com (for investors);
media@chowtaifook.com

(for media)

BIHLERS
BREEMAERCEENEFNETER

ir@chowtaifook.com (I8& &) ;
media@chowtaifook.com (&)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXEHREEEER QA



Shareholder rights and other information
Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged
to participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint
proxies to attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s paid-
up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and
deposited with our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and
deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the
candidate to our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor
Investor Services Ltd., Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong) of the Company. The notice should be
given at least seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
e Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy
e Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company's profits.
e No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
e Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.
e Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of

special circumstances.
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Full year dividend payout ratio” ZEREE
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

90.0% 82.7%

[ ]
60.0%

50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

74.5%

80.0% 65% ____—®
° / .
70.0% 66.0V 66.4%/.
[}

——
Full year dividend payout ratio
2EREE

2018 2019 2020 2021

(1) Special dividend excluded

Constitutional documents

No change during the year.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$142.6 billion as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
HK$118.8 billion), based on the total number of 10,000,000,000
issued shares and the closing price of HK$14.26 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the prescribed public
float of not less than 10.7% has been maintained, which is a lower
minimum percentage of public float accepted at the discretion of the
Stock Exchange. On the basis that Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
held approximately 72.4% of the total issued shares in the
Company (as shown in the disclosure of interests on the Stock
Exchange’s website as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report), the public float amounted to not more
than approximately 27.6% of the total number of issued shares in
the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
RREERS

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them
in understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to
manage key risks and making risk-reward optimised business
decisions for business planning.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”)
FRAMEWORK

ERM is a much-needed core competency and essential tool that
helps the Group continually creates, sustains, and delivers
stakeholder value. We believe a structured approach and
framework around ERM-related processes and governance are
critical to the success of our ERM. During the financial year, we
have refined our ERM framework which is tailored to the
circumstances and business context of the Group. Our ERM
framework comprises the following elements:

Risk Capability
Building
2B B 1
ReIfEE

Effectiveness and
Performance Tracking

FRREMZIR 36 HE
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Business Objective and
Strategy Setting

15 BRI HE

ERM Framework
Oversight
Risk Culture & Risk Strategy
Risk Governance Model
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Risk culture & risk strategy L B 3T 1 b L | B 5 B

Our risk culture and risk strategy provide the overall direction and H IR L ME R R RIRE A ER ﬁ"é@a’]%ﬂ—
objectives of ERM to promote a common understanding and FEMEZE  REASEFEABHECERBREREMNHL
consistent ERM practices within the Group. Our ERM objectives: BRANEMER BMNCERRERBZFNOT

e Balance business risks and returns and support risk-based

decision-making.

FEEBRBRILER - AR ERER AR -

e Facilitate the achievements of the Group's strategic goals o EIBMBHARAKRNEBMEE @ BIAEBIERRK

through better identification of future opportunities and threats. &% B AR o
e Develop a common understanding of risk across different o NRIMY S BRBE EB P 2 T T2 B 3 [ BR ) 2k (R 3R R -
business functions to manage risk cost-effectively on an WERCEEmMETHAERAENRERLEIE o

enterprise-wide basis.

e Commit to integrity, business ethics, and legal compliance. o HORWE  WEBERMETER -

We recognise a strong risk culture are shaped by leadership, effective KMRRABENRR XTI REEE N - BRER -
communication, and proper policies and standards. We have BEBORMERBEMA - AL BRI TER -
therefore adopted the following practices to sustain our risk culture: BEZRBMORER L

Leadership
BEERED

Involve operational risk management topics in business plans and business meeting agenda
REBAENEBEZZRTRLEEAREEEE
Review and validate the ERM Framework regularly and lead by example to demonstrate the right

tone at the top
FHESNBECERRERELR  WASER - RREERNRRERAT

Internal communication

AEE R

Conduct workshops and issue regular information letters to promote the risk culture

B S WEREMAER - UERRR UL

Set clear escalation procedure for reporting risk issues

SRR = AR ERER

Set up grievance and whistleblowing channels for our staff to report suspected fraud and misconduct
RETIHRVHAFREBREE  UERRERERRTETR

Policies and standards
PR FIZE B

Establish Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy,
and Best Practice Principles for Suppliers to reinforce our expected ethical values and conduct
AL AETR  RERBEK  BRBK RABRRIHERSERTFE  JORCRMERNEREBE
sy
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Risk governance model

Our risk governance model is designed to assist the Board of
Directors and Board Committees to carry out ongoing oversight
and monitoring on the effectiveness of our ERM system. The
model defines clear risk roles and structure to reinforce the risk-
related accountability and transparency across the Group.

We believe a well-coordinated and integrated collection of all the
resources and expertise necessary to support the governance,
assurance of performance, risk, and compliance activities is critical
for the Group to meet its business objectives in the ever-changing
business environment and regulatory landscape. To this end, we
have established the Governance, Risk, and Compliance (“GRC")
Working Group to coordinate the diversified resources that were
once scattered within various risk monitoring units. This unified
unit enables us to adopt an integrated approach to manage and
enhance GRC activities.

Board of Directors

ExE

B E e
RPNAREARLSERYEFENESZAEH
EEENERAMEEEARERRRNRY - REE
STSTARM A ABMERE - U NBAEEEERF
RN EE REAE -

BR—EEARENEB/MEERE 2T BRMRA
HIXHER BURE ERREAREDHAFNRE
BREBEANFETRIFHBANBAENAEEER
HEHEXBEGEREEZ - At ARILTER - AR
RafTENM BRE-—EDSMETRRREZEN
MZTIER - SER—MEMEHRMENRBES
TENERMMEES BB REREE -

T Report #h&

Executive Committee
BITEEE

A

‘ Report &

T Assurance (£ &

Audit Committee Report R4

ERESE -

A
‘ Report &

Group Risk Management Committee (“"GRMC")

T Report ¥k

SHEEMEEESE

Governance, Risk, and Compliance (“"GRC”) Working Group
R EBRERIEN
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Roles
Al

Responsibilities
B

Board of Directors

)

Evaluate and determine the Group's risk appetite in achieving its strategic objectives
A REEAREBERKRE B ZRNRBREZE

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems
WRAKERTMERSEREANEREERADERE RS

Review the adequacy & effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems

BE R EIE R AR RS 2 7R RERIE

Executive Committee
WITLZE®

Review the risk and control issues regularly

TR RS REEEE

Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at the Group level
TEEEmRAREEELAFIREES

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment
HE R EH AU A RIRA BRI

Audit Committee

i o
EZELEES

Oversee the internal audit function and the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board

REEFGEERNTRABENARERERALEZERG 2T RIERE BT

Group Risk Management Committee
("GRMC")
SERKREREZES

Maintain the ERM framework and drive improvement for the processes
HELERRERIER  RIETNEMNZCE

Monitor the implementation of risk management plans and oversee the effectiveness
of process controls

ERARERHBNETER - BRI ERHRR

First Line of Defence — Risk Owners
F—EMF — RBEEE

Manage, monitor, and report key risks in line with applicable policies and procedures
BEBANBERMNER B2 BERMRSHARER

Accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
HAHERZZRMEREREER

Second Line of Defence — Finance &
Governance Centre, Executive Office,
and Group Policies & Controls
F_BMR — UBERRL - 1TTHED
MEE G EER

Support GRMC on the risk and control functions
XHEEERRERZEERITRR R EEEBE

Establish, refine and monitor critical group policies, procedures, and standards to
reinforce risk management and internal control systems

FlE  HMERERSENBBEEK 27 RER - UtRRERERABERE RS

Third Line of Defence — Internal Audit
and Whistleblowing System
FZBPR — ANEFRMEBERES

Internal Audit — Validate the effectiveness of risk controls through internal audit and
identify improvement opportunities as appropriate

NBEZ — BRANTEZBRERREZENERE - WS ENSEHS
Whistleblowing Officers — Manage and investigate misconduct and fraud cases, and
review the effectiveness of remedial actions

BREE —BERASTETARERRMN  WRFTHRITEAKK

Governance, Risk, and Compliance
("GRC") Working Group
ER - AR RERIENE

Provide guidance and support to risk owners to manage and enhance GRC activities
mERAEERMESINLE  UERWNRES - ARG HRES

Coordinate and monitor GRC activities

AL ERER - Bk RERED
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BMNEBEDFEBEARR - EAEKIEIEE T
MELARE - RMEESRREERARERSIME
ERIE - MK ENFENRIE -

Risks are inherent in our business activities and can relate to
strategic goals and business performance. We aim at integrating
risk management into the strategic planning and monitoring
process, resulting in a practical and continuous process.

REEREIFI BT ARE

Strategy planning and monitoring process

e The Executive Committee establishes business objectives and strategies to achieve
performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by the Board

Business = = S= =
objectives HTLZERFHIEEBRENER LNEBESERUNENEENRBLER
and strategies
setting * These objectives and strategies are cascaded to our operational units through

=
ST BT broad-based engagement activities, ensuring alignment across the Group

BBETEHEE  KZEFEEMARKEEELES UFRREESENEF—H
v
e QOperational units are responsible for identifying the internal and external issues and

Risk and events affecting our ability to achieve established objectives and strategies

obbortanitics SEEN ARSI E R HEEE B R RRE RS SR BB
identification

ot Bl L P B B e The GRC Working Group assists and facilitates the risk identification process
ER Bk kA TN EN AR R e Bl iE

v
e GRMC assesses the identified risks and opportunities and sets the reasonable
expectation on the amount of risk of achieving such business objectives and
= strategies
Bisie EEEBERESRTEATRAIORREME I HE RS LD SRR ORRIZE ST
review and £ BTEHE
evaluation
B RGP i The possibility of the strategy not aligning with the Group’s objectives and the
implications from the strategy chosen will also be evaluated at this stage
TE P& ER IR AT A SR B B R B B AR T AP0 el e I P i SRS O 2 8
v
Operational units are accountable for executing the chosen strategies
EIBEN BT RTATE R
The Executive Committee reviews and monitors the progress of strategy
s implementation and risk mitigation through monthly meetings
tategy HIEERHATARNEENERE R AE RS
execution and
monitoring > 2 = =
ERBITREE Management Committees are set up to supervise the attainment of the Group's

Annual Report 2022
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objectives for relevant areas, such as business innovation and transformation,
intellectual capital enhancement, brand positioning, and marketing strategy
BEREEE  BEEASEESIEEEE BIERIEN  fIanEEaIRT e 8 EARREA -
SRR TERL AN SH R B
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2.RISK IDENTIFICATION

Precise risk identification allows us to manage the risk inventory
more effectively and understand its relationship with the business
strategies, objectives, and performance.

Risk identification framework

2. [ B 5k 5

BRI ERERMEE AR ERERRBE LT
R BT ERRE - BRMERBMEE -

e Bk Bl 4E 52

RISK IDENTIFICATION PURPOSE [ [z RI B &Y

Immerse in business context and goals to manage risk inventory effectively
AEATHREBSSMER BN EERREE

RISK IDENTIFICATION CHANNELS & &8 Bl & 18

Strategic Internal & Risk
Planning External Brainstorming
Process Audit Workshops

REREEF AR I EDEZ EBRESIES

Stakeholder

Data Whistleblowing Process Research & Seminars &
Tracking System Review Benchmarking Workshops Ezg?igiei?;::t
B | =] o R HIEE o= & T1EE =
2sEHt IR BEigs TR AEHERF R BEEATIES i EBEE
Internal Risks Emerging Risks ESG-related Risks
P BB /L B HEE AR R ER
Risk Inventory B [&iEEE
RISK INVENTORY CATEGORIES &85!
Strategic Products & Operational Financial Regulatory ESG-related
Risks Services Risks Risks Risks Risks Risks
REEER R RIS b EERERE B RS Bs B AR R

following QR code to access our report:

More details of our stakeholder engagement activities are included in our Sustainability Report. Please scan the

RSN ESEREFDNFE SRS ERRBRERN - FREUT - EBUEE®RE

E44E
i3
=]
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Main features of the risk identification B s BUHEZE 0 £ Y5,

framework

Diversified risk
identification channels
Z ALK R B Bl 2R

To ensure the completeness of our risk inventory, we have established diversified risk identification
channels to identify internal, emerging, and changing risks that might affect the achievement of
our business objectives and strategies

REREREENTEN  RMELZHRCOERBRFRIERSE - AHAITETEERELEENREHN
B~ BT EA T S ) R R

Portfolio view of risks
EREEE

To ensure we are well-positioned to determine whether the residual risk profile aligns with the
overall risk appetite, our risk inventory is categorised to facilitate the formation of a portfolio view
of risk, allowing us to consider the type, severity, and interdependencies of common risks
collectively

ABREMEAMTERARARKAZEREGERNERAZE KMBEERSEESE  FRREKAS
B ERM—EEARNEREL  BREREMEERE -

Risk inventory
management
E BB EEE

The GRC Working Group will perform a periodic review on the risk inventory to ensure the existing
risks are still applicable and relevant and also identify the changes to the existing risks

B RBEAHAIENEGTHEMRKSE URRREARBRMDABEAMAEE - LHARERKRL
p=lle

Our risk inventory is also informed by the results of internal risk assessments and risk assurance

works, as well as insights from various industry sources

HPOREBBEENRSZERNBRBIFEMAREE TENER  URREZERALNER

To ensure our ERM Framework incorporates the evolving risk landscape appropriately, our risk
inventory also addresses hot topics in risk management like ESG-related risks and cybersecurity risks
RERRMANCERREBERFEZHRMATEHZCOHRRMAN  RANARBETRE AR ELH
HPIGER - DI HERRERNEE L2 ER
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3.RISK EVALUATION

The risk evaluation framework enables us to understand the
interdependencies that may exist among risks and to inform the
selection of risk response.

Risk evaluation framework

3. B R EF fth
BT IE R G B T R 2 P W B T A0 B
BIR - 70 R A 5 R R -

RAF (AR

RISK EVALUATION PURPOSE kTt EAY

Identify the root causes and interdependencies among risks and inform the selection of risk response
Bl E R AR R B R AR B BB F - M0 A IR R R FE S E iR AR

RISK EVALUATION METHODOLOGIES & TOOLS EFEHERTR

J

Qualitative Assessment

Quantitative Assessment

EMFE SR EEFEHGE
o Workshops Strveys Sensitiv_ity Financial Cost—Ben_efit
s T o Analysis Moﬁdels .An‘al\y/S|s
BREDN BIBEE ST R =D
RISK ASSESSMENT J&p&sF
Operational Level Entity Level Assessment
Assessment Assessment Result Review
BEREEE EEEEL AEERER
Business Objective Heat Map
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main features of the risk evaluation framework B PEEE G HEZR A £ B45E,

Holistic risk assessment
ZEK RS

The severity of risks is assessed at multiple levels by risk owners, GRC Working Group, and GRMC
to ensure comprehensive risk assessment

REREEE - ER ARERERIENMMIEERREEZESHZARBETARAKRAREN - AR
2 E R RTE

Risk owners in operational units are responsible to assess the risks individually at least once a year
and the operational assessment result will be escalated to the GRC Working Group for entity level
assessment

EEBUMERAEEEEELEFEMTERR —R  UHEETHER ERER  BREEHRIE
NEEITT R EE AT

The focus of the entity level assessment is to assess the risk interaction, in which the GRC Working
Group will consider those severe risks identified at the operational level and group common risks
across operational units and assess the risk level collectively
CEEEFENERSTERARNAERE  EhEhr RREKERIENMEEEZSHELEERA
RIMEBERR  WHSEEECHERRBRSHE - —HTAERERRRRAKTF

The final assessment result is depicted on the business objective heat map, which will be reviewed
by GRMC
RETEAEREERNEEBERBANE  THEERARERZESHR

Relevant and appropriate
risk evaluation criteria
BB E 1 R LR

Evaluation criteria including the impact to business and likelihood of occurrence are used to

assess the severity of risks
MAFEER (BEHEBN P EME LN M) T RERAERE T

In addition to the evaluation criteria that we would use for evaluating operational risks, we also
use “importance to stakeholders” as one of the criteria to prioritise the ESG-related risks. We
engage both internal and external stakeholders to identify and evaluate ESG-related risks
which may have significant impacts to our stakeholders

BR—mARTEEERRNERIN - BTG [EHEOENEEN | EATE A HELEEERRESL
IRFFBVRER] 2 — o BEEREBRINED B3 & 2 BB B R T AT e ¥t M E A EAZ EMN A FE L EEE

[ B
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4. RISK MITIGATION AND CONTROL

The risk mitigation and internal control framework deals primarily
with risk reduction. The structure of our risk mitigation and control
framework is informed by principles outlined by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission's
("COSO") integrated framework for effective internal controls.

Risk mitigation and control framework

4. [ Bz FE ¥4 F0 42 il

[A\fp EE A AR B 2R = 2 B R ERE R - T
179 6 3 B FE A0 B R AE R 2 1 2 B8 7 Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission ([COSOJ) 2z A #BEE 1 4R & 1E R B R A
ifn i 5E

L B FE 4 FO 2= 1l HE 22

RISK MITIGATION PURPOSE [E[&FEL BR

Reduce the likelihood or impact of the risk

R AT RE

He/ o

==

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM R&pESiER 4t

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

CONTROL INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION

IR AEARERER
Commitment to integrity Risk Quality Internal External
and ethical values Governance Model Information Communication Communication
BPEE REEEE RRRERER BEME AEBER INERE R
CONTROL ACTIVITIES E=igs)

Preventive Detective Corrective

Controls Controls Controls

FERA IR BRI R T AU EPEE 1

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT MEpEsi=atid

Operational units
self-assessment
EESBVNERTE

’I 26 Governance
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Internal Audit

independent assessment
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Main features of the risk mitigation and control & GFES R IZ=HIEZS 00 = Z 458,

framework

Strong control °
environment

BEEHIRE

Promote honesty and integrity among our staff on a day-to-day basis
ERREERE THEENE RAEXE

Foster an environment in which our people are knowledgeable and committed to carrying out

internal control across the Group
BEEETANRYB N EAEEEFHITASEETIENRE

Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud Policy, Code of Conduct, Whistleblowing
Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, to enhance our commitment to integrity and ethical values
Bl REEBRER - 2T R BB R SOE BB SRR EAER] - FEUANSR F I E RBREEN
s

Effective risk & control e
communication
BREBREEER

Quality information — We adopt data analytics techniques to convert data to information in order

to identify control weakness and evaluate the effectiveness of risk responses
BEME — RPERABES TR - BSEUREC R B - DA R B 12255 20300 37 1k 3 B FE % /9 B AR

Internal communication — We adopt both top-down and bottom-up approaches to ensure
management and risk owners are aware of risks that fall into their area of responsibility and risk
responses are consistently implemented. Top-down communication includes regular training and
town hall meetings. Bottom-up communication includes monthly Executive Committee meetings
and quarterly GRMC meetings

WEDERE — BROERIE Ef B TH ERE  BREEENRBRAEENEHLRESHENNRRE -
WHEREMETRERELRERE - B LM FTAEBREEREIIN2EER A TMENERBEEAN
WITZESERNEFTENSERRERZESS R

External communication — We perform risk assessments, scans, and surveys with external risk
experts to identify external events that might affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives
SNERE IR — BMEINDER FERETRBRATE - BN - BB EERAEE B 2N
=4

Internal control .
assessment
P RBEE P 1

Operational units are responsible to perform an annual self-assessment to assess their

performance in promoting effective control practices
LEBNEERTFEARTE  UTHEAREEIETEEHFANKR

Internal audit is responsible to perform independent assessments of key control activities to

ensure compliance and conformity of internal control to pre-determined standards
AMBEZAE BB UM EARERED  URRADEERFE RETHETEE
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Through the application of the above business and strategy setting, BRERA LA EBRRESE - #A - T RELM
identification, evaluation, and mitigation and control framework, we ZHIES - BWIPIR 2022 A FEEH AW EIEL T EE
have identified and responded to the following principal risks in B -

FY2022:
Business objectives: Strengthen our revenue stream
XBEE: hnag WA SRR
Risk
Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
REER -1 ERREHER RzEs
Leverage franchisee Risk of poor franchisee ® Appoint dedicated teams to nurture relationship with
model to deepen management franchisees and retail partners through continuous dialogues
market penetration INEAREERENRR ZREEEKEAEMBERTERH B EEBRELAR
ZRAMBEEER - BUR e Establish clear selection and assessment policy and
{EiH2E R mechanism
BT 7775 M Pk 3 R0 ST £ IR 3R 0 A 71
e Reinforce our monitoring on franchisees through
whistleblowing system and special audit programme in
franchised POS
FARmEH R MBETERNSREZE - Ry mEmR
LB FMER
Expand our retail Risk of inventory loss and e Perform cross-checking by skillful store management
network to gain market misallocation in stores personnel between different stores in order to assure the
share JERNTFEBR RER protection of inventories
BATEMELERT [ B HARNPIEERAERTRMEETRIXRE BRIFES
517 78 FREE
e Deploy data analytics and machine learning to identify
abnormal inventory movement and predict inventory loss
risk
BEHEOMEEREBUZRNEEFTEEHWRAFEIBR
B 2 fix
e Reinforce a culture of ethics and integrity in workplace in
order to reduce the risk of inventory shrinkage caused by
malicious activities
Mg TESAaBERBEXL UBREBRZREHERNEFE
FERER
Understand customer Risk of customer privacy e Establish the data governance structure and data
preferences and breach management policy
purchase behaviour EEALBERRR BYHBRESEEREIBERECR
THREEEFNREE e Classify customer data into different levels of sensitivity or
115 risks to design and implement layers of security controls,
commensurate with the risks assessed
BEFPERD ATRRAOGRESRABRIZE - AR RIER
BT A AR Y & 2 R
e Raise staff awareness of protecting customer data
REEIREZEFERNEH
e Assess the impact of latest personal data and privacy
protection regulations on our operation
AEEFEAERRILBRELZRERMEENTE
Risk level increased during FY2022 Risk level remained broadly the same as FY2021 ¥ Risk level decreased during FY2022
2022 B E A R KR K EF 12021 B FE R R KRS 2022 B BU4F E M ELFR K T BE
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Risk

Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EEER -1 ERREHER RzEs
Offer curated retail Risk of intellectual e Establish the Intellectual Property Management System to
experiences to enrich property (“IP") facilitate the registration and management of our IP rights
our product offerings infringement RUMBEEETERG  NEEMAMERMEERE
and differentiation RILAHERENRR e Monitor and analyse the actual or possible infringement
RHSEBAHHENT cases of our IP rights
B8k NE2ERMY ERERSMERN A EILABRERENERMG
EmEeNEREZRNE e Provide regular training for our staff to raise their awareness

of the protection of IP rights

AETRHEREN BURREIHRENIEEENE
Business objectives: Enhance our operational efficiency
XBER: RAEERE

Risk

Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EE - Y4 ERREHERE Rz
Invest in technology Risk of technology e Develop security policies and procedures, such as Incident
solutions to support disruption or cyber threats Response Plan, Disaster Recovery Plan and Business
business growth TR T sk AR 4R B ) L B Continuity Plan, to ensure timely response to detected
BRI BRI T 2 A cybersecurity events
XFEBER BIERLZEERIZT - fIInER O ETE] - KHIRETE R ER

FHEMEE LNJE&&H%J&%E%E@EU@JE’J.\M%%zziiﬁﬁl
Engage an external service provider to adopt different
protective technologies to detect and monitor cyber threats
HEEIMNBARISIRULRY - S TBRERMER R ERBERE
Conduct regular cyberattack drills, rehearsals and system
penetration tests

EHETRRREBIRE  FRRERL2EAS

Provide regular and tailored cybersecurity training for our
staff

RETREEHRE S EHHNEG L 25

Risk of misalignment of
enterprise architecture

("EA") and data strategy

with business strategy

R R BUR R R LR

RGN — E VR B

Establish a dedicated IT business analyst team to understand
and analyse business needs

R BPIMEAREEBEOMMER - L THRESMEBTE
Review EA and data strategy alongside with business
strategy by the IT Governance Committee regularly to
ensure proper alignment
EHMESOEREBREER
WEE - ARREZ
Design and implement a common data platform to create
and share relevant data and insights to operation units to
make decision aligned to business goals

Bt REL—EBAHETE  HERAZEEEMIRHNEE
FHEEBIEFORSE T - PATIFE BT B IRERFERE
Understand and analyse key technology trends in the
industry constantly in order to design a forward-thinking
enterprise architecture that supports the Group's future
growth

TER TR MITRBRRMBE - AR
BRiE - XFHAERERNARRERIER

AR EMRRE AR BENER

FHHARTRE ER 2

Risk level increased during FY2022
2K EFF

2022 R FE AE R
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Risk level remained broadly the same as FY2021

812021 B E B R fRoK FARE

Risk level decreased during FY2022
2022 B BF € A & B KRB

Risk Management Report
[E\ b B RS

129



130

Business objectives:

EBER:

Uphold corporate values and ethical business practices
HECXEBEELMFEEEED

Risk
Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
RBER -1 ERREHERE Rz
Foster a culture of Unethical employee e Launch a culture enhancement programme to uphold and
ethics and integrity in behaviours fortify culture of integrity of all employees
workplace TEROBTIR B LR T R REE G B TOREXL
TSR RERN e Assess employees’ attributes and behaviours against the
AU ethical principles
BEEERATEE THENTA
e Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud
Policy and Code of Conduct to reinforce the Group’s ethical
values
HIEBRFAER] - flORFRBERFALE T - LUAALNEER
RBEEE
Risk level increased during FY2022 Risk level remained broadly the same as FY2021 ¥ Risk level decreased during FY2022
2022 B BV = A LB K B 7 822021 B BUF S B JEL B oK SE AR 2022 8 BUF = A LB K T B
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5.EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE
TRACKING

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee oversees the internal
audit function and reviews the adequacy and continued
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit function. The
Board and the Audit Committee acknowledge that our risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

To support the effective review, GRMC, Internal Audit, and
Whistleblowing Officers will capture and align information at a level
that is consistent with Audit Committee’s oversight responsibilities
and use standard templates to support consistent presentation and
structure of information over time. The people, process, and tools
used to enable the review of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control system is illustrated below:

Process used to review our risk management
and internal control system and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function

Board of Directors
i

5. B 3% 0 3R IR B it

ERZEARREFCEENNBIBERBRIAE
EEBREERANFEERSARANEARERDTRS
RESEEER EFGREREZREGRA  AREER
AHEZERREEEEMIDER REERSHELA
BERERE  MARERTEEEANKERMSIAKL
EFHEEMIFBEHIRE ©

RIXFABWEN  SEHAREEEZES  NIE
EERREEREEERZLZEEEERE —2NER
WEREEEN IEBRENRSER  REEH
2 REBE B - TE AR R R EE kA
EERGRYABOAR - BFRTA:

et EEEERABEERERABE
stERER MR AREF

Report on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system

BEBEEAMAIPEIE RSN AL RS

@ 3 times or more per year

sEIRFUL
|

Audit Committee
BEREEE

Report on cases of misconduct
and fraudulent behaviour
RAETRAMERTRERELRS
@ 3 times or more per year

§5F3}5’|nﬁu_t

Report on significant audit
findings and control deficiencies
REABZERNERTR ZREHRE
@ 3 times or more per year

15353}5"\&1«1_}:

Report on principal risks and
corresponding risk responses
HEZRENEE RS KNS
@ 3 times or more per year

ﬁiﬁs&l‘iﬁui

Whistlebloﬁwing Officers Internal Audit
=g

GRMC
=8 WA SERBRERZES

?

Report on scope and quality of risk management practices

REREEERNEENEEFHRE
Annually
@ﬁliﬁ

Management in
opgratiopgl units
LESVEEE
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People enforce the review of our risk

W EREERABRIERAERABE

management and internal control system and TEERERMMHMITAE
the effectiveness of the internal audit function

Audit Committee
EREEY

As part of the Audit Committee’s oversight responsibilities with regard to the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, the Audit Committee will:
ERERZESHNIEABAEENENEEEEN -0 SREEGH -
— Review the annual audit plan
EHFEEZTE
— Receive periodic reports on the results of the Internal Audit's work
BEWEEABEZ TIEERNTEBRRS
— Monitor management’s responsiveness to the Internal Audit's findings and recommendations
EREEBEBHANIEZERTNEZNEE
— Review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of

the internal audit function
RN APEANBENER BEIEENLERURAEZNEIIRENTRE

Internal Audit
R EBE &

Internal Audit plays a crucial role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group
NEPEIZAERANEENIBE S LB A MRORG

To provide an independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, Internal Audit:
ARERERNANEIZERAES T EMANEXNRHBIETENRE - NEEZ -

— Has unfettered access to all necessary information, people, records, and outsourced operations
across the Group, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance, risk management,
and control processes that management has put into place
AR ERHIONER TERREENTEMNENER ZFHABAL  REMINIEE  UEITRIE
BERTHER  ERERRERRF 2R

— Adopts a risk-based approach, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are considered within
the scope of the audit
HmERER T  BRABEZHEENZERIEENEIFTENERER

— Engages an independent consulting firm to assist the internal audit service to further strengthen the

flexibility and independence of the internal audit function
ZEBYERARHHABEZRY - E— L MEBRNBDET BN T LB LT

GRMC
SERBREEESS

GRMC assists the Board in fulfiling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the Group's risk appetite,
the Group's ERM Framework, and the governance model that supports it
SERBREEZECHPESSRTEHEAERRBRATE AEECERBREEERMI FHZIERLNES
RAME BRI

As part of the GRMC's oversight responsibilities, GRMC will:
EREERKREEZEQEERSN —0  SERARERZESH -
— Review and approve the significant risk management policies and associated frameworks
A I B3 B R AR B R BUR AR ESE
— Review significant risk exposures and the steps that management has taken to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report such exposures
WA EARBARERER#R - 512 - B5 - &6l E A B R ke FrEREL ) 25 5
— Review significant risk and compliance issues identified by the GRC Working Group, together with
management'’s responses and follow-up to these reports
BEES  BREERIENMBINERERMNEGHEEE  UREEEH LS REN L EMRETE
— Review the scope of work of the GRC Working Group and its planned risk management and

compliance activities
EHER  ARRERAIENMOITEEEREASNRAREENSGRES
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Tools used to review our risk management and
internal control system and the effectiveness of

the internal audit function

et EREERABEERARABE
stREER R MERMATIR

Frequency X &

Content AR

Audit Committee
Reports
EREEERE

3 times or more
per year
FEIRHALE

e Assurance on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control system
975 62 [ [ B B R e N B B 1 R ATV E LR 7

Whistleblowing
Reports
BRI E

3 times or more
per year
FEIRNEA L

e (Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management
BRETE REFTANER  UREEEHDAERE

e Anti-fraud culture building programme and training
R FEBE AL A & R 35T

Internal Audit
Reports
AMELRE

3 times or more
per year
FEIXNHA L

e Significant audit findings and control deficiencies
EpNGES R s h = i S

e Progress of remedial measures implemented by management
EIRERITHRIE A

e Review on the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting

and compliance with prevailing regulations
A AR BB ISR E IR T AR BUA RIRITER A RIE AR

GRMC Reports
EERKREEEZESS
W&

3 times or more
per year
FEIRNHA L

e Principal risks identified at the corporate level and the related
mitigation measures
LA ) 2 T 84 1| ) 3 22 R\ B DA % A I B T e

e Review on the resources, staff qualifications and experience and training

programmes of the accounting, and internal audit, financial reporting functions
ERGH  NAERRMBRERENER ETERELER - ARIFIIEE

Control self-
assessment and
management
confirmation
AMEZATE
EEEERRE

Annually
BF

e Scope and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and the
internal control system
EREEREEBRBRULABERRFHGELE S

e Management's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
Group's policies including the Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy
ERERTHERAERRAEBHENER -
RO EBUR

SEBRBELETA  REFEREN

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the

ERZEGEN LR REREFSHA 2022 HK
FEEAAEANZERHASEAREIE A AREE
EERRB TR EBRAMZE -

risk management and internal control systems of the Group

for FY2022.
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By their nature, most crises are unpredictable, but we believe it is
possible to determine activities and areas that may be particularly
prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these areas is key
to ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the impact of
adverse events, aid recovery and support business continuity. Set
out below are the pre-crisis measures that help us maintain an

EREARE EREZENN - ERPBER LA EH
RSB ABENEHMES - RMB/HEZE
REEFRERBERSERAE  ERAIABREME
mEBENRES REINEFERMANTE A
BRI B X EBRHERRE - TXHIIRMHER
KRR - BB PFIFEGURE R

appropriate level of preparedness to respond to crises:

Crisis Management
Team (“CMT")

1 44 T 22 [ B

Composition The core team is led by executive directors and staffed with senior executives

e from executive office, legal, investor relations, and human resources
BOBEBERTEELRE  AMAERERETHR £ KREEBRERAN
BREEMITHAE
Other personnel from varying disciplines and regions would be identified on
an as-needed basis
FENTEVEEMEXHBENMENASMA

Functions Identify areas of concern

B ge HANFEFINGE

Assess the impact of the identified concerns

M ETEENE

Devise strategies and response plans to overcome crises
] E 52 W& A0 P ST 51 B LABR IR i

Crisis Management
Manual and Response
Plans

eI F it I R 5 B

Crisis Management
Manual
fEEREF M

Provide overall direction and guideline to coordinate crisis response
RGN R T 83

Set out the definition of a crisis and trigger events, categorisation of crises,
the activation guideline, the composition and roles of the Crisis Management
Team, and the crisis communication and reporting protocol
HIGHRBESHNTE RO E BB EREEEROERE LB
745 LA R fE 1 380 SRR P SR AR 72

Tailored response plan
and playbooks

TE B EE R M E BT
it

Document a step-by-step instruction in responding to a specific crisis
FIRAFE S RN B EPBIER

Crisis Management

Discussion-based

Aim to increase staff’s capability in recognising crisis warning signs and

Training training designing preventive measures in the pre-crisis phase
e EEpiEN o=l B EART B T3 B A R Je pA fE 1 8 A4 AT I 8 TR 8 HE KD A
Provide our staff an initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources
METIREEHERGNARGEERER R ERER
Operation-based Aim to validate the crisis management plan and the capability of our CMT
simulation B RS B E IR AT I BRI FIfe i & 12 B X A e
EE A NELRE Allow the CMT to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during
a crisis scenario
EERERERKENERSR THRERRNBENEE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Eh FAREHREEEFRAR]



We believe effective risk management requires us to think

holistically about the capabilities that we need in order to determine

if there are any capability gaps should be prioritised to improve the

management of risk across the Group. We have identified the risk

capability needs of the Group in terms of people, process, systems

and information and concluded the following phased capability

building plan:

BB ERUNEREREERLERMEEZ BHAFRL

NHEEERFERBRERENRNEE  URALRE
ErREREEEN - RMRMAE  BF  ZHLEH

77 E R b AN SR B e L B BE R R
BEVRE N AT &

W15 H AT 9 B

Capability area
BE D&

Focus for improvement

REEH

Approach for improvement

HETE

Risk governance and
culture
R E e Rt

e Enhance the commitment to integrity and
ethical values
hnag ¥ E KRB R EERNAE

e Build awareness, understanding, and buy-in
across all levels of staff

BYSMETINES B RETERS X

e Optimise the risk governance model
BleRBE AER

e Conduct risk culture seminars and workshops
SRR R TS

e |ssue periodic newsletters or posters for regular
reminder and reinforcements of integrity, ethical
values, and risk management messages
TEBRE B AN S IR AL B 3R - ¢ E BRI BE K hnag
5  BREEEREREEAL

Risk management
process
BB B 1R A AR

e Maintain a consistent and relevant approach to

risk management
HERF—BUREENEREIE A

e Enhance the ERM Framework
MECERREIRER

e Keep risk management policies and processes
up-to-date
EARREREB R REF

Risk management
tools and technologies
[R\ B B I T A R Akl

e Harness technology advances to support and

improve the risk management process
ERAFRE I F RN ERRE BT

e Exploit big data and source data analytics tools
ERABBERDEEESNIEA
e Develop risk dashboards to organise and

showecase risk data and information
il E BB IEREE - LUABAT RN ER S R ER

Risk information and
communication
AA HI E &/%

e Facilitate and encourage the capture, analysis,
and delivery of predictive and timely
risk information
RSBV ER - AT AR HLE R 80 B &

e Drive a consistent and efficient approach to the
sourcing, recording, storing, and sharing of
risk information
T B RB M E -
Eolabz

RIRAIELE

uafi TE%T_& ?ﬂﬁMnﬂ E\

e Source an ERM or GRC system to facilitate the
storage of risk data and information
metERREEN EERREER
B AR K2 AR

e Source statistical and analytic software to extract

/yu ’ LMEG%T‘

and model potential risk events and perform

predictive scenario analysis

MEEIRFRET KA TEM - AERHRREEE
REM - WETENBEI O

R
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFEHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2022.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
jewellery products, including gem-set, platinum and k-gold
jewellery and gold jewellery and products, as well as the
distribution of various watch brands. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group’s revenue is derived from business activities conducted
in Mainland China, Hong Kong & Macau of China and other
markets. The segment information of the Group’s operation is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for FY2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on p.159.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.28 per share for FY2022, amounting to approximately
HK$2,800 million (FY2021: a final dividend of HK$0.24 per share,
amounting to approximately HK$2,400 million). Such payment of
dividend will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 27 July 2022 and is payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Thursday, 4 August 2022. Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.22 per share paid in December 2021, the
total distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2022 will be
HK$0.50 per share (FY2021:
date of the final dividend is expected to be on or about
19 August 2022.

HK$0.40 per share). The payment

Governance
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A review of the Group's business and operations for the year, an
analysis using financial key performance indicators as well as a
discussion on the likely future developments, are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e “Chairman’s Statement”, p.12-14
e "Managing Directors’ Strategic Report”, p.16-32
e “Management Discussion and Analysis”, p.34-67

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties:
e "Risk Management Report”, p.117-135

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations:

e "Corporate Governance Report"”, p.89-116

e "“Independent Auditor's Report”, p.151-158

e "“Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the

QR code on p.2

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with
its stakeholders:

e “Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the
QR code on p.2

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on p.256.

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the
share capital during the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$908 million (31 March 2021: HK$5,508 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.162.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul (retired upon the conclusion of
annual general meeting held on 28 July 2021)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee,
Kent, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby, Mr.
Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor will retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with article 84 of the Articles and will not
seek re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company or the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with
connected persons with expected annual transaction amounts
exceeding the “de minimis"” exemption threshold and therefore
the Company reports these non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during FY2022 under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale
and purchase of goods and services. Information about the
connected persons is shown on p.142. Details of these
transactions are set out in the tables below.

BAFHAREESIN  ARANHBAR - RAFRNE
RAEEFRRRFERIFREMEGE - WEFAER
HAEEEBMEBEAEALAAESHESTHHE
ATREFEFEAE R (THAREIBRINZS
RHREH

AEEFRABATETETHAERS  BHFER
S REBREREKT  MARFRELTRANE
TAAEER 2022 M BFE AN LS IEREFERBER
5 ZERSGTEURYEHEUNRHELRBEE R
MR - EHEEEATHERANE142H - 25
SHFBHINN T

I

Name of counterparties

ReHHEE

CTFE
AXfEEZE

NWD
SRR

NWDS
HitRER

Main purposes of the leases

Standalone retail shops,
industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HEXTERSR REANBITEE - REBHRAZRBUTEE RPERMAEEARRREE
TEERBAERR
Master/ framework agreement date 28/11/2011 28/4/2020 22/3/2012
Fe/ ERBHEBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2023 30/6/2023 30/6/2023
TREZAH
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2022 (HK$ million)
2022 REENEHEFE TREEREESH(BEET)
Annual cap 70 174 104
FEFR
Amount incurred 7 72 65
ERELESH
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial year (HK$ million)
HEMRFENEHAFE ER(BEET)
FY2023 70 203 107
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Name of counterparties

RHHHEE

NCE

NWD
it 57 3% R

Major types of goods and services

Polishing, processing and
handling of gemstones
for the Group, and provision
of related technology,
related assets and other
ancillary services, products
and devices

Collaboration on and marketing of
customer loyalty programmes,
including distribution of loyalty
points to and redemption of
loyalty points from customers
of the Group in respect of
such customer
loyalty programmes

EmkRBHEEESR REAKEBEARWINE - NI R BFEgaRETENREAEREH
BRI - IRHARRA RN BEEEEGERETEIP -
HEEEMEMEERD MAEBEFENSBETF LR
EmkIE SEREBY
Master/ framework agreement date 29/1/2016 8/6/2021
Fa/ ERBHEBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2024 31/3/2024
TREEBE
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for
FY2022 (HK$ million)
2022 B EREHEFE FRREREASE(EEST)
Annual cap 88 320
FE LR
Amount incurred 85 85
ERBELESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years
(HKS$ million)
HEVBFENEHEFE LR (BEET)
FY2023 122 380
FY2024 155 450
These transactions are governed by respective master or ZERGRXEIFEANERGEITES  MBEOVE
framework agreements which have an initial term of not more than FHTBA=F BRIEBEBESANIELHZIRATR

3 years and, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, will be E5N - FEESF TR

HRAMBI R TERPREaSHES

renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry unless SFE o REFEANERRENVEHBEEEBE T — @
terminated earlier in accordance with the relevant master or SEERHSHEN X -

framework agreements. The initial agreement date and the next

renewal date of these master or framework agreements are set

out in the tables above.
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The Group’s pricing policy and internal control
on continuing connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework

agreements to set out the principles governing the above

continuing connected transactions. The Group maintains a pricing

policy which serves as a guidance for the negotiation with

counterparties regarding the respective definitive agreements

under the continuing connected transaction arrangements of the

Group.

(a)

For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers
and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as
the case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group
offers or is willing to offer to independent customers around
the time of transaction will apply.

For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to
compare with the prices and terms offered in the market. If
there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will
make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or
providing such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable
profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a

regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either

equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.

Annual Report 2022
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Relationships between counterparties

The counterparties to the continuing connected transactions

mentioned above are connected persons of the Company mainly

due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the Company’s

substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, in these counterparties.

Shareholding relationships among the Company, CTFE, NWD,
NWDS and NCE are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

£

LHBFERER NI HE TERAATNEEAL

X S BB R

TERHANARREERRCTF Capital B skfd#Z#
BZEHFHRE - KRR - ARBERE - R
& Frt R A EENCE R RN E AN THEE

CTF Capital®

72.4% ‘

The Company
AAT

40.0% ‘

NCE®

Notes:

)

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

(

2)

(3) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

(4)  New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

(5) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

(6) New Cutting Edge Limited, an associate of CTF Capital under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules

(7)  The approximate percentages of shareholding, directly or indirectly held, are shown for reference
only to illustrate the relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the
chart above is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website
as at the date of this annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the review of the
Executive Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable. Our internal
audit team will further select samples from those transactions and
compare them with similar types of transactions entered into by
the Group with independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review
procedures in order to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by

the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Executive Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of
the Company were reported to the independent non-executive
directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by the
Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.
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Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-
exempt continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 39 to the financial statements
include transactions that constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’s revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 68.4%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 61.2% of the Group’s total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the
directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder
who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2022
held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers

of the Group.
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As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the

directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix

10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

202293 A31H » ARBEZERESTBRAERA
AR EAEAREEE(EEEESMBEERIEXY
BB OBl - ARRIR DD RAEREE T - A REES R
f@bﬁﬁJ%XV*ﬁ%7&%8"*BE%D§$ &) X B 32 P
s MR E  HEHNEERE #&Hﬁilﬂﬁ\lﬁ%z
EEZ ?TEE’J%EPEH%WE’HE )‘-?\'EMEHFL
mAA

Number of shares Approximate
RBEE % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total BARR
BARERE BB EEER At "ok

The Company (ordinary shares AT (BEREE

of HK$1 each) 1BTHEER)

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERATE LT 420,000 420,000 0.0%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong R it & A& 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B R M L 20,0007 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRI ER S A 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREsREE 23,600 23,600 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRA%EE 12,000 12,000 0.0%

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
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202243 F31H @ RIEESH K EAEKHIF 336 15A
FENEDMACEOUTALT(EIERAARESKE
SITIAB) FTFE A 2R A R IR 19 S A8 B8 IR 19 B9 1 2 58 0%
BT

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (not being directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

R Rz a i3 &

Long position in shares

Number of shares Approximate

Hﬁﬁﬂ B % of

Beneficial Corporate shareholding

Name interests interests Total BMOER
£18 RS EEER At Aot
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.4%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.4%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 7,239,320,185 7,239,320,185 72.4%
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart & 338 402,000 506,860,572 507,262,572 5.1%
Cheng Yu Wai EIRE 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.1%
Yueford Corporation 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.1%

Notes: B 5

1. Asat 31 March 2022, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings
1) Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
respectively, and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited. Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held 7,239,320,185 shares of the
Company directly as at 31 March 2022.

2. Asat 31 March 2022, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart held more than one-third of the total shares in
each of Yueford Corporation and Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. and accordingly he is deemed to
have an interest in the 506,541,354 shares of the Company held by Yueford Corporation and the
319,218 shares of the Company held by Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. Together with the
402,000 shares of the Company directly held by him, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart had an
aggregate interest in 507,262,572 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2022.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) valid for 10
years was adopted by the passing of a shareholders’ resolution at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 July 2021.
The New Scheme replaced the previous share option scheme
adopted on 17 November 2011 (the “Old Scheme"), and the Old
Scheme was terminated with effect from 28 July 2021.

No options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Old Scheme or the New Scheme since their respective adoption
up to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the New Scheme is to attract skilled and
experienced personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group
and motivate them to strive for the future development and
expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the New Scheme to the
directors of the Company (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors), the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, the employees of the
Group and any consultants engaged by any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted pursuant to the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of adoption of the New Scheme,
i.e. 28 July 2021, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate
Limit"”), which represented 10.0% of the shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The Company may renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options
which have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30.0% of the shares in issue from time

to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the New Scheme, the maximum number of shares
underlying the options granted to each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for
the time being.
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The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee
(the "Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
New Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the

nominal value of the shares.

The New Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption, i.e. 28 July 2021.

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/ she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of duties of his/ her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$54.8 million (FY2021: HK$11.3 million).

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 9 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
& 17 % 26 S

_E
pwc

To the Members of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
which are set out on p.159 to 255, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to existence and

valuation of inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

FASEEETEIE @)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AW ESFNAHERETBRETEE

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZFEMREGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$57,254.0
million as at 31 March 2022 which mainly comprised of gem-set,
platinum and k-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost includes cost
of gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to the risk of
changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on significant estimates and judgements
made by management in respect of, amongst others, the economic
conditions, marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery products.

F2HR e MBRKMEE23 -

2022463 A31H - EXEENFEREERS7 25408881 £
EZERKREER AT RKSEH B EMHNERNRER - FED
HERKAEANBRFEMET CREE - FERAPTRIBOHAE
T HERBERZERA  XMSEEEDRRTE - EREHAM (K
hERE)EERR - Eﬁm;gk$iﬁ&%F§qLI%EFuumﬁi
HE REAMTATISERELERGE LA - AFEFER
WFE

We understood and evaluated management's key
controls over inventory existence and valuation.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment
of inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

We validated management’s controls over existence by
attending cycle physical counts at selected points-of-
sale ("POS") throughout the year to observe the count
procedures at POS. We also inspected a selection of
daily physical count reports and the reconciliation to
daily ending inventories record in the inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities
and logistics and distribution centres.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

FASEEETEIE @)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAPMESFNAHERETBEETERE

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)
FEZHFEMRIGE (&)

We selected samples of gem-set jewellery products,
comprising items of different nature, for the
gemmological appraisal carried out by the independent
professional gemmologist engaged by management to
verify their authenticity assess their condition and
valuation. We evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist, understood their scope of work and
observed their examination process. \We have assessed
whether the selected gem-set jewellery products were
recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value
by comparing the results of gemmological appraisal
reports and their costs.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories
assessed by management with reference to, amongst
others, the market price movement of the materials
and the subsequent selling prices of similar products,
on a sample basis.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to impairment of inventories in the context of IFRSs
disclosure requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable
by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LGOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moEaKkHEMtEBHRaE X

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202243 A31 HILFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
P &E BEER BEET
Revenue E ) 4 98,937.7 70,163.8
Cost of goods sold FHE R AR (76,598.0) (50,089.1)
Gross profit EF 22,339.7 20,074.7
Other income HAb A 5 793.2 691.7
Selling and distribution costs THE N D HAK AN (10,522.1) (8,634.9)
General and administrative expenses —RRRITHE X (3,441.9) (3,213.7)
Other gains and losses H b Y2k Ko B 6 170.8 430.8
Other expenses HAanpAsz 7 (94.6) (664.1)
Share of profits of an associate DME— KB E N T Z % F) 5.8 4.6
Interest income FLB WA 8 69.8 81.5
Finance costs Bh & A AN 8 (337.7) (376.0)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 9 8,983.0 8,394.6
Taxation I 11 (2,103.1) (2,218.5)
Profit for the year FEZER 6,879.9 6,176.1
Other comprehensive (expense)/ income Hi2mE (FX%)/ Wiz
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T &@&E#H 7 EFE B0 EH -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme — &t EEEENEE (4.5) 18.1
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to FEE Ak EF R
profit or loss: BmmEE -
— exchange differences arising on translation — BMEIEINERTES 2 779.9 1,235.1
of foreign operations N ZERE
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEEKE 775.4 1,253.2
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKRZLEHE 7,655.3 7,429.3
Profit for the year attributable to: UTE&FEEEERT :
Shareholders of the Company ZAN/NGI) S 6,712.3 6,026.4
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE S 167.6 149.7
6,879.9 6,176.1
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEFEGMEEZERZE
attributable to: g
Shareholders of the Company AR FIREER 7,452.2 7,223.8
Non-controlling interests IR HE 203.1 205.5
7,655.3 7,429.3
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted FREF — EXAREE 12 HK67.1 cents #E{l HK60.3 cents il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
“n 8RR R

At 31 March 2022 7202243 A31H

160

2022 2021
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
i HEBT HEAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 14 5,038.8 4,614.6
Right-of-use assets FRBREE 15 1,678.7 1,792.8
Investment properties BEME 16 203.7 214.9
Goodwill Sk 17 - -
Other intangible assets HEmELEE 18 109.0 158.0
Jewellery collectibles KRB 19 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits ENRERENZES 285.8 229.8
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFFAEBRHN 29.9 22.0
profit or loss CRAE

Investments in associates REEENRIZIRE 20 775 23.8
Amounts due from associates & U Bt i N B FRIE 20 46.7 51.1
Loan receivables UL E X 21 10.5 11.8
Deferred tax assets BERIAE = 22 611.0 426.3
9,611.7 9,065.2

Current assets RBEE
Inventories =7E 23 57,254.0 43,011.4
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At fE W k8 24 5,914.0 6,180.4
Amounts due from associates & U Bt N I FRIE 20 4.9 4.6
Loan receivables U E X 21 2.1 8.9
Taxation recoverable A] Uy (3§ T8 8.4 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 25 14,942.2 6,031.9
78,125.6 55,243.0

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERFKE 26 25,166.1 17,240.0
Amounts due to non-controlling FERTBT B A T IR AR AR 3R 27 63.8 66.0

shareholders of subsidiaries |
Taxation payable FER RS 736.0 721.8
Bank borrowings RITER 28 7,275.7 4,619.0
Gold loans "REE 29 15,720.6 5,725.4
Lease liabilities HERE 15 667.2 770.0
49,629.4 29,142.2
Net current assets REBEEFE 28,496.2 26,100.8
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 38,107.9 35,166.0

Financials

B 7%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAAXEHKEEEER QA



2022 2021

Notes HK$ million HK$ million
i HEBT HEBT

Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Bank borrowings BITER 28 1,788.8 1,798.9
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 527.3 726.0
Retirement benefit obligations RRAE R EHE 37 239.1 238.8
Deferred tax liabilities RIET IR B & 22 918.2 764.0
Other liabilities HtaE 79.8 70.7
3,5653.2 3,598.4
Net assets EESHE 34,554.7 31,567.6
Share capital ;&S 30 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves & 23,619.3 20,767.1
Equity attributable to shareholders of AATRRELES 33,619.3 30,767.1

the Company

Non-controlling interests FERER 935.4 800.5
34,554.7 31,567.6

The consolidated financial statements on p.159 to 255 were BEEEN2022F6 A0 AT RETIEHRE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 169 E 255 B 2R E MG TRER - WAHMTRERES ¢
June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRMAEL EREXE ERIRER £
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BE BF
Annual Report 2022 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ’I 6’]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

CARSEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z 202243 A31 B ILF[E

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARARRER
Statutory Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B& R EE RHRE EERBEE BERE REEF @i FRRER &t

HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS$ million ~ HKS million  HK$ million
BEERT BEETR BEAT BERT BEERT BEET BEAT BERT BEET

Notes (note a) (note b)

i3 (ED) (W&b)
At 1 April 2020 1202064818 100000 54987 24995 13852 (1,0097) 79696 26,3433 6475 269908
Profit for the year FERF = = = = = 6,026.4 6,026.4 149.7 6,176.1
Other comprehensive FEAMREYNE - - - - 11793 18.1 1,197.4 56.8 12632
income for the year
Total comprehensive FEZANGREE - - - - 11793 60445 72238 2055 74293
income for the year
Capital contribution from —ZHERE - - - - - - - 12 112
a non-controlling FERBRLE
shareholder of a subsidiary
Deregistration of subsidiaries st B A7) - - - 2.3) - 2.3 - (10.4) (10.4)
Transfers w - - - 74.2 - (74.2) - - -
Dividends e 13 - - = = - (2,800.0)  (2,800.0) (633  (2,853.3)
At 31 March 2021 12021438318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1,457.1 169.6 11,1422  30,767.1 8005  31567.6
Profit for the year FERA - - - - - 67123 67123 1676  6,879.9
Other comprehensive FEHEMZE - - - - 7444 (4.5) 739.9 355 7754

income/ (expense) for the year  Uizs/ (%)

Total comprehensive FEZANGER - - - - 7444 6,707.8 7,452.2 203.1 7,655.3
income for the year
Capital contribution from —ZKBAR - - - - - - - 20.8 20.8
a non-controlling FERBELE
shareholder of a subsidiary
Deregistration of subsidiaries 5B A7) - - - (0.2) 0.1 0.1 - - -
Transfers a - - - 395.6 - (395.6) - - -
Dividends e 13 - (4,600.0) - - - - (4,600.0) (89.0)  (4,689.0)
At31 March 2022 R2022%35318 100000 8987 24995 18525 9141 174545 336193 9354 345547

Notes: B 5

(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (a) FFRIEEAEE (VRPIZREER 2 R ERK () D ERBARZH TSHER
(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common ) IR TE B B4R 15 201 1 4F 7 5= B 26 40 P U B L R 12 6 BT B A Bl IR 2 1+
control, and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under ZHRERBEZEHE -
common control pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011.

(b) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland (b) BEBPEAMINECENEBERZRER  AQFNFERMHKEAR
China, the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus BEREATEBRBERES - BRAREZERIIRE BRI E R R A
reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in EHBHRE(REFEAMCEBANERERREZRRER) MENGRB%Z
the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the EAFE  AERMRBEESTANBHATFEENEE(NE) WA A
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus BREBIZARNERAER -

reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into

capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

MEOREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202243 A31 HILFE

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Operating activities ReEFTH
Profit before taxation R 250 A s A 8,983.0 8,394.6
Adjustments for: A S IEEH P
Interest income F B WA (124.1) (141.2)
Interest expenses F B RS2 337.7 376.0
Loss allowance (written back)/ recognised B 5 R EMERZIEERRE (159.2) 149.7
on trade and other receivables ($0)/ FER
(Reversal)/ recognition of allowance on inventories TFaf (Bm)/ %R (57.0) 215
Write off of inventories FEME 3.1 10.6
Fair value change of gold loans BFEEEN AR EE 1,021.2 168.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENEREITE 1,148.4 1,024.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 816.3 1,033.5
Depreciation of investment properties KREYERE 12.0 11.9
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hofth T A R S 49.0 49.6
Share of profits of an associate ME—REEE R R ZEF (5.8) (4.6)
Impairment of goodwill HERE - 2315
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BB KEERE - 66.6
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE - 314.9
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWME  BEKXENEE 35.5 &3
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets BB RS EN W (5.8) (1.8)
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE AR IR A8 P A E RS 71 5.8
Net exchange difference FER =535 (77.2) (171.0)
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEFA 2 11,984.2 11,572.4
working capital KERERE
Increase in inventories FE#MN (3,673.5) (2,859.8)
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits and trade ReME 5 K& H & U GRIE 660.2 (565.0)
and other receivables A (350)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I E fth FE A I8 N 7,075.7 3,724.8
Defined benefits paid B EERAREF (11.3) (9.1)
Cash generated from operations BEFRBHRE 16,035.3 11,863.3
Interest received B FI B 53.2 57.4
Income tax paid: BAETER
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — FERNEH (253.9) (36.0)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax — PR A EREH & (1,891.6) (1,348.9)
in Mainland China SR
— Macau complementary tax — RPIFR BRI (0.1) (56.7)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions — HibrlEE 2 B (4.7) (2.8)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETEFBHRESTFHE 13,938.2 10,476.3

Annual Report 2022
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2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
Investing activities RETH
Interest received B4 FI 8 70.9 84.1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENMRE (1,458.2) (830.3)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEYE  BERKERBEMNKIE (72.5) (9.0)
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BMEKEEBREIIE 43.0 61.0
plant and equipment
Receipts of loan receivables B UK E U E SR 8.4 5.6
Loan advanced by the Group AEEEBFER - (0.6)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value W AREFABENEREE (7.2) (0.6)
through profit or loss
Acquisition of an associate e B — KB N A (49.8) (9.9)
Repayment from associates Bt N RIE R 4.7 3.1
Dividend received from an associate Bl —REt & A RK RS 3.0 4.1
Net cash used in investing activities REZTEFTARESFEAE (1,457.7) (692.5)
Financing activities BMETE
Interest paid EEES) (289.4) (337.3)
Bank borrowings raised BEEERITER 7,963.6 3,344.0
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITER (5,323.0) (8,360.0)
Repayment of gold loans HEEEEE (489.9) (1,809.3)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities Y NEEEEARE D (980.8) (1,134.4)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — KM B A A FEIE AR R A 20.8 11.2
shareholder of a subsidiary
Repayment of capital to a non-controlling Al B B A B FEFE AR A B HH B & TR - (10.4)
shareholder of subsidiaries
Repayment to non-controlling BETHEAT (4.9) (38.4)
shareholders of subsidiaries FEIE AR AR R B R
Dividends paid BERRE (4,689.0) (2,853.3)
Net cash used in financing activities METHMARESFHE (3,792.6) (11,187.9)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BE&RBELSEEWEM/ GRD) 8,687.9 (1,404.1)
equivalents =35
Cash and cash equivalents FYNBEERBLZEY 6,031.9 7,219.2
at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREF AT E 222.4 216.8
Cash and cash equivalents ERNBEESRRLEEY 14,942.2 6,031.9

at the end of the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18

i 6 B8 % MYt

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202243 A31 HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
was incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange"”) since 15 December 2011. Its
immediate holding company and its ultimate holding
company are Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 40. The address of registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of principal place of
business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

Financials

B 7%

preparation (continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are especially significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments which are first effective for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 April
2021.
IFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions
Amendments to IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 4, IFRS 7,
IFRS 9 and IFRS 16

(Amendments)

Reform — Phase 2

HKEx Main Board
Listing Rule

ESG Reporting Guide

Appendix 27 (revised)

The application of the above new and amended
IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/ or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not

yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 March 2022 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable

future transactions.

New standards, amendments and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Financials

B 7%

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group:

e has power over the entity;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the entity; and

® has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an entity, it has power over the
entity when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the entity unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
entity are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(a)

(b)

Annual Report 2022
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Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.
accounted for using the equity method of

Investments in associates are

accounting (see (c) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Financials

B 7%

(e)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note 2.6.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/ permitted by applicable
IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.3 Business Combination

Financials

B 7%

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.3

2.4

Business Combination (continued)

The excess of the:
e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a gain on acquisition of
subsidiaries.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwvill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.5 Foreign currencies translation
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(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) IEEREINEG
Items included in the financial statements of AAREBESERY B MENIE
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functional currency”). The consolidated financial R2JNEEETES -
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(HK$), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Translation and balances (b) BMERLER

Financials

B 7%

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within
other gains and losses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rates at the date when fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.5 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

(c)
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Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the reporting
period;

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

e all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.5 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and is not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in an associate that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Financials

B 7%

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.7

2.8

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply all attached conditions and the grants will
be received.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as other liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. Note 5 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for
government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

For other accounting policies are included in accompanying

notes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise

judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that carry a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are listed below with references in the
notes to the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates Notes

14 and
right-of-use assets 15

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and

(b)  Valuation of inventories 23

Financials
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

Accounting Policy
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance and
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions.
Executive Committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of executive
directors of the Company.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of
trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The
Group's reportable and operating segments for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 included two segments,
namely (i) business in the Mainland China and (ii) business in
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets.

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

SEHERTBER

MHRETRNAETELERRERR

a0
megﬁiﬁﬁ B

ARBEZGELZEATEZEE  BEFEA
& BB A RARR I A RESERTE » 34T
ZEEERBERTIBLERRE  AALRH
HMITESHEKX -

BRI O R R AR 7 R B AR (RIS AR TRUR
RERZXZINEFE -

HERSERKBF T EMmAEZEEREE (R
RARMITES) RENER FEREBAIEH
gD  FELEBRRELESHRGHE—DIHEE
BREMATSE ERIRTERBBEMISE D ET
DT > BE2022F %2021 F3 A31BIEFE -
REBEMNA 2REEDMEERMED B - BI() iz
PR B R ) S R ()AL R BB - P BIR
PR A T 5 K 375 o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA M BMAME

179



180

()  Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to
franchisees and retailers and provision of services to franchisees.

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iii) A fair value loss arising from gold loans of HK$1,021.2 million (2021: fair value
loss of HK$168.4 million) was recorded, as disclosed in Note 9 of which fair
value loss of HK$833.0 million (2021: fair value gain of HK$288.1 million) has not
yet been realised due to timing difference in the recognition of the impact of
changes in gold price between gold loans (short position) and gold inventories

(long position).

(iv) Others represent other gains and losses, other expenses and share of profits of

an associate.

Financials

B %

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4. BXBERPBEE @
INFORMATION (conTinuEeDp)
(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and (a) RO 2HRSBEPHEAEEZ
results by reportable segment EEREESH
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLEE
Hong Kong & Macau of China
Mainland China and other markets Total
A it TEER  PERMAREMTHE Mt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million
BEERT BEET BEET BEERT BEET BEET
Revenue X
External sales INREHE
— Retail — TE 43,794.2 35,716.1 10,114.2 9,122.8 53,908.4 44,838.9
— Wholesale (note i) — #EE (FFEEN) 43,137.5 23,982.1 1,891.8 1,342.8 45,029.3 25,324.9
Segment/ Group revenue DE EE X 86,931.7 59,698.2 12,006.0 10,465.6 98,937.7 70,163.8
Inter-segment sales (note i) o ZBFE 4 E (MFEii) - - 5,435.1 2,772.8 5,435.1 2,772.8
86,931.7 59,698.2 17,4411 13,238.4 104,372.8 72,936.6
Adjusted gross profit KLREEF 20,090.2 16,710.9 3,617.4 2,743.5 23,707.6 19,454.4
(before elimination) (MR AT)
Inter-segment eliminations 7 B FE) B £ - - (534.9) 332.2 (534.9) 332.2
Adjusted gross profit KABERN 20,090.2 16,710.9 3,082.5 3,075.7 23,172.7 19,786.6
Other income Hlg A 682.9 425.6 110.3 266.1 793.2 691.7
Selling and distribution costs  §5% K 9§k 2N £2 (11,189.5) (8,910.3) (2,774.5) (2,938.3) (13,964.0) (11,848.6)
and general and — R RITHAL
administrative expenses
Core operating profit FEEEHR 9,583.6 8,226.2 418.3 403.5 10,001.9 8,629.7
(segment result) (DEER)
Unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold &4 K& (E518)/ ks (833.0) 288.1
(note iii) (B3 i)
Others (note iv) HAb (FtaEiv) 82.0 (228.7)
Interest income =N ON 69.8 81.5
Finance costs BE KA (337.7) (376.0)
Profit before taxation R 358 B 0 A 8,983.0 8,394.6
Other segment information FTAEELE
included in measurement of &R (9 EBEELE)
core operating profit FTEMEAM
(segment result): DERE R}
Concessionaire fees HED K 2,365.4 1,990.5 10.5 0.3 2,375.9 1,990.8
Operating lease rentals in ARMERLE 236.6 145.9 212.0 155.7 448.6 301.6
respect of rented premises HEHS
Staff costs 8 TR 4,113.1 3,454.5 1,192.2 1,185.2 5,305.3 4,639.7
Depreciation and amortisation  #7 % K # ¢4 1,226.3 1,036.3 799.4 1,082.8 2,025.7 2,119.1
Notes: BREE -

HELEFEREES HETNEARDHEANEE
BRBRHRSE T NBEAKA

2 ERREI S R T E 2 (ARSI o

W HOKE  mESEENARERBEREF1,021.28
BHET(2021F  AREFBI68AEEEL)  EFA
SA{ER51E833.0 B BT (20214 « AREWZ288.15H
BEL)AARIASELPHESHEE(BeKA) BES
HFE (BRI NP B MERBEEMDAZR -

Hisg E e REE - At koG — K E
2R °
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]
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(a) Analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable segment (continued)

4.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described

above. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross profit

generated from each segment without allocation of

unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold. Core operating profit

represents the profit generated from each segment

without allocation of unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold,

other gains and losses, other expenses, share of profits

of an associate, interest income and finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

(b)

Analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segment

As at 31 March

Segment assets

EEARTEHBEE @

(a)

(b)

R RSBV EEERZ
E¥BEREEZTT @

T2RH BN HBBEU LR AEE
MEFTEERAER - KAEREFIBERDER
BEEAREHE(EBR)/ KRS BRELE
MEF - TELERIEERPEES R
HIH(EE) k= HtWEkEE - E
HAE - D —KBEQREF - FLEU
ARBEKAR S D EMEEREAH © b
ABRAEEZEZEREEERUMEERDE K
FRIEFEHAFT2EE -

RUEZRSBESHEARE
EERBRESH

R3A31A

SHMEE

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
HEIR it FEES  FERMAREMBTS -y
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
HEET BE#ER HEET BEER HEET BE#ER
Property, plant and equipment  #1% &= k& E 4,131.7 3,603.0 907.1 1,011.6 5,038.8 4,614.6
Right-of-use assets ERERE 623.0 634.2 1,055.7 1,158.6 1,678.7 1,792.8
Investment properties REME 17.5 17.7 186.2 197.2 203.7 214.9
Other intangible assets HEMEREE 80.8 111.8 26.9 873 107.7 149.1
Jewellery collectibles KELR - - 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits BAREBERE MRS 162.0 97.9 123.8 131.9 285.8 229.8
Inventories 7E 39,868.0 26,681.8 17,386.0 16,329.6 57,254.0 43,011.4
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H e 58 5,224.1 5,638.7 689.9 641.7 5,914.0 6,180.4
Taxation recoverable A Uy [B] 7 78 - - 8.4 5.8 8.4 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 10,937.7 2,866.8 4,004.5 3,165.1 14,942.2 6,031.9
Total segment assets BAOBEE 61,044.8 39,551.9 25908.6 24,1989  86,953.4  63,750.8
Unallocated: ROBC
Other intangible assets HimpEE 1.3 8.9
Financial assets at fair value RAREFTABER 29.9 22.0
through profit or loss CREE
Investments in associates REERRIZERE 129.1 79.5
and amounts due from P € AN
associates =I5
Loan receivables FEWE K 12.6 20.7
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 611.0 426.3
Total assets BMEE 87,737.3 64,308.2
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4., BEERYBEH @
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets and (b) U Z2HFEBETHEE
liabilities by reportable segment BERBEE @
(Continued)
As at 31 March MH3A31H
Segment liabilities SEEE

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
i HEEE  HERMREMTE st

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
HEET HEET BEET BEET BEET BEBET

Trade and other payables 2 5 I A 1 20F (23,714.6) (15891.4)  (1,4515)  (1,348.6) (25,166.1) (17,240.0)
Taxation payables e RIIE (568.1) (554.6) (167.9) (167.2) (736.0) (721.8)
Bank borrowings RITER - - (9,0645) (6417.9) (9,0645)  (6,417.9)
Gold loans =ZoEE (12,587.0) (3,292.7) (3,133.6) (2,432.7) (15,720.6) (5,725.4)
Lease liabilities HEBGE (471.1) (500.4) (723.4) (995.6) (1,194.5) (1,496.0)
Total segment liabilities b =L (37,340.8) (20,239.1) (14,540.9) (11,362.0) (51,881.7) (31,601.1)
Unallocated: ROHEL

Amount due to non-controlling  FEF B 2 T 3EHE A (63.8) (66.0)
shareholders of subsidiaries BRI
Retirement benefits RR R R AR (239.1) (238.8)
obligations
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEE G (918.2) (764.0)
Other liabilities HihaE (79.8) (70.7)
Total liabilities meE (53,182.6)  (32,740.6)
(c) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (c) BB UBSETHEAREEE
geographical area S
The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan BB EE DM AEBIERBE E (T
receivables, deposits, amounts due from associates, BREEBRKRER  BEffEe  EUKEE AR
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and B RAAREFABRNSREERE
deferred tax assets, by geographical areas are as ERHIBEE) DT ¢
follows:
As at 31 March MW3A31H
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEET
Mainland China A B At 5,393.4 4,843.8
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets R EIZ&# « R & E i /5 3,337.9 3,528.8
8,731.3 8,372.6
182 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue

Accounting Policy

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable for the sales of

goods and the provision of services in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product

or service is transferred or provided to the customer,

at the amount of promised consideration to which the

Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue

excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

(a)

(b)

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

Sales of goods — Retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling jewellery products and watches.
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the product is transferred to the
customer who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from
retail customers immediately. The payment is
usually settled in cash, by credit cards, by
means of electronic payments or settled
indirectly through retail malls.

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty
programme

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group's customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the products supplied and
the award credits granted. Revenue is not
recognised at the time of the initial sale
transaction — but is deferred and recognised
as revenue when the cash coupons or points
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have
been fulfilled.

4.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Financials

B 7%

Accounting Policy (continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty
programme (Continued)

Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the forfeiture of award credits as breakage
which is recognised as contract liabilities. The
expected breakage amount is recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customers or when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its rights
becomes remote.

Sales of goods — Wholesale to
franchisees/ retailers and Jewellery
trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
jewellery products in the wholesale market.
Sales are recognised when control of the
products is transferred to franchisees/ retailers
and jewellery trading customers. The
franchisees/ retailers and jewellery trading
customers have full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
franchisees’/ retailers’ and jewellery trading
customers’ acceptance of the products. Control
is transferred when the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
franchisees/ retailers and jewellery trading
customers, and either the franchisees/ retailers
and jewellery trading customers have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
franchisees/ retailers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
franchisees/ retailers.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Accounting Policy (continued)

(d)

Service income from franchisees

The Group provides services to franchisees
under fixed-price contracts. Revenue from
providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on
a payment schedule. If the services rendered
by the Group exceed the payment, a contract
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed
the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods

4. BEHERERDPBER @

(d) BZEAS @

EETBR @)

(d)

AEENEEE R RRBRE—FKEHEIR

2 B 0 3 & 89 AR FS W A\
AREBREEEBRESNRMNBERR
HRTS - SRR MU AEBRTE 52
HEy St EIRER -

EXRERBREHRRERD AR
TS5 1S T he i r0 AR 75 48 %R e L 1) 7
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EFRENRERRXNEER
B o fin AN SR B R A A AR T 1R 4B 1 3K
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f&

and services at a point in time and over time in the —BEEAITENERSE T ZERE
following major product categories: BT
For the year ended 31 March BZE3HA3MALLEE
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEBER
At a point in time RE—RE
Retail sales of TEHE
— Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery — REER A RKEEH 11,672.2 11,213.9
— Gold jewellery and products — EHoEHMRER 36,415.7 28,320.0
— Watches — &% 5,820.5 5,305.0
53,908.4 44,838.9
Wholesale to franchisees/ retailers TR ANBA RS/ o 48 P L B 43,890.4 24,449.8
Jewellery trading KEZ5 659.4 575.8
Over time R—BRER
Service income from franchisees » BB RS A 479.5 299.3
98,937.7 70,163.8

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group in both years.
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5. OTHER INCOME 5. HA

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEBER
Commission income EEALON 139.3 69.2
Government grants (note) BT G (i 3E) 311.0 353.7
Other income from franchisees AN B E Mk A 172.0 109.5
Rental income AE WA 354 34.6
Interest income from trade receivables Z 5 EWBGRIER 2 A 53.2 57.4
Interest income from loan receivables FEWE R E)F B UA 1.1 2.3
Others HAit 81.2 65.0
793.2 691.7
Note:  Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government, wage M : REEBSHREBNHELA HENEES ] #ZE2021F38
subsidies of HK$159.6 million related to the Employment Support Scheme and THIEFEE st [MRAEHE RN T ERHEER159.6 68
subsidies of HK$3.2 million related to the one-off Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme were BT R—RUETTEXEBE | HANE A3 2EEE
recognised in the year ended 31 March 2021. Other government subsidies of HK$1.0 TL e HE2021F3A3NBLEEFE BRTIEANBARNEM
million were granted to subsidiaries in Hong Kong in the year ended 31 March 2021. BHAE AR 1.0 BEAB T o LA FITHEN R EE 2022 F 3
None of such was recognised in the year ended 31 March 2022. A31BILFEARER °
Government subsidies of HK$298.6 million (2021: HK$185.3 million) granted to HE202253A3MAILEFE ERERERTHEAHKE AR
subsidiaries in Mainland China and government subsidies of HK$12.4 million (2021: H) BT 46 B 298.6 B B 57T (20214 : 1853 B B A TT) U R
HK$4.6 million) granted to subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognised in the BT H M RDE M R MTE R R & BT RS 12.4 B B8 7T (2021
year ended 31 March 2022. F:46BEBBT) ©
=40
6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HfblhixREiE
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEETT BEET
Net foreign exchange gain [ 5, Uk 25 /B 58 138.1 336.4
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WENREREHER (35.5) (32.3)
plant and equipment
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets REFRAEEEN K 5.8 1.8
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 WMk mEmEENESESR 61.4 127.6
Others Hith 1.0 (2.7)
170.8 430.8
7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HiFEX
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEER
Donation BR 54.8 1.3
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hihm & E 39.8 39.8
Impairment of goodwill (note 17) EERE (MHE17) - 231.5
Impairment of property, plant and Y~ BB REERE (HiE14) - 66.6
equipment (note 14)
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 15) FREEERE(HE15) - 314.9
94.6 664.1
’I 86 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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8. INTEREST INCOME AND FINANCE FIBU N\ R Rl & R &
COSTS
Accounting Policy EatBUR
Interest income FIE U
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in KBRAR B ABENESBREENT S KA
the net fair value gains and losses on these assets. FAREEENAABRGEREBEFET -
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost HEBEKATENSREENFSRAERE
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised BRI RETE  RIBEmERAEEMIA -
in the profit or loss as part of other income.
Interest income is presented as finance income where it is BIEHSEEAZN SR EERIMNE WA
earned from financial assets that are held for cash B FIBEMAZS 2 ABERA - EREMmF
management purposes. Any other interest income is BURARIET AEAIA o
included in other income.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective MEWABERF EXERECRIEERADLE
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial HESY fﬁ,ﬁgféﬁjiﬁ1fgj§fﬁaﬁ’]im$§§%§
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become Gho BEEERESREE  ERMNXERNS
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the mﬁéﬁ&@ﬁ%@@(?ﬂﬁ%lﬁﬂg@{%é)
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
Borrowing costs BERE
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly BEEREWE BESAEAEREEN—K
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of EEEEEXRAN TR NEHEENEERE
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time Fﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁfaﬁﬁqﬁ$ft c REREAER
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its EARERHESEAERTERARIHEENEE -
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of EEETERBIEEEBREES LRI 2 ERKERE
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying iR REWA » BREEBRERN 2B
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for AN IR
capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which HiEERAREEE 2 BFMASEH -
they are incurred.
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEER
Interest income from FEWA
— banks — R1T 69.8 81.5
Finance costs on Bl & B AR
— gold loans — = EE 233.9 196.8
— bank borrowings — RITER 67.6 131.5
— lease liabilities — HEAaRE 36.2 47.7
337.7 376.0
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BeBimiiizFl
2022 2021
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at RIS EIR/ (GTA) -
after charging/ (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EE=M<E (M3 10) 198.9 87.5
Staff's retirement benefits B TR FIFTEI 45K 729.1 497.1
scheme contributions
Staff costs BT RA 4,377.3 4,055.1
5,305.3 4,639.7
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FEKAEREHR S 74,036.9 48,702.8
Concessionaire fees HED K 2,375.9 1,990.8
Operating lease rentals in respect of EAYELEHERS 448.6 301.6
rented premises
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BEREBEITE 1,148.4 1,024.1
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERTE 816.3 1,033.5
Depreciation of investment properties KEYERE 12.0 11.9
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note) o A A B S (P 5E) 49.0 49.6
(Reversal)/ recognition of allowances on FEEE(EE)/ BmR (57.0) 21.5
inventories (included in cost of goods sold) (Gt AEEKAR)
Loss allowance (written back)/ recognised BohEMEWRIEEIERE 2 (159.2) 149.7
on trade and other receivables (@) / R
Fair value loss arising from gold loans HEeBENAREEBRE 1,021.2 168.4
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFABHERARN)
Donations (included in other expenses) B GIAEMAZA) 54.8 1.3
Auditors’ remuneration for the Company’s ZEREN € F AR Bl EED
auditor
— audit and related services — ZE R AR RS 6.6 6.3
— non-audit services — IERBRT 3.8 2.1
Auditor’s remuneration for other auditors 1% S5 RN B & F H fth 4% ZRAT
— audit and related services — ZE R AR RS 4.9 6.6

Note:  Amortisation of HK$39.8 million (2021: HK$39.8 million) related to HEARTS ON FIRE
was included in note 7 “Other Expenses” and the remaining amount of HK$9.2
million (2021: HK$9.8 million) was included in general and administrative expenses.

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND

UEE

HHEARTS ON FIREZ [ 1) # $439.8 @ & & T (2021 F :

39.8EEMBIL) At AME 7 HtbFIX | MBI 2EEET
(20214 : 9.8 BB L) AlFt A—RRITEMAX

10. B - RRITHAERESEMNE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBER
Directors’ fees o 4.7 4.8

Other emoluments to directors BEEMEMME
— salaries and other benefits — He REMEF 36.4 34.6
— performance-based bonus — BERIEA 150.4 43.7
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIKBE R T2 5k 7.4 4.4
198.9 87.5
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and

10. E% -

(48)

AEBRARAEZRERTRABX NN

Bx

BITBEAERESNE

the chief executives of the Company are as follows: FIFAT :
2022 2021
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
Director’s and other  Performance scheme Director's and other  Performance scheme
fee benefits based bonus contributions Total fee benefits based bonus  contributions Total
HER RIEA ik BAERA
EzHe Hir A EHTA A @it Ezhe HitE7 EUEA AR @zt
HKS$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ million
BEER BEET BEER BEET BEER BE#R BEER BEER BE#ER BE#R
(note i) (note i)
(W) (W)
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry S5 /tE+ 0.2 63 219 0.6 290 02 58 6.3 06 129
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BB %4 02 33 125 15 175 0.2 3.0 32 06 7.0
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia [ty an 0.2 12 29 0.1 44 - - - - -
(note i) (MisEii)
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRARE 02 6.3 233 0.6 304 02 58 73 06 139
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong it 4 0.2 45 19.5 04 24.6 0.2 38 55 0.4 9.9
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian ~~ BJ%RIE+ 0.2 26 121 15 164 02 24 29 05 6.0
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ~ Ejgi82 5 0.2 22 8.1 0.1 106 02 21 19 01 43
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ~ EPfER %64 0.2 36 16.5 20 223 02 32 4.7 08 89
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Rrdtt 0.2 33 127 03 165 02 30 33 03 68
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BRALE 02 31 133 03 16.9 02 29 38 03 72
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert REALE - - - - - 02 26 4.1 02 7.1
(note i (Beziin)
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia gEEut - - - - - 02 - 0.1 - 03
(note i) (PsEi)
Independent non-executive B FHTES:
directors:
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEEEL 04 - 12 - 16 04 - 0.1 - 05
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EBREL 04 - 12 - 16 04 - 0.1 - 05
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon B8 %4 0.6 - 12 - 18 06 - 0.1 - 07
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey ML 04 - 12 - 16 04 = 0.1 - 05
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert BRBERE 04 - - - 04 = = = = =
(note i) (MizEiv)
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily HEBNT 04 - 12 - 16 04 - 0.1 - 05
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul i bt 0.1 - 16 - 17 04 - 0.1 - 05
(note v) (MizEv)
Total Fo 47 36.4 150.4 14 1989 48 346 837 44 875
Note: BT -
(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s financial results (i) EREANEAEEEEERAEENMEEEREERE
and directors’ performance decided by the management of the Group. BI5EE -
(i) Re-designated as an executive director with effect from 1 April 2021. (ii) AEARITES B2021F4 81 BiRERK -
(iii) Resigned from the Board with effect from 1 January 2021. (i) BIEESEMS - 5202161 A1 BRAER
(iv) Appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2021. (iv) RERBIUFNITESR - 2021 F4A1BER -
(v) Retired upon the conclusion of annual general meeting held on 28 July 2021. (v) 0202167 A28 ARITZRRBERGHERBRE -

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.
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10.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2021:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
included above.

During the years ended 31 March 2022, no (2021: no)
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the
directors (2021: 10) have waived any emoluments (2021:
HK$1.8 million) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management"” section fell within the
following bands:

10. EE - RETHAEREENE

(48)

AERENEAL
RESBEMEATRERADERES (2021
FRA) REFMFABRNLEX -

I

HZE2022F3A31 BIEFE « A% E 1 & (2021
F:E)AARAEEREHTHRABXEERS
e AT (BEES  HRTBRABRES)
B - SAYE R BEERRAL A fE R RS R EMAK
EMAREE R SR - BE2022F3 A31 HIE
FE - WEEAESE (20214 1 108) WEEMF
B (20214 : 1.8 EEAIT) °

EREBEASME
BLAEFRAEEREMEALOMBI B
EEAR(BESR [EFRBRERALMHN
—£5) KBS T T FRIHRE -

Number of individuals

BE®E
2022 2021
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7L = 2,000,000 7T 4
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T % 2,500,000 % 7T 2 7
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T % 3,000,000 % 7T 3 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %7t % 3,500,000 % 7T 5 =
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 % 7T % 4,000,000 % 7T 2 -
12 12
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11. TAXATION

Accounting Policy

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the

uncertainty.

11.

Bl

ERTBIR

AR B SR % R A I R B IR
BBLEEA 2 R H BN BT L e
FETEE R AR B ) 2 B  8 B B AT

ENEART G

BIEAPRIS B MR AR R] -~ KM B A ) K
ERREENELRRTRANB RN ®RE B
RERMABELABEMORBEPIFE - EEE
hE B R OE DI 2 B AR IR A 15 00 TE AT (4 3R
BREIRN - WE BRI HEEETD A A EER
REENTKTE - ARERERE A
RS RARMEE R F 5L E ER-TRR
THEERZNBARDEME) @ &t EHLH K
2 o

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEER
The taxation charge comprises: HRIERZ 8
Current tax: BREARRIE -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in B b RIS 1,503.9 1,314.5
Mainland China
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBEREH 267.0 163.1
Macau complementary tax BT S M T 40.0 5.0
Taxation in other jurisdictions EH M RE MR 2 08 6.1 3.6
1,817.0 1,486.2
Under/ (over) provision in prior years: BEFEREBIR/ (BEEE)
EIT in Mainland China B A TSR 28.5 424
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEANEH 25 215
Macau complementary tax B B A 0.1 -
Taxation in other jurisdictions E M RIE MR 2 BT (0.3) 3.4
30.8 67.3
Deferred tax charge (note 22) BEEFIBRA S (F&E22) 50.9 526.4
Withholding tax* TEHE * 204.4 138.6
2,103.1 2,218.5

*  Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and

interest income from Mainland China subsidiaries.
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11. TAXATION (conTinueD) 11. #I8 @)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the MIEFEA - BEBMSH IR ERTOS IR
estimated assessable profit for both years. 16.5% BiEFTE -

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the BEFEAREMBE(HR]) CEMRESHRER
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation HEEMMAR - A E AR ERFES
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in #25.0% °

Mainland China is 25.0% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, ARRETHEAMKEARELS BT R A
they are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the ARERANTIEES MEFENEAREY
development of the western part of Mainland China. The #15.0% °

applicable tax rate is 15.0% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum MEEEA - RFIPTERH TR TR ER TS
progressive rate of 12.0% on the estimated assessable profit Mikmm RERE12.0%TH °

for both years.

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAFRIES 0] BER S B 2 R M BR T AR F 28R
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or AR
loss as follows:

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEER
Profit before taxation B4 F Al s A 8,983.0 8,394.6
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: RERAMEHEAENTIE : 1,953.4 1,915.8
(Mainland China: 25.0%; Hong Kong, China: (EP@WWE :25.0% : REIES  16.5% :
16.5%; Macau, China: 12.0%) RERM : 12.0%)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR MNF A TS 2 18.5 12.1
tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERPBRARNRBZE (15.8) (99.1)
tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEENT RS2 16.2 41.6
Utilisation of tax losses previously B LRI AR IBEE (17.7) (4.3)
not recognised
Tax effect of temporary differences RIEREL I R IBE 2 (69.8) 41.3
not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives ETHEAHEARFRERE R (82.0) (48.1)
granted to certain subsidiaries in BEAF
Mainland China
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of mh B P i T BB 2 R oK R A FE AN E 234.3 263.6
subsidiaries in Mainland China
Under provision in prior years BAEFERETR 30.8 67.3
Withholding tax* TR * 204.4 138.6
Tax credit TIBHE (175.5) (94.6)
Others HAitb 6.3 (15.7)
Taxation charge for the year FRHIBESZ H 2,103.1 2,218.5
*  Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and * EMBEBREBAD A R RERA K R E R AR R
interest income from Mainland China subsidiaries. B A®EMB -
’I 92 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Accou

nting Policy

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

(b)

profit attributable to shareholders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in

the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is

based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company for the year and on the number of
10,000,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue

during the

year.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

share as there was no potential ordinary shares dilution

during both years.
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o ARBIBMREMEEMN(TEEXMNE
AR ASME R )RR A)

o RUBMBEEANT BT EBRINETF
BYEE - YRFRABEBITEBR(T
BIREFR) MIEATFHE -
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RS RFIEEE SREARFH
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13. DIVIDENDS

Accounting Policy

13. iR&

ErT B

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, MRREH R ZATE EIRERIKEHRIL K
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the DIERZEMKRESHE(ELEERERBTH
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the BB RE) (ELBE -

reporting period but not distributed at the end of the

reporting period.

2022 2021
HK cents per HK cents per
share HK$ million share HK$ million
FREN BEER SREN BEET
Dividends paid and recognised RERNZ A RERED K
as distribution during the year Z BB
For current year: REE :
— Interim dividends — RERE 22.0 2,200.0 16.0 1,600.0
For prior year: EFE:
— Final dividends — REAKE 24.0 2,400.0 12.0 1,200.0
4,600.0 2,800.0
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final RBEERE - NAREFTEREMNEE 202243
dividend of HK28.0 cents (2021: HK24.0 cents) per share, A31 8 IEFEIRMNRER S F/28.07%1(1L(2021
totalling HK$2,800.0 million (2021: HK$2,400.0 million) to be F 2407 10) 0 & $£2,800.0F 8% (2021
partly paid out of the Company’s share premium account in & :2,400.0B88 %) - WEbH B AR BIRMD &
respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 have been BERFEMN  EEAFERIREERRAFAS L
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to HEFEEE -

approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting Policy

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction in progress) are stated at
historical cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land Over the lease term
Buildings 5%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33'/,%
Over the lease term

or 20%,
whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

14. h% - BERRE

ERTBIR

W - BERREOERNEEJIRHERN
B RMETRAEN L RET (ERIREY
BN DRERRABERRGRHTER
H {5 REHRERE (107) 58 -

BEERABEERFBEREBKBENFRX -

ERREIH B A B R AR R E N ot A e R ARG
B} IR B RN BE R AT H B - BERACATT AT A
BERBERERAREBEE(WAHE) ° [
ARAEBEENHENR BN ZREEERRR
&R LR - A R RIRERNELR
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Accounting Policy (continued)

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administration purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’'s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financials
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Critical Accounting Estimates

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of asset can be
supported by its recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s reported
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the consolidated
income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, after reviewing the
business environment as well as the Group's strategies and
past performance of its cash-generating units, management
concluded that there was no impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (2021: HK$66.6
million and HK$314.9 million respectively). Management
believe that any reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions used in the impairment reviews would not
affect management’s view on impairment at 31 March
2022. A discount rate of 14.0% (2021: 12.3%) has been
applied.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

14. Y% - B ERRHE =

&)

Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plant and fixtures and improve- Motor Construction
building hinery Juif ments vehicles in progress Total
LGS HE
THRET BERKE £BRFE VES: S AR ERIR @
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEER BBER BBER BEER BEER BEER BEER
Cost A
At 1 April 2020 20204818 3,874.2 463.3 2,868.0 2,975.2 54.8 29.5 10,265.0
Currency realignment EBEE 2729 382 100.3 229.8 3.1 35 647.8
Additions AE 40 36.6 436.6 3231 33 49.7 853.3
Transfer HE 99 6.4 0.9 0.6 - (17.8) =
Disposals HE - (10.9) (203.4) (106.5) (3.6) - (324.4)
At 31 March 2021 2021434311 4,161.0 533.6 3,202.4 34222 57.6 64.9 11,4417
Currency realignment EBHE 155.8 23.0 66.6 139.8 19 36 3907
Additions AE - 471 749.0 576.4 1.3 93.6 14714
Transfer i 26.6 8.7 1.8 5.3 - (42.4) -
Disposals H& (1.1) (3.7) (245.0) (110.6) (6.0) (0.5) (366.9)
At 31 March 2022 1202243 A318 43423 608.7 3,774.8 4,033.1 64.8 119.2 12,942.9
Accumulated depreciation RIHERAE

and impairment
At 1 April 2020 202064418 1,030.2 178.9 2,030.6 2,343.3 40.7 - 5,623.7
Currency realignment HERE 818 15.8 583 185.4 25 - 3438
Depreciation provided for the year 4 R1#7 & # & 199.4 50.9 4204 3474 6.0 - 1,024.1
Impairment provided for the year & Aji {E & - - 66.1 05 - - 66.6
(note 15(a)) (F13E15(a))

Eliminated on disposals T ERE - (5.4) (156.2) (66.3) (3.2 = (231.1)
At 31 March 2021 R2021€3 /317 13114 240.2 2,419.2 2,810.3 46.0 - 6,827.1
Currency realignment EBEE 53.0 108 371 114.7 14 - 217.0
Depreciation provided for the year 4 A1#7 & # & 211.6 56.3 461.1 4124 7.0 - 1,148.4
Eliminated on disposals ek (0.7) (1.9) (181.5) (98.9) (5.4) - (288.4)
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 1,575.3 305.4 2,735.9 3,2385 49.0 - 7,904.1
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2022 7202293 /311 2,767.0 3033 1,038.9 794.6 15.8 119.2 5,038.8
At 31 March 2021 12021438318 2,849.6 2934 783.2 611.9 116 64.9 4,614.6

The carrying values of the Group's properties (including AEEYE(PRERIR)NEMES AT :

construction in progress) are analysed as follows:

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEER

In Mainland China A B A 2,561.4 2,565.5
In Hong Kong, China RPRES 324.8 349.0
2,886.2 2,914.5

Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

Accounting Policy

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead

accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

Accounting Policy (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the subsidiaries of the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature.

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

Accounting Policy (continued)

An amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-related rent
concessions” was issued in June 2020 and is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
This amendment allows a lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient has been applied to
all rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic, only if all of the following
conditions are met:

e The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

e There is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Group reviews right-of-use assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether an impairment has occurred typically
requires various estimates and assumptions, for details,
please refer to critical accounting estimate in note 14.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueb)

(a) Amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

15. EAEEERHEERER@

(a) REEMBRRNREBHIEHE

FAEMBIRRBREHE RSN T

Leasehold land/
land use rights

A Office,
(note i) warehouse and
HE L/ others
Right-of-use assets T 6E AR Retail stores WAZE - -BE Total
EREEE (P =Ei) ZEE REA Mt
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBAR BEET BEAT BEAT
At 1 April 2020 "®2020F4 A1H 592.4 1,592.3 103.3 2,288.0
Currency realignment B AR 12.1 36.8 1.9 50.8
Additions NE - 799.4 22.6 822.0
Depreciation provided for the year  4F 37 & &4 (M T ii) (22.1) (962.1) (49.3) (1,033.5)
(note ii)
Impairment provided for the year G AR E B s (BT T i) - (314.9) - (314.9)
(note iii)
Surrender RE - (19.6) - (19.6)
At 31 March 2021 ®2021%3 A31H 582.4 1,131.9 78.5 1,792.8
Currency realignment B AR 6.7 19.5 0.9 271
Additions NE - 635.4 59.7 695.1
Depreciation provided for the year & R & B (M5 ii) (20.0) (739.4) (56.9) (816.3)
(note ii)
Surrender RE - (20.0) - (20.0)
At 31 March 2022 "®202243 A31H 569.1 1,027.4 82.2 1,678.7
Lease liabilities HK$ million
HESE BEET
At 1 April 2020 K 2020F4 A1 H 1,797 .1
Currency realignment B 3913
Lease payment HERIE (1,182.1)
Interest expenses AERX 47.7
Additions NE 815.4
Surrender RE (21.4)
At 31 March 2021 "®20214F3A31H 1,496.0
Currency realignment B 20.4
Lease payment HERIE (1,017.0)
Interest expenses ) B R 36.2
Additions NE 684.5
Surrender RE (25.6)
At 31 March 2022 M®20229F3A31H 1,194.5

202 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

(a) Amounts recognised in the

15. EAEEERHEERER@

(a) REEMBRRNREDBHIEHE

consolidated statement of financial (%)
pOSition (Continued)
At31March 2022 At 31 March 2021
RA2022F3H318 #R2021F3H318
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Lease liabilities HEaE
Current mE 667.2 770.0
Non-current JERE 527.3 726.0
1,194.5 1,496.0
Notes: B &E

() The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China government and
leasehold land in Hong Kong.

(i) The amount was charged to selling and distribution cost and general and
administrative expenses.

(i)  The amount was charged to other expenses.

The Group considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit.
Management performed impairment assessments for
the retail stores that had impairment indicator. The
carrying amount of the retail store asset is written
down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is in excess of its estimated recoverable
amount. The estimates of the recoverable amounts
were based on value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on the
management's forecasts covering the remaining
tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such as
change in revenue, change in operating cost and
change in gross profit.

The change in revenue is dependent on the timing of
easing of the various travel restriction and quarantine
measures for COVID-19 pandemic, with the
assumption that tourist traffic and customer spending
would start to gradually recover from the second half
of the year ended 31 March 2023 onwards in Hong
Kong & Macau of China and other markets.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has
not recorded any impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and right of-use assets (2021: HK$66.6
million and HK$314.9 million respectively) in other
expenses (as shown in note 7).
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 15. EFHESEREEERwW
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

(b) Amounts recognised in the (b) REFEIEHREDHRE
consolidated statement of profit or
loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the GEERRBANEAERAM T HIRBEER
following amounts relating to the leases which are not MR EERE16REMEM ST ¢

capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16:

2022 2021
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Expense relating to short-term leases HHAERBNAS 448.6 301.6
(included in selling and distribution costs (FTASHE KD $HACA LA K
and general and administrative —MRRITHAX)
expenses)
Expense relating to variable lease WIAAREEERZEHHEE 2,375.9 1,990.8
payments not included in lease liabilities 3B BRXT
(included in selling and distribution costs) (FFASHE K7 #HEA)
2,824.5 2,292.4
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March BZE2022F3A3MHIEFEHENR S
2022 was HK$3,841.5 million (2021: HK$3,474.5 million). i 48 %8 53,841.58 B % st (2021 4F ¢
34745 BEET) °
(c) The Group's leasing activities and how (c) EEZHEEEHREANRAZE
they are accounted for
The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices AEEXFZHEZHTEE  HAERR
and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically entered B o HEA LB TN 1IH ERFZEE
for fixed periods of six months to five years, but may HAPRETSZ - MERJRE BB NPt v RE4E &
have extension options as described below. JEHE o
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HEBRFIRERNEENZE  YBSERET
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. R B (G 3R R A1 - T & 15 3 T e AT ] 22
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants # HERASENHEEERNE MR
other than the security interests in the leased assets RN - MEBETMISMEEREAEER -
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.
(d) Variable lease payments (d) FEfAEFR
Some property leases contain variable payment terms HOmERER S REHAEHEE RN
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable N RIER - ERZB N RERNERE
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, AR % %Ké{f&%ﬁ&ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]l;ﬁﬂzﬁg
including minimising the fixed costs base for newly cIRIHERAENERHEN KRS
established stores. Variable lease payments that ;Xiﬁ R 2 BARS Y IE 2 A TER AR ©
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.
204 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

(e) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Accounting Policy
Investment properties are properties held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner's occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for
subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line basis over 20 years for building
element or lease term for land element.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep)

16. HEWE @

2022 2021
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBET
Cost B A
At 1 April K4 A1H 304.9 302.5
Currency realignment B AR 0.8 2.4
At 31 March M®3A31H 305.7 304.9
Accumulated depreciation E-S ik
At 1 April R4 A1H 90.0 771
Currency realignment Bl AR - 1.0
Depreciation provided for the year FRITERE 12.0 11.9
At 31 March M3 HA31H 102.0 90.0
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March R3A31H 203.7 214.9

(a) Amounts recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss for

investment properties

(a) MIBREVENREES BB RER

HI&

2022 2021

HKS$ million HK$ million

BEER BEERT

Rental income from operating leases KeEHERT WA 15.3 15.2

Direct operating expenses from property EXHSBANYMEL 14.3 14.9
that generated rental income HELEERAX

Financials
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group's investment
properties at the end of the reporting period have been
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
(note 35). The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique.

Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy at the end of
each reporting period are as follows:

16. EYE @
(b) ARIEZELR

AEERBREMNRKREVEN LA EFE
EAR=MEAESZR(HE35) - RAE
SENERSBRESEMERMD LR
MBABRNABRERBEENRERE -

AEERERERRNEENEFBRE
BARESENERNT

Fair value hierarchy Fair value
DREZHR ARE
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
At 31 March M®3A31H
Industrial property units NRBARIE Level 3 402.8 373.8
located in Hong Kong L/ E=-Lv E=ZR

(c)

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of
the reporting period.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the period (2021: nil).

Valuation process and techniques used
to determine level 3 fair values

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's
investment properties at the end of every financial
year. As at 31 March 2022, the fair values of the
investment properties have been determined by Knight
Frank Petty Limited.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units
of the properties are assessed and capitalised at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in
Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep)

(c) Valuation process and techniques used
to determine level 3 fair values (continued)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

16. REYE @

(c) BEEE=ZRAAENKERRF
RFixm

R YLD R B

BERSEREARZSENAE

4

2EMEZ

ul

o

Valuation Range of inputs Relationship of unobservable
Description techniques Unobservable inputs (probability-weighted average) inputs to fair value
T AR B A B R
it fRER*E TR B RE A B BAYEBEE (MR — mEFY) AREZBE
2022 2021
Industrial properties  Income approach  Capitalisation rate 3.8% 3.8%  The higher the capitalisation rate,
units — Hong Kong the lower the fair value
TEME WASE B ERERES  DAEBE
B — BB
Monthly market HK$10.9 p.s.f. HK$10.4 p.s.f.  The higher the price per
rent square feet, the higher
the fair value
FAMSHES BFHER F¥FR BEARERES  ALESR
10.958 T 1048 7T
(d) Leasing arrangements (d) HELRH
The investment properties are leased to tenants under BEMFREEHEHETHER - §AT
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. IWERFE & °
Although the Group is exposed to changes in the BERNEERNRAHBALERFGARERE
residual value at the end of the current leases, the BE) EAEE R LMK EHEE
Group typically enters into new operating leases and I B FE B 4 SR B S 2 BB A% RR (B R IR 2
therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in | HARRBENTERGRBEAMENR
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations S °
about the future residual values are reflected in the fair
value of the properties.
For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of EAREMEHENRERKBENK
investment properties, refer to note 31. F2BIMIEE3T ©
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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17. GOODWILL

Accounting Policy

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

&
DiEE

ERTBIR
WREHE23MAHE - BETRBH
ESFRTAEAR NREEHERERE

# BNEEFRERE MeERTETRE

AH - TERKARBREBEIE - HE
ERMNESERED EEREMEmEAMKE(E

RETRENR HEERIEERESELE
i - S e TR Al R E B A 615 2 M 2 4 %
MEBZRSELSUIRNSEEEMAR - M
ReErBURReEEEMARNDRARE
EENRERHENREBRER

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BEER BEAET

Cost XA 257.8 257.8
Accumulated impairment Z2:HRE (257.8) (257.8)
Carrying values REE - -

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire
Company, LLC (“Hearts On Fire”) included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Hearts On Fire.

Annual Report 2022
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¥R R - A1&™%HE R K Hearts On Fire
BEAFOFZEBENSHE -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAME

209



210

17.

GOODWILL (continuep)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group engaged an external,
independent and qualified valuer, Knight Frank Asset
Appraisal Limited, to determine the value-in-use of
Hearts On Fire's cash-generating units. The recoverable
amount of the Hearts On Fire is determined based on value-
in-use calculations which uses discounted future cash flow
projections derived from financial forecasts covering a five-
year period with cash flows beyond this period extrapolated
using rates of growth not exceeding historic levels. Forecast
profitability has regard to past performance and expected
future changes in costs and sales. The combined effect of
the COVID-19 pandemic and the current market situations
have been considered in the determination of weighted
average cost of capital (“WACC"). The Group’'s WACC at a
pre-tax discount rate of 14.7% to 17.3%, post-tax discount
rate of 12.3% to 13.0%.

As of 31 March 2021, POS coverage of Hearts On Fire in
Mainland China and Hong Kong & Macau of China and other
markets was expected to scale down as part of brand
repositioning, reducing the amount of future cash flows from
previously forecast amounts. In the opinion of directors, the
benefit of synergies arising from acquisition of Hearts On Fire
was expected to be minimal in the future. As a result, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is less than its carrying value,
therefore the Group has recorded an impairment loss for
goodwill of HK$231.5 million during the year ended 31 March
2021.

Financials

B 7%

17. & @

R2021 63 A31 8 "REEZEIN - B K
SEBMEERM KB EENEERQA BE
Hearts On Fire IR e E 4 B A A EE -
Hearts On Fire 8 R I [E] & 58 T9AR 15 6 A (BB i
TR E (FIAR B RE R F MBS TR BB AR
ARBLREFEA - BBZANRLREATE
MBEKTA SRR ) METE - BAENH
TR & E BRI KA R E BB A R AMIEH R IR
B E) o WEEME T ERKAE - 20198 A5
ERERBNRETANGEZEERKERENA °
AEENMEFHEARAKAHAMRER
147% £17.3% © % & B 3 X B123% =
13.0% °

M2021F3A31 8 ' ERMEEINELH—B
13 + 5t Hearts On FireZEF B A A HE
S PERPIREMENSEBEFRER -
LARKRBESRENTBACREREE EFHEE - K
& Hearts On Fire #5 2R &Y 17 [R] 28 FE 7 25 7E 7% 2R
HEBEAR - Al BENFAIKESEIRE
REE WASEHZE2021F3A3MBLEEE
BEHERERBE231. 5888 -
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Hih B EE
Accounting Policy ERHEE
Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured initially BN B B EV R IRKAGT 2 - SR
at cost or, if acquired in a business combination, fair value A orh U AR UKEE B HAIR A R E S
at the acquisition date. An intangible asset with a finite =2 BARAGAFHNEREEREAIEA
useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its FEARNAEGEE S - W B IR R R 5T 8
useful life and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation k2 BEERYE -
and accumulated impairment losses.
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBER
Cost 5%
At 1 April and 31 March R4R1BX3A31H 472.9 472.9
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 April n4/81H 314.9 265.3
Amortisation provided for the year F N B 49.0 49.6
At 31 March M3 A31H 363.9 314.9
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March M3 A31H 109.0 158.0
The other intangible assets are amortised with useful life of ZEEMEREERERAFH6E 165 #H -
6 to 15 years.
19. JEWELLERY COLLECTIBLES 19. %KEBEER

Accounting Policy

Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current assets at
cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Jewellery
collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set
jewellery collectibles held by the Group which are designated
not for sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at
least equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of
the reporting period.

Annual Report 2022
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Bt B
KELHAR &= BETEODELEE
BHER -

KRB RIRKARRHRERBR (F)JIRD
BRIERDEE - RED RN L & KK L
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(a) Investments in associates

20. REtE AT Z2_E/ T
AL

(a) REEEATZIRE

¢
=
&
It

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BEER BEET

At 1 April w4818 23.8 1.7

Currency realignment BHSHE 1.1 1.7

Acquisition A 49.8 9.9

Share of profits FEA(E & 5.8 4.6

Dividends received B AR & (3.0) (4.1)

At 31 March M3 A31H 77.5 23.8
Details of the associates of the Group are as follows: REEMEE N RFBEHIAT

Place of incorporation/

Proportion of

Proportion of

establishment and ownership interest voting rights held
Name of companies principal place of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
EMAL/ RALBER rEBAERERE EEBATE
DEER TEEEHY Bz hl BRERELH TEEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
Beijing Wolafei Jewellery Mainland China 35.0% 35.0% 40.0% 40.0% Manufacturing of jewellery
Company Limited RE A products
T RERIEEHERAA KEEREE
Group Program Limited British Virgin Islands 33.0% 40.0% 33.3% 40.0% Operating a customer
("BVI") loyalty scheme in
EBERREE Hong Kong and
Mainland China
W& R B AEE
EERAEE
New Cutting Edge Limited BVI 40.0% - 40.0% - R&D and production of
(note) KEEARES all jewellery-related
(FizE) business
AERERBEGHEREE
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6% Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre ek complex in Mainland China
Company Limited AR B 3 A8 RE D R 0
FIFERAREERLERAR
Shenzhen Yungi Xingchen Mainland China 9.2% 10.1% 11.1% - Data analytics platform
Technology Company Limited B A BEATER

AYTEMERSHEE

BREEAH
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
B BAAXEHKEEEER QA



20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Investments in associates (continued)

Note:  The Group acquired 40.0% of the Ordinary Shares of New Cutting Edge
Limited which was established in BVl on 31 December 2021 at a
consideration of HK$49.8 million. New Cutting Edge Limited is engaged in
R&D and production of all jewellery-related businesses in Hong Kong.

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over New Cutting Edge
Limited because it has the power to appoint two out of five directors of
New Cutting Edge Limited under the provisions stated in the Articles of
Association of New Cutting Edge Limited, representing 40.0% of voting
rights held by the Group as at 31 March 2022.

Each individual associate does not have a significant
financial impact on the Group's results and financial
position. Aggregate financial information of associates
that are individually immaterial is as follows:

20. REEBE AT Z2IRE/ BKEE
AT)FRIE (@)

(a) REFZEATZHE@
MRt : M2021F12A318 - AEEHE498EBHETH
E New Cutting Edge Limited £40.0% ¥ i A% *
New Cutting Edge Limited 7 % & # B R BF S5 L ©
New Cutting Edge Limited £ & B EFT A R BB
PR E R EEER o

7N %2 [# 7] $f New Cutting Edge Limited {715 & K §
27 RE B ENew Cutting Edge Limited 48
IR 408 FTE IS - AN @5 % {E New Cutting
Edge Limited EZEE M A - 1A A EE R 2022
F3A31 BAFIREEMN40.0% -

EEBHENRUEHAREHEE LY
BRABREAMBFZE - BRI TBEX
MEERRZHMBERAFAT

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Aggregate carrying amount of BERTBERNEE AR 775 23.8
individually immaterial associates ZERmEEE
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBEFTE TS IBR AR
share of:
Profit from continuing operations BB EEER @A 5.8 4.6
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 mEia= 1.1 1.7
Total comprehensive income 2 E W B8 6.9 6.3

The Group had discontinued recognising its share of
losses of associates because its cumulative share of
losses in the associates had exceeded the investment
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
The Group will not resume recognition of its share of
any future profits in the associates until its share of
such profits equals the cumulative share of losses not
recognised in past years.
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Investments in associates (continued)

20. REREANTZRE/ BB E

VNS

(a) REFEATZ®RE @

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of the FARZFAHRERELEHEEQAREERS
associates for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: B
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
Unrecognised share of losses AMERE(REE & N AEE 19.9 18.6
of associates
Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt REREGE S N A EE 108.2 88.3
losses of associates
) s\ =1k
(b) Amounts due from associates (b) FEWBtZEATIRIA

21.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying value of amounts
due from associates is HK$51.6 million (2021: HK$55.7
million) of which HK$40.0 million (2021: HK$40.0
million) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms and of HK$11.6 million (2021:
HK$15.7 million) which bears interest at 4.2% per
annum will be repaid to the Group by instalments until
30 September 2024.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loan receivables represent loans to staff (2021: loans to staff
and an amount due from a private entity (the “Issuer”) which
is principally engaged in agriculture and wholesale of pearls
in Australia). Loan receivables are classified as current or
non-current assets based on contractual terms and taking
into account the timing of recovery as expected by the
management. There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any
loss allowance made against the principal amount of HK$12.6
million (2021: HK$20.7 million) or interest on these loans at
31 March 2022 and 2021.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying
amount of the related loan on an individual basis.

As at 31 January 2022, all loan receivable from the Issuer is
repaid to the Group (2021: a principal amount of Australian
Dollar 1.0 million, beared interest at 7.0% per annum and
would be repaid to the Group by instalments until 31 January
2022).

Financials
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7202243 A31 H » FEUHEE A & FRIA
HERE(EA51.6 A&ET (2021 4 : 65.7
BEET) ET40.085EmL(20214F :
400BBRT) REER 2EREAE
EEER  UK11.6 B&EHET(20214F :
15.788BIL) BBL42% FHERE D
HEETASEE HEE2024F9H30H
1E o

FEW & =R

EWEREETER(2021F - BETERRENR
—REBERMREFDRBELMENL LT
(T#ITADKFRIA) - BBEFIRES KEF R
E 88 TR [ TR AR SRR RO AT 4R [0 B R T AR 0 KR B R
Bk IEmE B E - 12022 4F % 202143 A 31
B SESSHERNOFE  TEEERER
NHBRERAE12.6 8 &ET(20214 1 20.7
BEBIL)HAE -

EHEWETEREUE TYERERR - mxA
AEERm S HBEAEEEERNEREE -

i3

M202241 A31 8 @ BWETARERE 250
NFAEE (202145 : ALE/10BEET
MERTO% X HOHENTFAEE B
20221 A31HIE) °

T

Y i
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting Policy

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuep) 22. BEEBIIE @)

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities NTARAFERBIFEASEEEREZER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the EFBE(EE) BEUAKREABE

current and prior years:

Withholding
tax on Unrealised
undistributed Amortisation ~ Amortisation fair value
profits of and and change of
subsidiaries Unrealised  depreciati Jepreciati gold loans Others Others
in Mainland profiton  (deferredtax  (deferredtax  in Mainland (deferred tax  (deferred tax
China inventories assets) liabilities) China Tax losses assets) liabilities) Total
REREHE BERNE  BERFE  PEAARES iy At
RRARHR FE2 (BEHE (BERR (REZAER (BERR (BEBE
HNZENE  REREN &E) af) MMELD AR &E) af) @3t

HK$ million ~ HKSmillion ~ HKS$million ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HK$million ~ HKSmillion ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEER AEER BEET BEER AEER BEET BEER BEER

At 1 April 2020 #202064A1R 3895 (246.7) (75.7) 1156 (150.9) (7.2) (89.6) - (65.0)
Currency realignment g% 358 (8.3) (0.4) 99 (4.2) - (9.0) 08 246
Charge/ (credit) to profit or e/ GtA) &R 263.6* 1004 (49.8) 17.0 2158 7.0 (47.0) 194 526.4
loss note 11) (FE11)
Utilised during the year ENER (1483) - = = = = - - (14823)
At 31 March 2021 R202153A318 540.6 (154.6) (125.9) 1425 60.7 (0.2) (145.6) 202 3317
Currency realignment BHAE 2.1 (5.0) (0.1) 72 0.1 - (5.9) 04 218
Charge/ (credit) toprofitor 318/ (3 A) & 234.3* (1114) 353 M7 (1475) - (10.9) (20.6) 50.9
loss note 11) (FE11)
Utilised during the year FR{EA (1032) - - - - - - - (103.2)
At 31 March 2022 1202243 A318 696.8 (271.0) (90.7) 214 (86.7) (02) (162.4) - 307.2
*  Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to * REBFBEMREPASBUL - 520081 A1 B - AT B E
foreign investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. A BRI AR FRIMEEE B IRAR S - HBRUR10% 2 B -
Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain BERASEETHEBARRGTEERBMANIEREERED
subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these A - ETZEHB R E R AR BB R 5% MNRMARS
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments. 2B -
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for LNTARYBRERERMELEEHBLH%
financial reporting purposes: DT
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E (611.0) (426.3)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIB B & 918.2 764.0
307.2 337.7
216 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuep)

At 31 March 2022, the Group had tax losses of HK$1,181.3
million (2021: HK$1,143.6 million) not recognised as deferred

22. BIEHIE @)

2202243 A31H - REBARERRELNIE
BEEMBIIEEBER/,181.38 8% (2021 £ -

tax assets. Tax effect of such tax losses as at 31 March 2022
was HK$242.6 million (2021: HK$235.6 million).

1,143 6B BB ) - ZMIBE BN 202243 A
BTEMHBEE B2426H B8 (20214 :
2356 AEBTT) °

The aging of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is as follows: ZHEHA S D RERRIBEBNRRAT ¢

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BHEBT BEER

0-5 years 0-5 4 137.3 134.8
11-15 years 11-15% 384.7 186.5
16-20 years 16-204F - 198.3
Unlimited RBEFR 659.3 624.0
1,181.3 1,143.6

At 31 March 2022, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$14.3 million (2021: HK$11.2 million) not
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2022 was
HK$2.4 million (2021: HK$1.8 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5.0%
(2021: 5.0%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1
January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend distribution
plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 March
2022 amounting to HK$13,936.4 million (2021: HK$10,812.7
million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$2,173.2 million (2021: HK$1,728.9 million) has been set
aside for local operation and business development.
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2022638318 AEEKERAETRE
EEMAHNAREREEEA1438E5L(2021
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23. INVENTORIES

Accounting Policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Cost is calculated using specific
identification basis for gem-set jewellery, platinum and
k-gold jewellery (finished goods), gold jewellery and
products selling at fixed price and watches; and weighted
average for other inventories. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group's policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to current market situation and conditions of
the items. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on economic conditions,
marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery
products. The Group’'s management also engaged an
independent professional gemmologist to perform valuation
and assess conditions of certain items based on gemstone
testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market
situation. The Group reassessed the estimation at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$57,254.0 million (net of
allowances of HK$100.6 million) (2021: carrying amount of
HK$43,011.4 million (net of allowances of HK$156.2
million)). Reversal of allowances on inventories of HK$57.0
million (2021: recognition of HK$21.5 million) were
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Financials
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23. INVENTORIES (continueD) 23. 585w

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT

Raw materials for: EENTERORME
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HKEER  HERKESEHH 9,332.9 7,627.5
Gold jewellery and products =S EMNREM 3,029.1 3,017.5
12,362.0 10,645.0

Finished goods: BIRK M

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HKEER  HERKESEHH 20,453.0 16,004.1
Gold jewellery and products =S EHMNEM 22,596.8 14,376.9
Watches fEEk 1,661.5 1,765.5
44,711.3 32,146.5
Packaging materials BEYE 180.7 219.9
57,254.0 43,011.4

Inventories recognised as cost of goods sold during the year
ended 31 March 2022 amounted to HK$74,036.9 million

(2021: HK$48,702.8 million).

The Group reversed HK$57.0 million of a previous inventory

write-down (2021: write-down HK$21.5 million). These were

included in “cost of goods sold” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss during the years ended 31 March

2022 and 2021.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounting Policy

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement between
30 and 180 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
below for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and note 34 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

24.

B SR H b EWRIE

ERTBIR

B3 BRHEIE SN — RE BB HE RS
SRR MRS 2 3O - B 5 KRR
—#M 30 AZE 180 B 2 RIEN - Hilk2BH M
BRI -

B 5 EWFOR R R IGERERER  RIFE
TREEABAERND  ARARERR A&
B A E S REFIEN BB RKREAHORER
8 FARERUERMNEEIRAHKATH -
ERASBEE S RUFAZEFTRENE—F
A F2ETX UG BARSBRERE
MEE - E2RMEESS

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
HEAT HEET
Trade receivables B S EIE 3,130.8 4,580.6
Less: Loss allowance W RS (68.5) (221.2)
3,062.3 4,359.4
Prepayments to suppliers A EE AN R IE 2345 213.2
Deposits BfiES 259.8 257.0
Other tax recoverables H b ] Yk [B] F 18 2,236.9 1,287.8
Others Hih 120.5 63.0
5,914.0 6,180.4
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
B ARAEHREEEERAR



24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2022, trade receivables of HK$28.8 million
(2021: HK$51.9 million) are due from entities in which certain
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the

Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly cash sales
and credit card sales. Sales to certain customers are on
credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through
concessionaire counters, the Group usually allows 30 days

credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period:

24. BSRHEMEWFRIE @

M202243A31H ' ES5ERKKIE28.8EEH
(20215 : 1. 9EEBET) RAARRRETE
E(MBARRABRR)FHEEnEm 2 BEE -

AEEHTERTNHEURSHE RERRH
ERE MAETEENHENARELRX - &
EMRZR6MEA - HEENHEEN S - A% H
—RAZFRWKIAL T30 BHEER

AT RIREEZAMZ7 REEHRNESE
WK BRER DT

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BREET

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 2,861.3 4,380.6
31 to 90 days 31&290H 150.6 79.7
91 to 180 days 91&180H 35.1 22.2
Over 180 days 180 B E 83.8 98.1
3,130.8 4,580.6

As at 31 March 2022, included in the trade receivable
balances are receivables of HK$1,015.9 million (2021:
HK$487.3 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from
7.8% 10 9.4% (2021: 7.8% to 9.4%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the
reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a loss allowance of
HK$159.2 million is written back (2021: HK$149.7 million
was recognised) based on expected credit loss. Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group's
exposure to credit risk are set out in note 34.
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25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Accounting Policy

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, bank deposits carry
interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to
3.50% (2021: 0.01% to 4.00%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$11,878.1 million (2021:
HK$3,362.0 million) in which HK$756.9 million (2021:
HK$366.4 million) were held by entities in Hong Kong. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
authorised banks to conduct business in foreign currency.

Financials
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BETBUR

HEIRERERNE Re kRS SEVE
FBFRES  RNUBREBEHER  HME
H 2RIRE(RIBER/=EAXATK
AERERSENSHENR S EMAREES
FRE/RAK)

BZE2022F3A31HIEFE - RITFRIRER
M5 E M E ST F0.01% Z£3.50% (2021 4 : 7
F0.01% £4.00%) T2 °

202243 A31H » REBERARKEHENR
e RREEEBWR11,878.1 BEET(2021F -
3,362.0 &% L) + HH 756.9 B & H T (2021
F:366ARBRT)ABAEERTR - AR
WAREHEBRBEMER A - RERHE
POt B R B SN B IR (R I e A B - BE AN EE
BRE  AREEEEBFFRITETINEE
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. BES R HMEMNRIE

Accounting Policy =EHBR
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZES IRV R EE ARG ERFAER
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year =4 a%u‘:' LRBHRENEE ZESELAER
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are H BYEBRAEARLTIRXEISORALLS °
usually paid between 7 and 180 days of recognition. Trade BEHREMENRBZYARBDEE  BIEF
and other payables are presented as current liabilities RAIER R EERAR12EA ANEEH - ERERE
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the R ERER R H A6 A BRI BOERE 5K AR
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair & e
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Trade payables E 5 RN IE 1,155.1 819.4
Contract liabilities EHBE 2,178.1 1,773.2
Deposits received from franchisees and ENNEEEPGEEIE Ek e 19,898.2 12,798.8
customers
Accruals EirER 783.0 561.4
Accrued staff costs EEr 8 ITAA 677.3 640.7
Other tax payables Hith fE S B 18 3275 500.4
Interest payables FERFI B 90.1 47.8
Others HAit 56.8 98.3
25,166.1 17,240.0
Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly BNEEREREWENES EZETE AR
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China AERGFEERRMZNZ2ES - ZREAER
for the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and HREE -
interest-free.
The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days AEE-—REAEERINENEERANTT7H
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade Z180BTE - L TABRBEZHH2NNER
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of HHRMNE S RN RIBBRRER DT
each reporting period:
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 1,113.1 800.6
31 to 90 days 31290 H 40.2 12.0
91 to 180 days 91 %180 H 0.9 0.4
Over 180 days 180 HM £ 0.9 6.4
1,155.1 819.4
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuep)

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

26. ESRHEMEMSRIE @

AEECHER T EHETAINEAE :

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBER
Contract liabilities: arBE -
Customer loyalty programme RERABETE 335.4 249.1
Receipts in advance FE U RIE 1,842.7 1,524.1
2,178.1 1,773.2
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied TREIIKREXBHOEELE :
performance obligations:
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Expected to be recognised within one year TEER —FAER 1,790.2 1,398.5
Expected to be recognised after one year TEEIR —FRER 387.9 374.7
2,178.1 1,773.2

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to
performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

TREJEFPENEEEEARE BRERNZ
FRSFARNBAEFEEERNBOBREZ S

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEAT
Revenue recognised that was included in AAFVENEBDERERESE
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year:
— Customer loyalty programme — BREBHETE 249.1 173.0
— Receipts in advance — TBUGRIE 1,174.2 754.1
1,423.3 927.1

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Financials
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28. BANK BORROWINGS

Accounting Policy

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or

loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

28. $R

TE®

5 o

TR
ERENTIRAABHBREEENRZKAE)
R - ERERIREHKNATE  NHBRS
MAZERASFRARBLSEHRZE - 8

RIEFRBARNERNFENIEEANER - £8
RIRE AT A MERANBERT » BRZ
ERBMEXNNBERADERSERRZUA
FEIBERT  ZERBEEERNEREL
o EAB|PRBRZEAREAEDOHRE
BRDHEBERT  ZEBERBREAMERRBE
ERBHANIE - YREBEREREAT
VABESS o
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?v Hﬂ}

WP RENEERE - BUHRERE - &
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—IHMERAENERREEDS XNRE(R
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ZHEMER  ERATERRBERAK o
ERDBERRBDEE  EAREEEEGIE

FAaa B FEEEEREPEEI+ @
53

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBER
Unsecured bank loans EIRFRITER
The carrying amounts are repayable* BEE{EIR N5 HAPR (B & *
Within one year —FR 7,275.7 4,619.0
More than one year, but not exceeding —FAE - BTHBBME 1,788.8 1,798.9
two years
9,064.5 6,417.9
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. * BIEAFRIATH A B SRR A AT BIE K B B AR -
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranging RITEFIRZHFANEGTE - ERNEABHBRT

from 0.6% to 0.9% (2021: 0.6% to 0.9%) over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum.
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (continueD) 28. SRITER @
As at 31 March 2022, the range of interest rates on the bank M202263 A31H - BERTEROERNEN
borrowings were 0.9% to 1.2% (2021: 0.8% to 1.0%) F0.9% %E1.2% (20214 : 0.8% £1.0%) °
per annum.
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITEFREEZRATNEEE -
denominated in the following currency:
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
HK$ BIT 9,064.5 6,417.9
29. GOLD LOANS 29. HLEE
Accounting Policy EatBUR
Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial BB SEENESEEBNIRARET AL
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the gold loans mHcREeE BAESEEAKRE S —Ek
form part of a contract containing one or more embedded ZRERARNTELEZELNTD - BAEESE
derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold are SEENESEESEAEARETABEN
classified as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. BE -
Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the FEENREREBREAIBERARER -

consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
relating financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these liabilities.

BRSRAABIABENSREBEEIEE
SR ERREL N KS SRR AL 2

ARHZY - ETEEHHIEERABER
MG BERERAN AR EREIEBFEYL

TREBEEANGLESZEENTE -

Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations ERESEEEMNENREESFEXELER
in gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent KEHFE - ZBRTVIERTER - MENFIR
borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged HE SR
to gold prices.
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BREET
Financial liabilities at fair value RAREGFABRENESREE
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash AR SEENESEERE 3,133.6 2,432.7
Liabilities at fair value through BRARBEFABENERE
profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BAERESEENESEE 12,587.0 3,292.7
15,720.6 5,725.4

Financials
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29. GOLD LOANS (conTinuED) 29. HE2EEw

As at 31 March 2022, the gold loans carried fixed interest M2022F3A31H 2 BEERFFNX08%
rates of 0.8% to 2.0% (2021: 0.8% to 2.1%) per annum, £2.0% (20214 : 0.8% £2.1%) & & £ F) =
with original maturity of 1 to 6 months (2021: 1 to 7 months) TR REIBR AR BE1E6MEA (20214
from date of inception. 1Z27M@A) -

The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the HEEEBEARBERATEEE

following currencies:

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
US$ ESo 3,133.6 2,432.7
RMB AR 12,587.0 3,292.7
15,720.6 5,725.4
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. Ig=&
Accounting Policy R
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs EBAT T KB AR o BB B EIT AR AR
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options FES| B 2 BT K AR ERESS R BT B2 IE 2R
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the D (HIBFRIE) ©
proceeds.
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAR
Authorised: VETE ¢
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 iz A% A& 50,000.0 50,000.0
of HK$1 each 1Tz LBk
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 & & IR HEE 10,000.0 10,000.0
of HK$1 each 18Tz LBk
There was no change in the Company’s authorised, issued MEFEEN @ RABIZERE - EBETRARKA
and fully paid capital in both years. R o
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31. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and

warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring

within six months to five years. The leases have varying

terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal,

the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

31. HE®iE

FREEAEBEA
AEERBTIHSENCERELERES AT
£ RAERAE - BHRAEAZEERHE
W EMEETRMKRK  ME KR RES
W o EAE RS E ERRE -

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEER
Minimum lease payments under AR BERERERE AL EYE
non-cancellable operating leases of RIBNATREHGCEHER
rented premises not recognised in HEHEENTOT :
the financial statements are as follows:
Within one year —FR 47.3 101.3

The Group as lessor

The investment properties are leased to tenants under leases

with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing

arrangements, refer to note 16.

FRE{EALHBEAN
RANEREBELBTES - §ATRRAE
& - BEEERH RS - HLBHE16-

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Minimum lease payments receivable HEREMENREERBEMFTHOT ¢
on leases of investment properties
are as follows:
Within one year —FR 14.7 12.4
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAFT(BEEERT) 30.6 =
45.3 12.4
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EXRHIE
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Capital expenditure contracted but not HUEBYE - BEREEERTHER 146.2 132.4

provided for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

BENAEARRX
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, gold loans and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings

and gold loans.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Policy

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

Debt investments are reclassified when and only
when the Group's business model for managing
those assets changes.

Annual Report 2022
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Accounti ng POIICV (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financials

B 7%

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains and
losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable.

34. £t TH =

TR BUR @

(b)

(c)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) 34. €M T Rmw

Accounting Policy (continued) TR @
(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) EtEw@®

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains and losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OClI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains and losses and
impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains
and losses in the period in which it arises.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Accounti ng POIICV (Continued)

(d)

Financials

B 7%

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or
the proceeds receivables are not settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the
agreements, management considers these
receivables as underperforming or non-performing
and impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Categories of financial instruments

34. £t TH =

AEBEFEATSRTA

SR T REH

Financial assets/

Financial assets/

(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
R AT B BAREEN
LWMEE/ (BFE) LWMEE/ (BFE) by
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEBT HEBET
As 31 March 2022 ®2022F3H31H
Financial assets ﬁﬂﬁE
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABENEREE - 29.9 29.9
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates JE Y Bt A B I8 51.6 - 51.6
Loan receivables EUE R 12.6 - 12.6
Deposits Eftizse 182.3 - 182.3
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k E WA 3,442.6 - 3,442.6
Cash and cash equivalents HERHREEEY 14,942.2 - 14,942.2
Total financial assets TREERE 18,631.3 29.9 18,661.2
Financial liabilities cRAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E e FE (21,200.2) - (21,200.2)
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAS BT /B A &) FE 2 AR AR B 2k I8 (63.8) - (63.8)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings BITER (9,064.5) - (9,064.5)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBREEENESEER - (3,133.6) (3,133.6)
Lease liabilities HEAR (1,194.5) - (1,194.5)
Total financial liabilities CRAERE (31,523.0) (3,133.6) (34,656.6)
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
REBHRATTED EARETEMN
SREE/ (BR) SRMEE/ (AR) ‘et
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT HEBT
As 31 March 2021 R2021563H31H
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABRZNSREE - 22.0 22.0
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates JE Ui Btk & 1 B 2008 55.7 - 55.7
Loan receivables JEUE X 20.7 - 20.7
Deposits BffES 181.4 - 181.4
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E W IR 4,679.4 - 4,679.4
Cash and cash equivalents e RkFASEED 6,031.9 - 6,031.9
Total financial assets CREERE 10,969.1 22.0 10,991.1
Financial liabilities sHEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E e FIE (13,764.3) - (13,764.3)
Amounts due to non-controlling FETHT B A B FE 12 IR A% 3R s IE (66.0) - (66.0)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings IRITER (6,417.9) = (6,417.9)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BB S EENESEE - (2,432.7) (2,432.7)
Lease liabilities HEBE (1,496.0) (1,496.0)
Total financial liabilities TRBELE (21,744.2) (2,432.7) (24,176.9)
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinue)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVPL, amounts due from associates, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank
borrowings, gold loans to be repaid by cash and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables, gold
loans and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not have
any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank balances and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk are
considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Currency risk

Certain Group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective functional
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the foreign
currency risk is insignificant considering the related sales and
purchases to the total sales and purchases of the Group. The
majority of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary items are cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB, which are held by Group entities whose functional
currencies are not RMB, with carrying amounts of HK$756.9
million (2021: HK$366.4 million). In addition, certain Group
entities whose functional currency is HK$, have intra-group
advances to their subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Financials
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States
dollars (“US$") and RMB, which are arising from relevant
Group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.
At 31 March 2022, the Group's entities with functional
currency of HK$ had aggregate RMB net monetary assets of
HK$1,129.7 million (2021: HK$1,752.1 million). If HK$ had
strengthened/ weakened by 5% (2021: 5%) against RMB
with all other variables unchanged, the Group's profit before
taxation would have been HK$56.5 million (2021: HK$87.6
million) lower/ higher.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency
risk of US$ is considered insignificant.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk,
the Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Should the
gold price go up, the Group would charge a loss representing
the increase in gold price compared to the contract price, and
largely net against the increase in revenue of gold products
as a result of gold price increase. Gold loans are settled at
maturity which is usually in 1 to 7 months from date of
inception and any fair value change is immediately

recognised in profit or loss.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Commaodity price risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase by approximately HK$1,520.4
million (2021: HK$532.4 million) due to changes in fair values
of gold loans. On the other hand, the gold inventory would
not be revalued at market price as it is measured at weighted
average cost, unless an impairment indicator exists. The
changes in fair value of gold loans would be partly offset by
the realised gain or loss impact on gold inventory in future
sales.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the

provision of service; and

e debt investments carried at amortised cost, including
other receivables, amounts due from associates and loan

receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as such amounts are placed

in banks with good reputation.

Financials
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the aging of gross
trade receivables over a period of 12 month before 31 March
2022 or 31 March 2021 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors,
including significant changes in external market indicators,
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors for trade receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021 was determined as follows:

34.

£RIT R @
SREMEEEERBE @

EEEE @)

B S EKRE

7 5 [ B A RS B S SRS RIS O 57 2 B ML U7 0%
HEEHEEEE ZEPCEERE2HED
EEBEERNMEE S EKZE -

RETERBEEEE  BZRUFIACRIEAZR
EERBREERE B BETOME -

HEHERETDRE D HIN2022F3A31 8 %
202143 A31 B Z A1 12 {E A HE & 5 e IA
HRENKRRMNAACENERELEEBRS
B BEBEREEREARRYZEBETFENE
WHIRRE DM ZBRBER R (BRI TISER
MEAEE) 2B RATEEER  AEERE
ZRWMFIAE B ZAEENER - BREZER
EMEHEHARBEBEE -

i - 202243 A31H k202143 A31H
RERBENT

Aging analysis
REAAT
0 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
0Z30R 3190 H 91Z180H BiB180 A @it
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
HE#BR BE#ET BE#T BE#T BEERT
As of 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H
Expected loss rate FEHE R R 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 81.7%
Gross carrying amount EEAE 2,861.3 150.6 35.1 83.8 3,130.8
Loss allowance EREE - - - 68.5 68.5
As of 31 March 2021 R202153A31H
Expected loss rate TREEEX 3.4% 0.0% 0.0% 75.8%
Gross carrying amount FmeE 4,380.6 79.7 222 98.1 4,580.6
Loss allowance EEEE 146.8 - - 74.4 2212

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA M BMAME

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

237



238

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuEeD) 34. ERTH @)
Financial risk management objectives and SREMEEEERBE @
policies (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE @
Trade receivables (Continued) B S ERRIE (4)
The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March are 3 A 31 BHE S EWFIAE BB & Y B ERE
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as follows: ORI T :
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BESBT BEET
At 1 April w4818 221.2 61.0
Currency realignment B AE 6.5 10.5
Loss allowance (written back)/ recognised EiEEE 2 (BmE)/ ER (159.2) 149.7
At 31 March M3 A31H 68.5 221.2

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was limited to 12 months,
expected losses unless significant increase in credit risk.
Debt investments are considered to be low credit risk where
they have a low risk of default and the counterparty has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

Financials
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) 34.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

£RIT R @
SREMEEEERBE @

i EN & & B P
AEEEREEATKENEHRPREASUR
RBESERRTRLEENADESARER
ER - AEEFEBRPBBOIREURSEERR
ARERRSRERASRBEZDMER &
BRBHECAR -

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity
profiles of its financial liabilities.

TERA/AAREZCREBERTANINBAZHF
1B ZERBBRBAEEAIKERINEHEEZ
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial EFEHRE  URMSEREEZRMRRESR
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can 2o ARBERNERAEHERE -

be required to pay. The table includes both interest and

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn

o

principal cash flows.

Weighted ~ On demand or Total
average less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
RERKE FERRS

MEFHRIE 3fiAR  3fAZ1E 1255 5EzH REAE REE
% HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEAT BERT HEBTL BEAT HERT HEBL

At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31A
Trade and other payables B3 REMERFTE - 21,200.2 - - - 21,200.2 21,200.2
Amounts due to non-controlling AN INGE 3 - 63.8 - - - 63.8 63.8

shareholders of subsidiaries RRFE

Bank borrowings FITER 1.0% 5,482.5 1,809.3 1.817.4 - 9,109.2 9,064.5
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBRLEENELEE 0.9% 3,137.0 - - - 3,137.0 31336
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.9% 191.7 495.6 536.5 54 1,229.2 1,1945
30,075.2 2,304.9 2,353.9 54 34,739.4 34,656.6

At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A31A
Trade and other payables 2 S REMERNFE = 13,764.3 = = = 13,764.3 13,764.3
Amounts due to non-controlling ER B R AFEER - 66.0 - - - 66.0 66.0

shareholders of subsidiaries RRZE
Bank horrowings BITER 0.9% 4,024.6 603.6 18255 - 6,453.7 6,417.9
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURSEENESEE 0.9% 24355 = - = 24355 24327
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.0% 2280 584.9 715.6 16.3 1,544.8 1,496.0
205184 1,188.5 2,541.1 16.3 24,264.3 24,176.9
Notes: BRFEE -

HEREBROZEFXEHAFINCEENFRME - LFIF
BRITERBENBERERE -

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to (i)
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price (i) ESEENCRLBESRBEMEEEZESMBE AREET -
of gold traded in active liquid markets.
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period at fair value, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

e |evel 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

35. AR{EE

(a)

AREFR
TRIRT ARERA A B H R EE
ROARE HAREERERMHRE
RRF13K [ DA EHEFREH=1E
RABERDE - AR EHEHERDH
RESE T OIS E RN RO BALR
SRELLIE LA VR

o B BAMEEENHEEWE
BB A B R AR R AR 2
AERE

o FM BABBDE -RZBEIN
ARBEEEIEEBEREENAEMNS
HZ@ AR Rk

o E=M:BABBINLIFAIRIEEREE

or liability. EXREMSHZEBARE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R EZR E=H gt
Notes HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
FfaE HEBR HEERT BEBR HEBR
Recurring fair value measurement BEHEAAREBETFE
At 31 March 2022 7202253 A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEF ABRE 0.4 - 29.5 29.9
through profit or loss CRIEE
Liabilities 8fE&
Gold loans to be repaid by cash EBUARSEENESEE 29 - 3,133.6 - 3,133.6
Gold loans to be repaid BAERESEED 29 - 12,587.0 - 12,587.0
by physical gold =eEE
At 31 March 2021 R20215E3A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFTAEEE - - 22.0 22.0
through profit or loss PREE
Liabilities =R
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURSEENESEER 29 - 2,432.7 — 2,432.7
Gold loans to be repaid BUABERESEEN 29 - 3,292.7 - 3,292.7
by physical gold =288
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no HE2022F3A3MBLEFEE F—HK

Financials

B 7%

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

FE-_eBEI 8 HESR @‘/x"ﬁ_ﬁq)\ﬁﬁq
HE=ARER (2021 F « £) °

AEENBRENREHRER L ERE
Rz FONEALE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conTinueb)

35. ARETE @

(b) Valuation techniques used to (b) AEEEE-—RAAEHNMGEHE
determine Level 2 fair values 15
The fair value of gold loans is determined using BESBEZARBENAMBERESRGEEE
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to EE - Eqﬂé}ﬁgﬁmmuﬁm BEBILED
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid THEARB AT Ei ASIE -
markets as a key input.
(c) Fair value measurement using (c) EFHEXAOUHREMAYEZ
significant unobservable input (Level 3) AREFFE(E=4R)
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 TEREHAEAABTENEHZE 202243
items for the periods ended 31 March 2022 and 31 H31HX202143A31 HILHRME =4
March 2021: THH &
2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET
Unlisted equity securities FETRERS
At 1 April R4A/1H 22.0 21.0
Currency realignment Bk 0.3 0.4
Acquisitions e BE 7.2 0.6
At 31 March M®3A31H 29.5 22.0
The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under RE=RELSHESREENA EFEREE
Level 3 is determined using valuation techniques RIS (AEMREARENNET - &5
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining AREE RS EEERTT 2B
the fair value, specific valuation techniques are used FER - R BRI A SR iy a4
with reference to inputs such as profit forecast, FTARBERBH ST ASE o
dividend stream and other specific input relevant to
those particular financial assets.
(d) Financial instruments that are not (d) TFEUAAREHEH S

measured at fair value

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Annual Report 2022
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BReERENMEREB AR EBERE
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36.

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

MEZHELAMBRYHER

TRAJAEERETHAEENEERY X
TEERENFREEY BERDELNERE
BERASREEK(IAKASRERLE) XA
SENGERERNERIBEABETHMERE
mEZBIE -

flows from financing activities.

Dividends Interest
Amounts payable payables
due to non- (included (included
controlling in trade in trade
Bank shareholders and other and other Lease
borrowings Gold loans  of subsidiaries payables) payables) liabilities Total
EHRE EfHE
EAKWEAR (FtAE5 (FtAE5
FER REf REf
RITER EeRE RRZE EAFER) EARER) HEAE .
Note 28 Note 29 Note 27 Note 26 Note 26 Note 15
Ht 28 K29 R 27 K26 fE 26 K15
HK$ million  HKS million HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ million  HKS million
BBET BEETL BBET BEETL BEET BEET AEETL
At 1 April 2020 202054818 11,430.5 11,280.4 97.9 - 12.5 1,797.1 246184
Financing cash flows BERETE (5,016.0)  (1,809.3) (38.4) (28533 (289.6)  (1,182.1)  (11,188.7)
Interest expenses RS - - - - 328.3 47.7 376.0
Foreign exchange translation SNEBRE - 465.6 6.5 - - 393 511.4
Dividends declared =R, - - - 2,853.3 - - 2,853.3
Fair value loss of gold loans B EEANERE - 168.4 - - - - 168.4
Other non-cash movements Hi R &2 34 (4,379.7) - - (3.4) 794.0 (3,585.7)
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A318 6,417.9 5,725.4 66.0 - 47.8 1,496.0 13,753.1
Financing cash flows HERSTE 2,640.6 (489.9) (4.9)  (4,689.0) (2532)  (1,017.0)  (3,813.4)
Interest expenses FERZ - - - - 301.5 36.2 337.7
Foreign exchange translation SNEBRE - 290.7 27 - - 204 313.8
Dividends declared TR - - - 4,689.0 - - 4,689.0
Fair value loss of gold loans BEEEANEER - 1,021.2 - - - - 1,021.2
Other non-cash movements HitnEme g 6.0 9,173.2 - - (6.0) 658.9 9,832.1
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 9,064.5 15,720.6 63.8 - 90.1 1,194.5 26,1335
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
B BAAXEHKEEEER QA



37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Accounting Policy

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating
the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there
is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

Service cost and net interest cost on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised in profit or loss and allocated
by function as part of “selling and distribution costs” or
“general and administrative expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service
in the current period. The net interest cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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BIREFIRE

ErTBR

EEmRESE

AEELES ERIERETE 2
R RE BRI B -

RER & B B RO 3R 34 T BB 48 F R R £ 51 21 FERR

BB A3k & Y E R AR A E'EE HERBER
HIRERTEEENAAR %ﬁhaﬂa&
FHBIABE R AIRNE u%pa,z.ﬁ

R R 3R AL 9 BLE A A S 1 B R o o 5
& - B R SR A R EE AT
EHHFE  BEHRRBLRLERME
T o REELERATENERTE - QIFA
B (835 #0745 U % o

FE BB A B B F R0 AR TS A AR R A B R AN R
RIEE AR - BRNEDRA[HERSH
BRA] 3 [ =R RATEHFA ] 2 — & - BNAAR
B A REESNARIRERBELERBENE
EZREEERE o FSKRAFREBR R
REMNERBNETERFELAEEER
REFE -

KHRBABRREERR “@JFEE’J?E E%ﬁﬁi
RELARHEZNEGEEKENER - B
Bast AR A m B B R RAR E\M‘%ﬂkﬂi‘éﬁ’ﬂ
RE B -

FEERIRERELERBANEEREZLHH
MR 2 A TR BB E IRFE A o

SEBEAFBME - AREIZRS - A

BREEERRAREILAERERREREEEIX
MR - AEBER N EKRBEEIMIFE
£ - HERRE AR ERRESBHFZ - B
RN BB IR 2 R R AT R R 2R A5 R B T
REBEE °
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 37.

(CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out in March 2022 by Roma Appraisals Limited
("Roma"), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of
business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,

mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

BAREARE @

E B8 FI 5t &

$“:H?FW% 701858 1995 4F A1 10 A 3% S S
ARMEEREEERASER - BARER

%Féaﬁ&m%éﬁmﬁiﬂ 7K 85 3 4

AT A XA B BASE -

&ﬁ%%ﬂ~ E B NEE65 R LT FERMT
BRSO RBEN T %%ézmatM%%
ﬁLW% AN BN AR AL E A R AR A
me$mﬂ%#ﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁwmﬂ¢3
AEBUVAEREEGEMESBERTHERA
ﬂqﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ‘ﬁoﬁ%mi
BB R BB EFEEFTE 1935 R EEIN
x%ngoﬁﬁ@m%mﬁ%%mﬁmﬁ%ﬁ
RINFE - BEX  RRTERF AR -

FIERAMEERE®RZMOT :

2022 2021
Discount rate BRI & 21% 1.3%
Expected rate of salary increase TEHA% 38 Ntk = 2.0% 0.8%
Turnover rate A & 0.0% 0.0%

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit scheme are as follows:

*fﬁﬁﬁ?\gﬂﬁfﬁ‘ RERE B N H M 2 e K
2 TAIE;ZDT

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BT BEER
Current service cost 35 B AR 765 Ak 2N 2.2 2.3
Interest on obligation EIER T B 4.9 8.5
Components of defined benefits RIB TR R EZEE F 265 7.1 5.8
recognised in profit or loss
Remeasurement on defined benefit REMEEKEERN TR
scheme recognised in other BRETEIENEE :
comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from changes BRERREMELANEE 45 (18.1)
in financial assumptions E1E/ (M)
Total Rk 11.6 (12.3)

Financials
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

37. BAREFIRIE @

EEEFETEl @

HZ=2022F & 202143 A31BIEFERIRER
BRARAENF SRS B0 E BB A [
ERDEKA] R [—BRRATRFAZ ] IH -

Defined benefit scheme (continueq)

The current service costs and interest on obligation for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are included in “selling
and distribution costs” and “general and administrative
expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.

HE2022FK2021F3A31 HILFENTER
At EF TSt AR 2wk -

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is included in other
comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit ERBAAEREZLSHMOT
obligations are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BAEBT

At 1 April n4H1H 238.8 260.2
Service costs AR 75 B A 2.2 2.3
Interest costs | B AR 4.9 3.5
Actuarial loss/ (gain) rEEEE/ (W) 45 (18.1)
Benefits paid B a7 (11.3) (9.1)
At 31 March M®3A31H 239.1 238.8

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Annual Report 2022
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37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined contribution scheme (continued)

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension
schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

Financials

B 7%

37.

BAREARE @

TR HERET El )

B4 1B R E MR EE R NGB AR AKIEFIR
AR EERH BRSO REN T REW
HIR o (W {E B 2 515 38 AR B 2 R IR ET
EMEGIFTE - AEBEMEHTBZRE R KER
R

SARESHABNKEMNS  AREERRESE
BB TERAESS HX - ZEHRERE
MEFRE—X - BARTNRESERBLES
1,500 7T

AARFEAMRPIHE QRN ERERSD
R A rh B 3 B R AT SOR PIBURT 2 5& MR K&
FHEIRKE - B A E A BRIZA iR SRR
TEXRARNET A L RRARESE SR - R
MEBARREAESARERKENGE M ERE
R AERBAER - REE A BRARRENGH B D
E— B ERRIEZERBIEH ARG -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November
2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
"Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting skilled
and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain
with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and
the employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) who the directors of the Company
consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An
offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Participant
by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to
hold the option on the terms on which it is to be granted
(which may include a minimum period for which the option
must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms
of the Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an
option is deemed to be accepted by the Participant (the
“Grantee”) when the Company receives from the Grantee
the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An
offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of
which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is
payable by the Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance for such
time to be determined by the directors of the Company,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the
termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made
has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within the time period and in the manner
specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTtinuep)

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no share
options were granted by the Company nor were there any

share options of the Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees
share appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company
would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs in cash to the
directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary
bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of HK$236.8 million
during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$127.2 million).
The amount payable will be determined based on the earnings
per shares and share price of the Company. The rights must be
exercised on vesting date and will expire if not exercised on
that date. There were 21,240,000 units of SAR granted and
14,280,000 units were vested during the year.

The fair value of the SARs was determined using the Black-
Scholes model and the following inputs as at 31 March 2022:

38.

AR ST &l ()
TEEARARREEERE - WABERIATE
=& () REB AR RMDOUTIE ; (i) B
B B AT AR S B R T U E R i)
BB AR AR AN EE -

HE2022F %2021 3 A31HILEE » KRR
I R ARE - INE AR M RITEAERRD
AR ARAE -

AARMEZRE TIEERTRMHIGERE (RH
HEE])  AAREURAEREZERETEES
RGO I EREONEEE  (ERIBIEAN—B
o B E 202243 A31HILFE - NEBESG
> 5236.8 8 BABIL(20214F 127285 &5
7T) - BN SBEEARR B GREF RRBIET
H o RipLERNBEERBRITE  WREZB
HASRITEE - IR(DIEEREBEIE - KRR FRHE
% 721,240,000 8 Ik th BB - REHE
14,280,000 fE % 1) 15 B4R B AL

HZE202243A31 8 BRiHEEENALEFH
Black-Scholes 7 & LA TN g A SR E E -

At 31 March 2022
7R2022F3H31H

Share price at measurement date FTEBRE HK$14.26
14.26 & T

Expected volatility SELEEIES 47.547%
Dividend yield % 2w 2 3.079%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ ) 0.026%
Carrying amount of liability — included in other payables BENRMEE — st AHEMtENRIE HK$215.8 million
2158H&8#E T
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Recurring transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party
transactions during the year:

39. FBEA X5

(a)

EREXS
REANHRENEL BT RBENR SR
f85) - AREERE R THIBB S
25 :

2022 2021
Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ million HK$ million
& RHEME HEET BREBT
Entities in which certain Advertising expenses - 2.9
directors* of the Company BERAX
have beneficial interests Concessionaire fees in department stores 64.6 56.4
AARETESF*HEER BERREEDK
BENER Right-of-use assets 56.2 179.9
EREEE
Lease expenses 23.0 14.9
HEMX
Purchase of goods and commission expenses 0.2 0.2
BEEmRASAX
Purchase of equipment 0.9 -
BERE
Marking fee 171 -
T B
Non-controlling shareholders Concessionaire fees in department stores 4.3 4.5
of subsidiaries BEARZEEDK
B /B8 A R FE AR AR 3R Franchise sales 95.1 78.9
INESHE
Entities in which a close Engineering services fee 12.8 7.6
family member of certain TiER%E
directors* of the Company Purchase of equipment 15.2 2.3
has control BEERE
RARETEZ*NARRB Marking fee 52.0 18.7
BREEREGIENEE T B
* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. * EEZNHEEARANE S -
Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other B B2 55N+ RR R AN FE A

(b)

significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest at any time during the year.

Key management compensation
Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

40. KASEEMBAE

THRRIMERRRNR B EZME

AFZEHE -

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HMRL/ BRI ERTREBRRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEAR AR REBH EfMELR/ BEEX 55340 TEEH TEEENEY
2022 2021
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100% Investment holding Hong Kong
BRERAR 20 June 2011 US$1 REER Bt
HBEARKHE FRAR
201146 A20AH 1%L
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond Hong Kong
BHESERAR 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 EREE B
EE TR
200841 A 108 10,0007 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 KEERHE BE
BARBRERTERAR BB LN
196143 H68 350,000,000 7% 7T
CTF Jewellery Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
BARBHKE O§5N) BRAR 21 March 2018 HK$1 and provision of services &/
0 LBARA to franchisees
201853 A21H 17T KEEMBE RIRM
MR TN
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of watches Hong Kong
AXEEER(FE)BRAR 7 February 2011 HK$1 BRHE BB
EE TR
2011F2A7H 18T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Procurement of gemstones, ~ Hong Kong
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery products ~ &/&
EFZEERERRAA BB LBARA and investment holding
200565A26H 5,000,000/ T RBER KEEM
HEARREER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Macau
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 KEERHE b
BARBHREER(RP) HERAR R BEER
2009437178 5,000,000329 7T
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC The United States Capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products The United States
of America US$74,468,737 KEBEERHEE of America
14 May 2001 X EJ5
X8 74,468,737 % T
2001454148
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services B
T RAXBHRESTTERARA Rl &R to franchisees
2006411 8138 30,000,000 T KREEMHE RIRH
BR& TN
Chongging Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 HERHE 2
BEERAAGERHEARAA FE- &R
20084 12A25H  AK®10,000,0007T

Financials

B 7%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

40. KAEEEMBAS mw

4=

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HEMRL/ R ERTREBRRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEARERE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 3340 TEEH TEEENEY
2022 2021
Chongging Flamingo Watches PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BHREE H
EEEHRERERAR - &R
2008F12A258  AR¥1,000,0007T
Chongging Meida Watch PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 21 May 2013 RMB1,000,000 KEERHE H
BEREXESRAERRAA FE- A&
2013%5A21H AR 1,000,0007T
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 BERIHE H
BEEMEBRERAR g &R
201348 A2H AR %10,000,0007C
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
(Chongging) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BARKERTT(EE)ARARA " HMER to franchisees
2008412 H823H 30,000,000 T KEERHER
REMRE T NERE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang) PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 and provision of services H
BABKRESTT(8G) ARAR - AR to franchisees
201441 A28 AR 20,000,0007C KEERHER
IR T N
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of PRC
Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$500,000,000 jewellery products H
BARBKREST (ORI ARAF R A& KEBEMEERHEE
200264 A2H 500,000,000 T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BABHRERTT (M) ARAR e AR to franchisees
2006418118 30,000,000% T KEERHER
RERE T MBS
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BAABKRERT(RE)ARAR E" HEA to franchisees
200841 A29H 30,000,000 7T KEERHER
RERTE T MER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 US$140,000,000 products H
Company Limited A HER KEEREE
BAABHRE X EXR(RE) 201248A16H 140,000,000 % T
BRAR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 RMB65,723,500 KEERHE H
Company Limited - HER

BAABREETRRERHE
BARRA

2010F4A21H

AR¥ 65,723,500

Annual Report 2022 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

40. KAEEEMBAS mw

4=

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HEMRL/ R ERTREBRRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEARERE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 3340 TEEH TEEENEY
2022 2021
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 products H
LTI E S ERE 5 H80E " GailE-%N KREEMEE
BRAR 200743 A 148 10,639,400 % T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 products H
BLRIEEEHEARRAR A A& A KEEMEE
1988411 A9H 18,000,000 % 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BRAXGHRESTARAR HRE" AR to franchisees
20074128108 30,000,000 7T KEERHER
RERE T MERS
Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Fook Jewellery Manufacturing 30 July 2014 RMB60,000,000 products H
Company Limited - HMER KREEREE
BRIEEANBRELEERAR 201447 A30AH AR #60,000,0007C
Jinan Fudonglin Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 September 2005 RMB2,000,000 and provision of services H
EEERGERESTARAR - AR to franchisees
200549 A2H AR 2,000,000 7T KREEMmHE RIRH
MRi& T InEERS
Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 February 2013 HK$60,000,000 and provision of services
FEARGHREEHERAR E" HEA to franchisees
201342 A26H 60,000,000 % 7T KEERHER
REBRBTMER
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 60% 60% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB10,000,000 KEEMHEE H
LBRREAARREARAA R GailE-eN
200061 A5H AK#10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 31 October 2016 US$10,000,000 KEERHE H
RIBEARBRESITAERRT R & AR
20164108318 10,000,000 T
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 5 March 2012 RMB50,000,000 products 2
AT AR EHRERERRAR - &R KEEMEE
201243 A5H AR#50,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Media Company Limited 5 January 2017 RMB5,000,000 KEERHE FE
R EARBEREEERAA - &R
201741 A58 AR# 5,000,000 70

Financials

B 7%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

40. KAEEEMBAS mw

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HEMRL/ R ERTREBRRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEARERE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 3340 TEEH TEEEMY
2022 2021
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 BEERIHE H
R EAREEERERAR g &R
2011¥6A27RH 300,000,000 % 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 19 April 2007 RMB8,000,000 KEERHE H
ATRERESTAERAA AR EailE-wN
20074 A19R8 AR# 8,000,000 7
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 November 2003 RMB90,000,000 KEERHE 2l
REERKESTARARA g &R
2003%11H26H  AR®¥90,000,0007T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 KEEMHEE F
RRABRDGEBABHRAE ST R HMEAR
BRDA 2010%12A3H AR % 3,000,000 7
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 RMB94,567,500 KEEMEE H
RXARDERERERTERAA  HE- GailE-wN
20126 9A 248 AR# 94,567,500 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 KEERHE H
RRBRVEERARBELTERAR  HE* A&
20115118178 AK#70,000,0007T
* Directly held by the Company. * RARIEERE -
& Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these # BEZSEENRREZHETCABEBGE  AEEAREE

entities, the Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since
their respective date of establishment/ acquisition, and hence these entities are
classified as subsidiaries of the Company.

M Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC.

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which
are mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Annual Report 2022
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

 RATMBRARRFEELE

COMPANY

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBT

Non-current assets EMEEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARZEE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — BB A RI5RIE 1,788.8 1,798.9
17,176.1 17,186.2

Current assets MENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — B A Rk IR 5,950.8 6,920.3
Taxation recoverable a] 45 B B 0B - 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents BHekReEFEY 1.6 274.2
5,952.4 7,195.0
Current liabilities mEEE

Other payables H At FE A 308 224 22.9
Bank borrowings RITEXR 7,275.7 4,619.0
Gold loans "5eEE 3,133.6 2,432.7
10,431.7 7,074.6
Net current (liabilities)/ assets mE(BE) EBESE (4,479.3) 120.4
Total assets less current liabilities MEAERTEAR 12,696.8 17,306.6

Non-current liability ErEIN=N
Bank borrowings RITER 1,788.8 1,798.9
10,908.0 15,507.7

Capital and reserves AR R f#EE
Share capital &N 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves fi& 908.0 5,607.7
10,908.0 15,507.7

Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
B BAREUBEEEEGRARA



41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (conTiNUED)

41. KATHBIRARREEES @

Reserves
&
Share Share Retained

capital premium profits Total

&N BR4GRE RERF Fob

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

HEET HEET BHEAET BEET

At 31 March 2020 M2020F3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 4.1 15,502.8

Profit and total comprehensive FEPEF R 2R SE T = = 2,804.9 2,804.9
income for the year

Dividends 3N = = (2,800.0) (2,800.0)

At 31 March 2021 7K202143A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 9.0 15,507.7

Profit and total comprehensive FARMNREEW S BT - - 0.3 0.3
income for the year

Dividends 9N - (4,600.0) - (4,600.0)

At 31 March 2022 7K202243A31H 10,000.0 898.7 9.3 10,908.0

Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
& ¥ ik 2

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTAREERBERABMBFEE EXREUAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial HEERE - BBERESE FROGE MEHRE -
information are extracted from the consolidated financial

statements in the annual reports.

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANALEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEET AEET BEET BEET BEET

Revenue S 59,156.4 66,660.9 56,750.8 70,163.8 98,937.7
Gross profit EF 16,213.4 18,601.8 16,096.2 20,074.7 22,339.7
Profit for the year FE A 4,203.3 4,684.0 2,983.1 6,176.1 6,879.9

As at 31 March

R3H31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEET BEBT BAEBT BEAT BEER
Total assets BEMARE 57,569.9 62,237.1 65,243.4 64,308.2 87,737.3
Total liabilities B &85 23,472.3 30,834.1 38,252.6 32,740.6 53,182.6
Net assets BEFRA 34,097.6 31,403.0 26,990.8 31,567.6 34,554.7
2 56 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B 7% ARBHREEEFR QA



INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

REBES

INVESTOR CALENDAR wEEHR

FY2022 annual results announcement 2022 B EERFEENE
9 June 2022 2022%6 A9H

AGM BRBAFKE

27 July 2022 202247 A 27H

Proposed payment of final dividend

on or about 19 August 2022
Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM

22 to 27 July 2022

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend

BRIRERYRE
202248 A 19 HekAl#E

TEnEkfAFELTFR(EREMXBIEERN)
REELERRBFRAGLNE LRF

202247 H22R%27R

FERERER RS MR

4 August 2022 202248 A4H
SHARE INFORMATION B &EE
Company name AT ETE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2022
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite LargeCap Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

Hang Seng Stock Connect Greater Bay Area Composite Index
Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index

Hang Seng ESG 50 Index

MSCI Hong Kong Index

Annual Report 2022
2022 FF$§

ARBUHREEERR QA

L
HBBR A

R #4850
1929

LtH B
2011412 A15H

BFEERM

200 fx

#2022 3 A 31 HE#TRAE
10,000,000,000 %

Rt B

BAEGAER
BAEGARBBIER
BAERE (FE LM 100352
EERREBNERGAER
BARRAEERDEEE
184 ESG504E#
MSCI & B i5

Information for Investors 2 57
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SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

B R BR TS

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write

to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980-1333
Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/ interim report of the Company by
writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic

version from our Group website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

B BMTHRREER - WRGOEE  Fhdasionit &
BEEARE  BUEEARBAERMNBEBRMBEZELZS
&

SERBFBELARAA
BB

SRANER 1835%

A FFL 5412

B (852) 2980-1333
HH : (852) 2810-8185

RETEBEEFABERMANBERGBEETIEN
EMAARNER/ PHBRE - KRR EMAEHE
BT

REERIF

For more information about the Group, please visit

www.ctfiewellerygroup.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at
38/F, New World Tower

ERAKERFE  HRE

www.ctfjewellerygroup.com

o BT PRI A B R R b SR AR
BBERAET 16-185%

16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong it AR = 3812

Tel: (852) 2524-3166 EoEr (852) 2524-3166
Fax: (852) 2526-9178 BH :  (852) 2526-9178
e-mail:  ir@chowtaifook.com BH : ir@chowtaifook.com
GENERAL INFORMATION — &

Headquarters and principal place of business ERREEEEEEMES

in Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Additional Information

B b0 &

BFBERAET 16-185%
R AE 3312

EER i Y

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAEHREEEERAR



GLOSSARY
50 |

MEE LFEF

2HFY
MBEE T+F

Articles
4B Al
ASP
FHEE

Board
TEg

cIs
& A

Company/ Chow Tai Fook
NIV PN ]

Directors

5=

FY
BMREE

Gem-set Jewellery
KREEREE

Gold jewellery and products
=eH i REMD

Group
£EH/ r&EH

Hong Kong, China/ Hong Kong

hEEE B

Karat gold/ K-gold
K&

Listing Rules

EmRA

Annual Report 2022
2022 F ik

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

MRFEE EFF  BHEIHAB0HIEXEHA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March
MBEETFF BE3A31HIEAEA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended or supplemented from
time to time)
RRAREBERRAL (B ARETSHHT)

average selling price
T HEER

the board of directors of the Company
ZIN/NG =8

counter-in-shop in POS
REEBHARENEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BAXREHRESEER AR (RHKIR - 1929)

directors of the Company

ZAUNETE-5

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
PHFEE  E4A1BE2F3H31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BREEAONEONEMHE®D

gold jewellery and products sold by weight or at fixed price. Fixed price gold
products include those with substantial amount of art work, delicate designs and
licensed gold products

RESEFETERLENEcEHNER TERCEREETEMENTERMRX
REHBTARREN E S Em

the Company and its subsidiaries
NAE A B AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
i A R HEMBEIBBFRTERE

jewellery products made from gold alloy
A& & B B E m

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
BERBMERSMBRARES LML

Glossary

Al



Macau, China/ Macau the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China

FRBRFT /R PT rhEE AR AN BB PRI IT B E

Mainland China/ the Mainland the mainland of the People’'s Republic of China

AR A i/ A HhEE AR HANE A

POS points of sale

TER EmTEE

Retail Sales Value/ RSV the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional

TE A currencies, of products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REEHPRMEMRBEAEENEEE T ERNBEREEEMNRKRTEE(REEET -
mE)FE

Same Store self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which

G5 have been operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BRI —EMRFENELETNERYBABKDABFHNELTER

Same Store Sales/ SSS “Same store sales"” for FY2022 is the RSV from the self-operated POS of

FlJE e CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY existing as at 31 March 2022 and which have been
opened prior to 1 April 2020. RSV from franchised POS and other channels are not
included

2022 M HRFE [RIEHE] M= - HREN 202044 A1 BATFHXIL N 202243 A 31
BIABENEAARKEEETEHNTEE  ETEENBETEHREMRENTEE

Same Store Sales Growth/ SSSG  a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from
A5 S comparable POS in the corresponding period in the previous financial year,
measured at constant exchange rates
LEREXR SRS THENREHEESRE F—RFERBNAI L TEREE

SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BH KR EE GG BEEDIE 571 EFZH KRBT G

SIS shop-in-shop in POS

&R REEBARERE

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless otherwise specified

Bk 2 P MIESEIER  BTRIEEBTEBE XS AERAR

Tier I, II, Ill, IV and other cities for the list of cities, please refer to the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global.

—HR . TR =82 R KR EMIET  New first tier cities were grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer
to the ranking released on 27 May 2021
BN TFBER2ECE ML) BMOMTERESR - T —BRWHRBEMO2 TR ESE
BT o 5231202145 A 27 BAMIEES

260 Additional Information Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Bt hn & %4 ARAEHREEEERAR
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THE UNAUDITED KEY OPERATIONAL DATA FROM 1 APRILTO
31 MAY 2022

From 1 April to 31 May 2022, the year-on-year changes of RSV and SSS are as follows:

(% change compared to the same period last year)

Group
RSV growth
Hong Kong &
Macau of
China and
Mainland China other markets
RSV growth

Contribution to Group RSV

Hong Kong &
Mainland China Macau of China

SSSG
SSS volume growth

SSSG by product
— Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
— Gold jewellery and products

The unaudited key operational data from 1 April to 31 May 2022 was prepared based on the
latest available management accounts and the information currently available to the Group.
The position remains to be reviewed by the Company’s auditor.

By order of the Board
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 June 2022

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors are Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent,
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson,
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton, Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter and Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby
and the independent non-executive directors are Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor,
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey,
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert and Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily.
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